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Net profit attributable to
owners of the Company

47,847,000:%5 ks
4

<

>

Turnover

8,584,225,000:5 s
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For the year ended 31 December 2015 (audited)
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Earnings per share

d 8.5 Hk cents

1551 IR 2
Special dividend

4.55%4 HK CENTS

‘ 4

EFERE

Dividend for the year
14.5:4 Hk cents

<
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Board of Directors

Non-executive Directors
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Mr. Yip Tsz Hin
Mr. Wong Kam Yim
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Mr. Ip Kwan
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Mr. Feng Shun Quan

(resigned with effect from 1 July 2015)
Ms. Yau Ching Man

(appointed with effect from 1 January 2016)

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Ng Siu Ping (Chairman of the committee)
Mr. Ip Chi Shing

(resigned with effect from 1 January 2015)
Mr. Tong Wui Tung
Mr. Wong Kong Chi
Mr. Li Chak Man

(resigned on 30 June 2015)
Mr. Ku Yuen Fun

Company Secretary

Ms. So Sze Wan, Lisa

(resigned with effect from 1 March 2015)
Mr. Ho Sai Hou

(appointed with effect from 1 March 2015)
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Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin (Deputy Chairman and
Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Co-Chief Executive Officer
with effect from 1 January 2016)

Mr. Wong Kam Yim (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned with effect from 1 January 2016)

Mr. Wong Yuk (Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned as Deputy Chief Executive Officer
and appointed as Co-Chief Executive Officer
and Executive Director with effect
from 1 January 2016)

Mr. Ho Sai Hou (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu

Audit Committee

Mr. Wong Kong Chi (Chairman of the committee)
Mr. Ip Chi Shing
(resigned with effect from 1 January 2015)
Mr. Tong Wui Tung
Mr. Li Chak Man
(resigned on 30 June 2015)
Mr. Ku Yuen Fun
Mr. Ng Siu Ping

Health, Safety and
Environment Committee

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun (Chairman of the committee)
Mr. Ip Chi Shing

(resigned with effect from 1 January 2015)
Mr. Wong Kong Chi
Mr. Li Chak Man

(resigned on 30 June 2015)
Mr. Ng Siu Ping

Auditor

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
(Certified Public Accountants)

35/F., One Pacific Place

88 Queensway, Hong Kong
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Chairman’s Statement — Review & Prospects
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Mr. Ip Chi Shing
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It is inevitably discouraging that | have to present to our
shareholders with an unsatisfactory annual statement for 2015
at a time when the Group enters the 45th anniversary of its
founding. Though in the Prospects section of last year’s annual
report, the discussion | made was rather cautious, a number of
harsher-than-expected changes in internal and external operating
environment regrettably turned up. In particular, the accelerated
pace of depreciation of the Renminbi (“RMB"), the sustained
sharp fall in oil prices in the second half of the year, and the
successive bizarre shocks ravaging the mainland financial market
further exacerbated the economy which had been lethargic to
begin with. With so many unfavourable factors in play, it is
therefore well-nigh impossible for the Group’s businesses to
come out unscathed. At the end, though overall product sales
tonnage still recorded a slight growth of 4%, because of the
downward revision of product selling prices, turnover was down
16% from a year before to HK$8,584,225,000. In the year,
net profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
HK$47,847,000, representing a sharp decrease of 79% from the
previous year. What gives us a little consolation is that, thanks to
our extreme vigilance in expanding our businesses, the series of
response measures we had put in place had gradually taken effect.
As a result, in this turbulent period, our accounts receivable risks
and capital investments were basically under control, so much so
that the gearing ratio of the Group dropped from almost 60% in
the same period last year to 54% and this momentum is set to
continue. After careful and comprehensive assessment, the board
of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has resolved not to
declare any final dividend but voted to declare a special dividend
of HK4.5 cents per share as a token of rewarding shareholders at
the 45th anniversary of the founding of the Group.
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Chairman’s Statement — Review & Prospects

Review

In the reported period, global economic growth generally
remained weak with the exception of the US. As geopolitical
tension intensified, demand from the overall consumer market
dropped steeply. The mainland market, already suffering from
serious overcapacity that badly needed winding down, was double
hit by a slowdown in export demand and domestic market. So,
even though the mainland was still able to post a GDP growth of
6.9% for the whole year, signs of fatigue emerged and downturn
pressures were on the rise. Meanwhile, the sluggish mainland real
property market and the volatile and slipping stock market had
resulted in a shortage in money supply and an abrupt increase
in credit risks. Weighing the situation, the Group timely adopted
a number of extra prudent measures in its business expansion.
At the same time, oil prices had dropped unusually and sharply
to reach multiyear new lows, leading to continual downward
adjustments in the prices of numerous chemical commodities and
eventually resulting in the extremely rare situation that, our core
businesses registered zero or negative growth in turnover. Our
solvents business was the hardest hit, followed by the lubricants.
Both of these business segments had to deal with ever more
savage competition while having to digest continuously their high-
price inventories, so their profit margins suffered greatly. On the
other hand, the Group’s overall performance was still hampered
by the continued downward revision of the RMB exchange rate.
In the period, with the RMB exchange rate falling by as much as
5%, the Group recorded an exchange loss of HK$51,208,000 for
the whole year. Though the exchange loss did not constitute an
unfavourable impact on the Group’s real business performance
or cash flow, it was nevertheless a major factor why the Group’s
performance was inferior to that of the previous year.

Prospects

This year, the Group will still have to deal with a business
environment that will be both challenging and littered with
uncertainties. It is expected that, externally, geopolitics in many
regions will be unstable, the global economy will still be in the
doldrums and demand will remain weak. Domestically, the deep-
seated problems of overcapacity, economic downturn pressures
and the country’s yet-to-be-transformed growth model cannot be
solved in the short term. Yet, in an operating environment which
is grim and probably takes a long time to adjust, the Group is
confident and prepared to confront these problems with practical
and prudent strategies in order to overcome the current difficulties
and seize business opportunities. Among the factors affecting
the overall performance of the Group last year, two might have
the chance of being alleviated gradually in the coming year. First,
it is expected that there will not be much room for oil prices to
continue to fall sharply and the prices of commodity chemical raw
materials have been stabilising in recent days. Meanwhile, the
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CHENICAL

Prospects (continued)

Group has, through redoubled efforts, been making headways in
developing more mainland procurement channels. Second, it is
expected that RMB will still undergo exchange rate fluctuations for
political and economic reasons during the protracted process of
internationalisation. Whatever exchange gain or loss that arises is
not something the Group wants to see. The Group has therefore
already adopted a series of practical measures to protect itself
from such fluctuations. Currently, the biggest challenge of the
Group is to complete its own readjustments in the shortest time
possible. Its focus will be on enhancing the competitiveness of its
core businesses and to achieve better balance in breaking through
sales bottleneck, in optimising business quality and in strictly
controlling credit. Though in the short and medium term, the
Chinese economy will still undergo downward pressures, we are
cautiously optimistic that China will still be the most economically
vibrant region in the world. We are confident that it can maintain
a stable and healthy growth through more aggressive domestic
demand stimulation measures. What is more, by launching and
entrenching the “Belt and Road” national initiative, a broader-
spanning market will be opened up, and this will continuously
add momentum for the sustained development of the domestic
economy. Last year therefore, after making a comprehensive
review and assessment, the Group has determined as its medium
to long-term development strategy and objective to continue
focusing on the China market and the boundless chemical field
to look for business opportunities to expand. Concurrently,
corresponding changes in the organisation structure and mode
of management at the highest level of the Group will pave the
way for the senior management team to get younger and more
professional while business expansion strategies will get better
and more effective. The ultimate aim is to realise the long-term
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Prospects (continued)

corporate vision of “Towards a Century of Revered Leadership”
through these seven driving forces — “respect for and cooperation
with all stakeholders”, “thirst for talents”, “undivided focus on
core businesses”, “develop next-generation products”, “build
value-added brands”, “enhance shareholder returns” and
“undertake corporate social responsibility”.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank the Board for its
leadership and its various committees for their contributions. |
am grateful to the Group’s Senior Leadership Team for its unity,
its rising to challenges and its innovative problem solving. To our
customers, business partners, banks, suppliers and stakeholders,
| thank them for their support and trust. Last but not least, | am
wholeheartedly grateful to all the staff of the Group for their
dedication and staying with us throughout these turbulent days.

Retirement of Directors

The Company’s Independent Non-executive Director Mr. Li
Chak Man and Executive Director Mr. Wong Kam Yim retired
successively during the year. Over the years, both Mr. Li and
Mr. Wong have contributed splendidly on the development and
leadership of the Company in different roles. On behalf of the
Board, | would like to convey our sincere gratitude to both of
them and wish them a happy and healthy retirement life.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

1"

VA



VA

12

—Z—hFMEE 2015 ANNUAL REVIEW

BETHRRARRSE

Report of the Co-Chief Executive Officers

BEFHELE
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin

EKE R
AEEEBMNEEASEHREEMAE -
BEZHE TS  SBMEERTK &
BRXEEMEE K BFUHESEA
M T % %E8,584,225,000/ ¢ * tbkEF T
BK16% o #1 F| 8% 547,847,000 T © [F
L TR#K78.6% ©

AEEREEBHMELEZFRERA
#7880,000,000/8 L ° fEE LB T pE =
54% -+ AL T4 NEE DB -

FERFENENEIEREA
— REEBEMNXEMA0MET D
B BRIZRERS THRAUE

HEME  SIREMNBRD15% - 0
LERERBEHEEIM SR EE

—. HBHEBXENBEESRTER
EMNREE T  BIEAEEAK

ERCIEEERAA - —T - HFEFR
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Mr. Wong Yuk

Business Review

The year under review saw total product sales tonnage of the
Group exceeding one million metric tons for the first time. But
with oil prices dropping, prices of various raw materials turned
south as did the selling prices of the Group’s products across the
board. As a result, sales turnover dropped 16% year on year to
HK$8,584,225,000. Net profit was HK$47,847,000, down 78.6%
from the previous year.

In the year, net cash inflow from operating activities was around
HK$880,000,000. Gearing ratio dropped 4.1 percentage points to
54% as compared to last year end.

The main factors affecting profits in the year were as follows:

1. Though gross profit margin for solvents edged up slightly
by 0.4 percentage point, the fall in the prices of key raw
materials had pulled down their selling prices, so much
so that gross profit decreased by 15%. As transportation
expenses rose with increasing sales tonnage, operating profit
dropped appreciably;

2. Hampered by the simultaneous declines in sales turnover
and gross profit margin, loss in the lubricants business was
exacerbated substantially;
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Report of the Co-Chief Executive Officers

3. Sharp fluctuations in the RMB exchange rate led to
HK$51,208,000 in exchange loss;

4. For the same period in the previous year, there were a
dividend payout and a net income before taxes totalling
HK$129,739,000 from sales of shareholding in Lomon
Corporation; and

5.  The fair value of Yip’s Chemical Building increased by
HK$19,400,000.

The annual review of the various business lines are as follows:

Solvents

Increase in product sales tonnage was still recorded. But as selling
prices dropped, sales turnover was down 19% vyear on year to
HK$5,006,792,000 while operating profit was down 43% to
HK$135,596,000.

For solvents, sales were brisk and market shares grew. But because
of a cyclical fall, raw material prices hovered at historical lows,
resulting in depressed product prices. Turnover and gross profit
were thus dragged down substantially. Also, as transportation
expenses rose with increasing sales tonnage, operating profit
contracted markedly so much so that profit margin reached a
relatively low level in recent years.

Coatings

Even against a backdrop of market downturn and slacking
demands, product sales tonnage was still maintained at the same
level as the previous year. It was the decreases in raw material
and product prices that had dragged down turnover by 12% on
the year to HK$1,890,989,000. Riding on improvement in the
gross profit margin, operating profit was up 29% on the year to
HK$60,922,000.
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Inks

The business situation was similar to that of coatings except
that turnover dropped 10% to HK$1,492,634,000. Thanks to an
increase of 2.8 percentage points in gross profit margin, operating
profit increased 23% on the year to HK$68,857,000.

Lubricants

The business was hit by a 19% decline in turnover to
HK$348,388,000 while an inventory loss was recorded due to
falling oil prices. Subsequently, operating loss increased markedly
to HK$25,519,000 as compared to the loss of HK$2,934,000 in
the previous year.

To mitigate the exchange difference caused by fluctuation of RMB
with higher volatility, the management has adjusted the Group’s
treasury strategies by reducing surplus funds in RMB and arranging
bank borrowings in RMB to meet necessary operational needs.
The management also continued to assess and explore various
options of leasing or selling the headquarters property in Fanling
to optimise its usage and increase return on investment with due
consideration to the latest property market sentiments in Hong
Kong.
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Report of the Co-Chief Executive Officers

Business Outlook

As market environment gets increasingly grimmer, the newly
formed Senior Leadership Team responds actively by embracing
changes and formulating strategies. The team suggests that while
endeavouring to achieve high turnover, it will also focus more on
targeted market segments and will develop new businesses and
provide services to existing customers with optimal costs. Business
lines with sub-optimal profitability will be disposed of so that the
short-term target of quality growth can be achieved.

In the medium to long term, the development of new products
and timely transformation, merger and acquisition will be the
strategic development directions of the Group. For this, a new
Corporate Development Department was formed at the beginning
of 2016. Meanwhile, a seasoned R&D management personnel
was recruited to take charge of the R&D centre in Zhangjiang,
Shanghai.

In line with the above strategies, improvement measures on the
Group's four main lines of business have been implemented upon
analysing their respective market environments:

Solvents

With a new production line in the Taixing, Jiangsu factory coming
on stream successfully in the fourth quarter of last year, total
production capacity is now exceeding one million metric tons.
The Group will aggressively expand into markets to the north and
will also develop overseas sales by capitalising on Taixing plant’s
advantage of being allowed to export directly. At the same time,
as the costs of various raw materials have already rebounded from
their low levels, the management is confident of improvements
in the operation of this business and of seeing normal operating
profit again.

Coatings

Against the sustained sluggish market environment, our coatings
group will strengthen its segmented targeting strategy for quality
growth, especially in the B2B industrial and architectural coating
segments. For household coatings, further optimisation of
exclusive shops and distribution channels will be carried out while
price management will be tightened. For industrial coatings, by
ensuring the high and stable quality of our products, the Group
will strengthen ties with major clients in the industry to form the
cornerstones going forward.
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In view of the volatility in raw material costs, tightening cost
control across the supply chain and uplifting unit productivity
per head will be championed to structurally enhance overall cost
competitiveness of the business.

Inks

For inks, segmented profitability management, productivity
improvement and new product development will be the key
initiatives in the coming year.

Leveraging on the stable income from food packaging inks,
the management will work towards improving profitability of
the offset printing inks segment. Consolidation of production
capacities across the three existing plants and appropriate level of
investment in automation will be crucial in enhancing productivity.

Through years of research and development, the business will
introduce systematically more lines of environmentally friendly
products to the market, some of which are currently under trial

use by customers. Progress has been encouraging so far.

4 [ B 95 1 i% 400921 7787
www.baucoatings.com
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BETHARRE
Report of the Co-Chief Executive Officers

Lubricants

The major setback in financial performance of the lubricants
business last year had triggered a major reorganisation by the end
of the year. The streamlined new leadership team is determined
to turn around the business by critically reducing back office
costs and by focusing on corresponding market segments and
customers in accordance with the strengths and resources base of
the business.

To this end, disciplines in executing a professional prospecting/
sales process, price management and strengthened cost controls
are in the day to day operating agenda of the management.
Through such measures, the team is confident to put the
lubricants business back on track, hence earning the license to
grow ultimately.

Conclusion

It is our conviction that the implementation of the above strategies
not only will result in performance improvements, but will also
allow Yip's Chemical to put a solid step forward in becoming a
hundred-year enterprise. Meanwhile, the Group is also asking
specific demands of its personnel that they should remould a new
corporate culture through integrity, excellence, teamwork and
determination.
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Group’s Headquarters and Plants
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The Group’s headquarters in Fanling, The Group’s R&D Centre in Zhangjiang,
Hong Kong Shanghai
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The solvents plant in Taixing, The solvents plant in Jiangmen,
Jiangsu Guangdong

]

URERBEMNOZREE

TR EEELNERERE AR || B ER B 2K

The coatings plant in Jinshan, The coatings plant in Chengdu, The coatings plant in Huizhou,
Shanghai Sichuan Guangdong

IR —

URERPLEHERE AT a2 KE RS E M E H R R
The inks plant in Zhongshan, The inks plant in Tungxiang, The inks plant in Cangzhou,
Guangdong Zhejiang Hebei
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Business Profiles — Solvents
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Solvents form the largest part of the Group’s core businesses
and the Group is the world’s largest acetate solvents producer. A
major turn of event took place in 1993 when Handsome Chemical
Development Limited, a Group subsidiary, set sight on the
opportunities made available from the reform and liberalization
in China and formed a joint venture with Jiangmen Qisheng
Chemical Development Company Limited. By capitalising on the
advantages of a sino-foreign joint venture and by complementing
each other, the two partners were able to achieve 20 years of
dazzling performance.

The Group produces mainly eco-friendly industrial organic solvents.
These include ethyl acetate, normal butyl acetate, mixed butyl
acetate, ethanol and butyl acrylate which are extensively used
in industries in coatings, tannery, medicine and adhesives. The
solvents division has established production bases in Southern
and Eastern China. The new production line of acetate solvents
in Taixing, Jiangsu commenced operation in 2015. The business
maintains a huge sales force and operates a sales network that
covers the whole of China and reaches overseas. By operating
mainly on a direct-sales basis, it manages not only in ensuring
thorough and satisfactory services, but also in affording its sales
team a better understanding of customer needs — a vital edge of
the business.
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Business Profiles — Solvents

EE-MIFERPF  AREBUARARDN Customers have always been the Group’s main concern and the
ERREEREREEEZFRNERER pre- and post-sales customer-oriented services of the solvents
XFE e B RBH I REAE - &K business have, over the years, won the trust and support of
HBESEBUEBTNEME  REEREY customers. We cooperate with world-class chemical companies in
£ sourcing for raw materials of superior and stable quality as a way

to guarantee product quality.

mEFBEERNMSHE R BRI TIEE Presented with China’s huge market demand, Yip’'s Chemical
Wil BT TEIEARBEBLEEER - ERIZE grasps full advantage of the opportunity not only by expanding
FRIERLESLESIN  ERNFRBEB A its acetate solvents capacity to ensure its competitive edge in the
REMEBTESR  WEREREA - industry, but also by developing new related products that offer

synergic effects in order to expand product portfolio.
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Business Profiles — Coatings
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The Bauhinia Coatings Group officially commenced operation
on 1 January 2015 and its business scope covers household and
architectural coatings as well as industrial coatings and resins. The
Bauhinia Coatings Group is formed so that resources in sourcing,
branding, technology, supply chain and human resources can be

effectively shared and economies of scale will be increased to
better serve customers across the country.
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Household and Architectural Paints —
“Bauhinia”

There are three product series under the Bauhinia brand, namely
household paints (water-based emulsion paints and wood paints),
professional architectural paints (inner and outer wall paints)
and industrial paints (furniture paints and anticorrosive paints).
Bauhinia strives to be the leader in China’s household paints
market. With over 4,500 sales outlets covering China’s large and
medium-sized cities as well as the majority of townships, Bauhinia
has won favourable comments and goodwill from innumerable
users. In the architectural paints market, the professional
products and exceptional services of Bauhinia have gained the
confidence of many well-known property developers. With long-
term strategic partnership forged with many of these developers,
projects using Bauhinia professional architectural paints can now
be found across the country. The industrial paints of Bauhinia
have been maintaining rapid growth over the years. Bauhinia’s
superb product quality and professional services have succeeded in
eliciting a high degree of trust from new and old customers alike.
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Business Profiles — Coatings

With the growing environmental awareness and health
consciousness of consumers, Bauhinia has been staying innovative
in order to provide consumers with a safe, healthy and refreshing
home environment. To this end, it has rolled out a number of
new eco-friendly products and developed a range of advanced
environmental technologies.

In order that it can meet the needs of rapid business development
in future, Bauhinia has set up a production base in Jinshan Fine
Chemical Industrial Park in Shanghai. This production base will
have an annual capacity to produce around 200,000 metric tons
of coatings, complementary solvents and associated products.
Phase 1 of the production base has been in operation since 2013,
while Phase 2 came on stream in 2015.

Industrial Coatings

The Group’s industrial coatings consist of a range of products,
including coatings for digital products as well as coatings for use
in toys and electronic products. The Group’s industrial coatings
laboratory is an accredited laboratory recognised by China National
Accreditation Service for Conformity Assessment (“CNAS”). As
such, it can offer testing services upon customer requests. It can
also issue various types of testing reports on customer products
that have the same validity as those issued by China Commodity
Inspection Bureau. This serves not only to provide solid guarantee
on product quality, but also substantially expand the room for
cooperation between the Group and the end-users or using
entities of a host of international brands.

The Group also produces resins, so that vertical integration with
the production of finished coating products can be made. This will
provide the Group with more competitive raw materials and will
further raise product quality.
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Business Profiles — Inks
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Yip's Chemical’s inks business was started in 1998. By now it is
China’s largest supplier of inks under the Bauhinia Variegata brand
and one of the top 20 ink enterprises globally. Plastic printing inks
and paper printing inks for use in food, drinks and gift packaging
and paper printing are the main Bauhinia Variegata products. With
manufacturing bases in strategic locations throughout Southern,
Eastern and Northern China, these products are sold over a
countrywide sales network. In 2013, the company launched post-
printing materials to support the Group’s business integration.

In order to meet safety production requirements, Bauhinia
Variegata takes the lead in establishing separate aromatic-free
production plant and introducing fully piped manufacturing mode.
The Bauhinia Variegata production system is not only equipped
with the most advanced automatic controls, but is also one of the
few in China linked to an Enterprise Resources Planning system.
In addition, in its effort to protect employee health and the
environment, Bauhinia Variegata has also become one of the first
companies in the China’s inks industry in adopting a hazardous
substance process management system.
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Bauhinia Variegata is a staunch advocate of environmental
protection and is leading the industry in both environmentally
friendly products and green technologies. It is not only named an
“Qutstanding Eco-friendly Ink Manufacturer”, its FD series of eco-
friendly soy offset printing inks has also won a “Green Technology
Award” on the basis of its highly effective environmental
properties and clean operation practices. In addition, equipped
with a laboratory that has been certified by CNAS, Bauhinia
Variegata provides a professional product testing service.
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Business Profiles — Lubricants
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The Group has been producing lubricants since 1992 and is now
supplying a complete range of automotive, industrial and specialty
lubricants under the Hercules and Pacoil brand names.

The Hercules lubricants consist of a range of automotive and
industrial lubrication products including engine oils, antifreezes,
system coolants, brake fluids, greases, gear oils, automatic
transmission fluids, hydraulic oils, turbine oils, heat conducting oils,
slideway oils, compressor oils and circulating oils. The lubricating
oil Hercules developed specifically for use in methanol fuel engines
has successfully been recognised as a key achievement by the
National High-tech R&D Programme (the “863 Programme”).
The high performance Pacoil specialty lubricants are mainly used
in umpteen industries in metal processing, automobiles, home
appliances, electronics, steel, toys, power generation, cement,
textiles, foundry, plastics, chemicals, paper making, glass as well
as wires and cables. With a countrywide sales network, Pacoil is
one of the competitive specialty lubricant brands in China.
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Research and Development

Research and Development

Yip’'s Chemical always strives to raise the quality of its various
products and is relentless in developing new ones, so much so that
product research and development (“R&D") is regarded as one of
the mainstays of the Group’s future expansion. As early as 2011,
it had set up an R&D Centre in Shanghai Zhangjiang Hi-tech Park (the
“Centre”). The Centre now boasts an elite team of professionals
and an array of advanced trial production equipment and precise
testing instruments. Through stringent scientific management, the
Centre ensures the reliability and quality of new products.

The Group’s R&D personnel are active in developing innovative
products to further enhance the long-term competitiveness of
the Group. As of year-end of 2015, the Centre and the technical
departments of all subsidiaries have been granted 136 patents by
China’s State Intellectual Property Office. Besides, the Centre was
recognised as “Pudong New Area Enterprise R&D Institution” (&
HHE D EEMIE) by the Science and Technology Commission
of Shanghai Pudong New Area (F/&RRHERERINEES) in
2015. In addition, the Centre has successfully been registered as
a “Little Giant Science and Technology Incubation Enterprise” (£}
F/NE AEZEB %) and awarded with the “National High-tech
Enterprise” (B 5 4% = ¥7 # fi7 & %) qualification. These statuses
highlight the competitive edge of the Centre which will be
instrumental in continuously enhancing the Group’s technological
innovation capability.

As market homogenisation increases, the development of new
products that meet market needs would be vital to the survival
and future expansion of an enterprise. The Group is fully confident
that, in the next three to five years, the Centre will become a
renowned R&D base in chemical technology in mainland, through
which better synergies will be created for existing businesses.
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Five Year Financial Summary
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For the year ended 31 December

—E-1% —2-mE —T-=f —2-F —2——F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
TER TAT TR THT FAT
%18 Results HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ZE Turnover 8,584,225 10,255,839 9,876,033 8,894,409 8,275,569
BRBATE R Profit before taxation 162,034 371,248 391,457 421,344 297,017
T8 Taxation (74,643) (100,280) (79,736) (81,455) (54,850)
AR Profit for the year 87,391 270,968 311,721 339,889 242,167
FE(E % Attributable to
ADNFRRR Owners of the Company 47,847 223,182 250,622 276,302 201,344
JHRER Non-controlling interests 39,544 47,786 61,099 63,587 40,823
87,391 270,968 311,721 339,889 242,167
SREH Per share data
FMBFI (L) Earnings per share (HK cents)
— 27K Basic 8.5 39.7 44.6 494 36.3
— %% Diluted 8.5 39.6 44.4 493 36.1
SRRAE(EN)* Dividend per share (HK cents)* 14.5 25.0 25.0 25.0 24.0
* ZE-—FRIFE-RFEZBRRESHIRERAIRS4.05 1 R4 5 -
* Dividend per share in 2011 and 2015 included the special dividend HK4.0 cents and HK4.5 cents per share, respectively.
Bt# L2 Financial ratios
FHEEERFE Return on average total assets 0.6% 2.7% 3.3% 4.1% 3.5%
THRREE S EHRE Retun on average shareholders’ funds 1.7% 7.5% 8.8% 10.6% 8.4%
R+=ZA=t+-AH
As at 31 December
—E-1F —E-|mE —T-=f —2-f —2——F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
TEx TAT TR TR TAT
BERE(E Assets and Liabilities HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEB(E Total assets 7,439,067 8,282,435 8,128,500 7,143,054 6,440,442
BE4(E Total liabilities (4,394,868) (4,881,739  (4,720,088)  (4,039,783)  (3,648,381)
3,044,199 3,400,696 3,408,412 3,103,271 2,792,061
NSV Ty
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 2,594,459 2,951,008 2,973,042 2,733,196 2,472,281
JEERR#E RS Non-controlling interests 449,740 449,688 435,370 370,075 319,780
3,044,199 3,400,696 3,408,412 3,103,271 2,792,061
RERITEEHRREG LR
Net bank borrowings to shareholders' funds 54% 58% 47% 52% 40%
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EXRBRTBRREZEFEIW
Analysis of Turnover and Segment Results for the Past Five Years

2% Turnover
BEt-A=t-HLEE

For the year ended 31 December
—E-fHf —T-NF —T-=F —T——F —T——F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
FHET THET FHET FH#ET THETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAH Solvents 5,006,792 6,204,174 5,697,296 4,879,302 4,669,150
%#H Coatings 1,890,989 2,140,393 2,182,575 2,297,016 2,093,822
A2 Inks 1,492,634 1,666,183 1,754,440 1,445,498 1,207,989
B Lubricants 348,388 431,837 463,831 433,150 416,201
R5#EE Elimination (154,578)  (186,748)  (222,109)  (160,557)  (111,593)
4% Total 8,584,225 10,255,839 9,876,033 8,894,409 8,275,569

M - RERAE  HE-_T-—NFT A=+ —RHILFE  FEEREEMBRELENESHFE T2 2K ESEERNEXE S
1 OBGRE - (2K (EBBRVEM REEZT-—AFTA=+—HLFE  BETSEBIEERTE A%
B RS EERMSESF - BE2VH BB AU TEESEE - BIGAEE - ()2F - (i)HERERV)EER - LREFTEET
NEAREF 2 2|7 RFE—H -

Note: For management purposes, the Group's reportable operating segments under HKFRS 8 for the year ended 31 December
2014 included four business divisions, namely (i) solvents, (ii) coatings, (iii) lubricants and (iv) others. During the year ended
31 December 2015, for the purposes of assessment of segment performance of each operation, the Group has separated
inks division from coatings division, and the reportable segment has been revised to the following four segments, namely
(i) solvents, (ii) coatings, (iii) inks, and (iv) lubricants. Comparative figures have been restated to conform with the current
year's presentation.
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EEERSEXBEZAFEDIM
Analysis of Turnover And Segment Results For The Past Five Years

o ¥4 Segment Results
BEt-A=1-BL%E

For the year ended 31 December
—E-RfE —T-NF —T-—=F —T-——_F —T——F
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
FET FAxT FAT FAT FAT
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

A8 Solvents 135,596 238,405 271,537 316,290 219,995
Z# Coatings 60,922 47,095 55,580 45,391 12,089
2 Inks 68,857 55,826 75,845 106,235 72,966
JEE A Lubricants (25,519) (2,934) 9,996 (6,107) 4,474
R 5E 3 Elimination 353 180 6,780 (5,552) 3,064
858 Total 240,209 338,572 419,738 456,257 312,588

M - RERAE  BHE-ZT—NFT_A=1+—RHILFE  FEEREEMHRELENESHFE T2 2K ESEERNEXE S
B BOBAE - ()ER - GiVEEBRVEM REBE_T-—AF+_A=+T—ALFE  RETSEHHBENGHE - A%
B hEyFEZRSESF - B2 DB R/ATEESE - BIOFH - (i)2H - (i)m2R(v)EEh - LREFEET
NEAREFFE 2 287 FRFE— -

Note: For management purposes, the Group’s reportable operating segments under HKFRS 8 for the year ended 31 December
2014 included four business divisions, namely (i) solvents, (ii) coatings, (iii) lubricants and (iv) others. During the year ended
31 December 2015, for the purposes of assessment of segment performance of each operation, the Group has separated
inks division from coatings division, and the reportable segment has been revised to the following four segments, namely
(i) solvents, (ii) coatings, (iii) inks, and (iv) lubricants. Comparative figures have been restated to conform with the current
year's presentation.
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Analysis of Turnover And Segment Results For The Past Five Years
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Segment Results swiion
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Liquidity and Financial Resources
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As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s gearing ratio (measured
by net bank borrowings as a percentage of equity attributable to
owners of the Company) was 54% (31 December 2014: 58.1%),
an improvement of 4.1 percentage points. Such decrease in
gearing ratio reflects a remarkable improvement of the Group's
liquidity with increased operating cash inflow of HK$879,748,000
during the year as compared to HK$9,689,000 last year. The
strong improvement in operating cash flow was mainly attributable
to the decrease of trade and bills receivables as the Group’s efforts
to strengthen credit control and expedite accounts collection
started to pay off. Coupled with the completion of the Group’s
major capital investment projects during the year, namely a new
production line at the solvents plant in Taixing, Jiangsu, phase 2
of the coatings plant in Jinshan, Shanghai, and balance payment
for acquisition of the building of the R&D Centre in Zhangjiang,
Shanghai, the need for increased bank loans to finance substantial
investments would be much reduced in the coming few years as
compared to before. It is thus expected that the gearing ratio
should continue to improve and gradually return to a more healthy
level in future.

As at 31 December 2015, the gross bank borrowings of the
Group amounted to HK$2,775,163,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$3,083,410,000). After deduction of short-term bank deposits,
bank balances and cash amounting to HK$1,374,268,000
(31 December 2014: HK$1,367,687,000), the net bank
borrowings amounted to HK$1,400,895,000 (31 December
2014: HK$1,715,723,000). Out of the gross bank borrowings,
HK$1,171,344,000 (31 December 2014: HK$1,811,114,000)
were short-term loans and repayable within one year. Such loans
were denominated in four currencies, namely HK$1,124,764,000
in Hong Kong Dollar, HK$2,359,000 in Renminbi (“RMB"),
HK$25,535,000 in Australian Dollar and HK$18,686,000 in US Dollar
(31 December 2014: HK$1,625,000,000 in Hong Kong Dollar,
HK$16,276,000 in RMB, HK$57,426,000 in Australian Dollar and
HK$112,412,000 in US Dollar). Long-term loans repayable after
one year amounted to HK$1,603,819,000 (31 December 2014:
HK$1,272,296,000), and they were all denominated in Hong Kong
Dollar (31 December 2014: HK$1,243,583,000 were denominated
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

in Hong Kong Dollar and HK$28,713,000 in Australian Dollar).
Out of the short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash,
HK$1,349,905,000 (31 December 2014: HK$1,342,723,000)
were cash and cash equivalents. Such cash and cash equivalents
were denominated in four currencies, namely HK$61,563,000 in
Hong Kong Dollar, HK$1,140,534,000 in RMB, HK$147,767,000
in US Dollar and HK$41,000 in Thai Baht (31 December 2014:
HK$27,452,000 in Hong Kong Dollar, HK$1,285,980,000 in RMB,
HK$25,351,000 in US Dollar and HK$3,940,000 in Thai Baht).

In order to support the capital expenditure and working capital
requirement for the Group’s planned future growth, as well as
the needs for refinancing some of its maturing term loans, the
Group has obtained 4 to 5-year bilateral long-term loans of
HK$950,000,000 in the year under review. As at 31 December
2015, mid to long-term loans (including portions repayable within
one year) accounted for 84% of the total bank loans. Since some
of the borrowings of the Group carry interests at floating rate,
the funding costs are subject to interest rate fluctuation. As the
United States started to raise the federal interest rate by 0.25% in
December 2015, its long awaited interest rate hike cycle seemed
to finally kick off. Due to its currency peg of Hong Kong Dollar
to the US Dollar, it is expected that Hong Kong will sooner or
later follow the United States to start raising its interest rate too.
In anticipation of the rate hike cycle, the Group has used interest
rate swaps in previous years to fix the interest rate of most of its
bilateral long-term and mid-term loans to hedge against the risk
of interest rate fluctuation. As at 31 December 2015, the Group’s
loans under fixed rate arrangement accounted for 71% and
81% of its total and non-current bank borrowings, respectively.
Furthermore, as stated in previous reports, the Group used
currency swap to convert its 3-year bilateral mid-term Australian
dollar loan drawn in 2013 to a Hong Kong Dollar denominated
repayment loan at the drawdown date to hedge against the risk
of exchange rate fluctuation.
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As at 31 December 2015, a total of 23 banks in Hong Kong and
the People’s Republic of China (“PRC") granted banking facilities
totaling HK$5,702,834,000 to the Group, providing sufficient
funds to meet the present working capital and expansion
requirements of the Group. Of these banking facilities, 74%,
18%, 7% and 1% were denominated in Hong Kong Dollar,
RMB, US Dollar and Australian Dollar respectively. The Group has
been arranging Hong Kong Dollar bank loans in Hong Kong for
its China operations to leverage on the lower borrowing rate of
Hong Kong Dollar in Hong Kong and higher deposit rate of RMB
in the Mainland so as to enhance return of funds. Under this
arrangement, the Group has already enjoyed substantial interest
borrowing costs saving in the past years. However, as the Group’s
assets are mainly located in the Mainland and most of its income
is generated in RMB, the Group’s exposure to RMB exchange rate
risk will be enhanced when the RMB depreciates against Hong
Kong Dollar. During 2015, RMB has depreciated against Hong
Kong Dollar by about 5.52% as a result of the change in the daily
fixing of RMB to a more market-driven practice by the People’s
Bank of China in August 2015. To reduce its exposure to RMB
exchange risk, the Group has thus adjusted its treasury strategies
to cope with this new market sentiment on the RMB exchange
rate by remitting back surplus RMB fund in China to Hong Kong
since the second half of 2015 and converting it to Hong Kong
Dollar for repayment of loans in Hong Kong. Furthermore, as the
RMB borrowing basic rate in the Mainland has been reduced by
1.25 percentage points in 2015 and the interest rate in Hong
Kong is expected to follow the US dollar interest rate increase,
the interest rate gap between Hong Kong and the Mainland has
been and is expected to keep narrowing. The Group is therefore
arranging to borrow RMB loans in the Mainland. The Group is also
working closely with its major banks to set up cross-border RMB
cash pooling to facilitate fund management between Hong Kong
and the Mainland. The Group will continue to strike an optimal
balance between lowering borrowing costs and minimizing
currency exposure by structuring an optimal combination of Hong
Kong Dollar, US Dollar, RMB or other foreign currency bank loans.
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Human Resources

As of 31 December 2015, there were 4,069 employees of the
Group. 98 employees were from Hong Kong while 3,971 of them
were from different provinces in China.

The Group places great emphasis on the management and
development of human capital. The employees are encouraged
to strive for improvement through internal and external training
program, on-the-job training and participation in the Group's
educational subsidies, allowing for self-development in knowledge
and skills and to maximize their potential in their work. We
offer suitable platform for development of highly committed and
capable employees, regardless of their background, geographical
region or educational levels. Through versatile experience in
challenging roles, the current management team of the Group has
come through the ranks to advance to positions of management.
Besides the focus of developing employees internally, the Group
seeks not only to attract talent from outside but also recruit
top graduates from the best tertiary institutions in Hong Kong,
Mainland China, and abroad as well as provide them with
training and development opportunities. The Management Trainee
Program has been implementing for a number of years. Some
of the management trainees have demonstrated their excellence
capabilities and been advanced to positions of leadership within
the Group.

The Group offers a challenging work environment, sets up
different programs for motivating employees to strive for
improvement and to upgrade their skills in order to sustain the
development of business. From time to time, the Group will make
reference to market trends for the review of remuneration policy
SO as to ensure reasonable and competitive compensation and
benefits. These include basic salary and performance-based bonus
to attract and retain talents.
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In its constant striving for higher business performance and
sustained development, Yip’s Chemical is also committed to
reciprocating society and helping the underprivileged so as to
strike a balance between the two endeavours. The Group takes
it as its responsibility to undertake corporate social responsibility
("CSR") and sees CSR as a long-term worthy commitment. It
is also committed to incorporating the concept of sustainable
development into its business operations and management
processes to better achieve an all-win situation and comprehensive
development for the economy, society and the environment.

A. Environmental
A1.Clean Production

The Group pursues energy conservation and emission reduction
vigorously. Clean production is keenly enforced in its factories
and no effort is spared in minimising pollution generated during
production.

In 2015, the Jiangmen plant under the solvents subsidiary of
Yip's Chemical enhanced the desulphurisation and dust removal
capabilities of its exhaust gas treatment facility to satisfy
increasingly stringent environment requirements. The renovated
facility can now more effectively remove the sulphur dioxide,
nitrogen oxide and dust particles in the exhaust gas of the plant
S0 as to minimise environmental impacts on the neighbourhood. In
addition, the plant captured and treated waste gas emitted from
its production workshops. As well, by process improvement in
these workshops, waste water was reduced by as much as 70%.
In the period, the Taixing plant of the solvents subsidiary used a
new boiler and renewed its waste gas treatment facility. As the
new boiler can use methane generated in production as part of its
fuel mix, energy consumption and emission were reduced.
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Corporate Social Responsibility

A2.Research and Development of Green
Products

The Bauhinia Coatings Group of Yip's Chemical has always
concerned itself with environmental benefits. In maintaining the
R&D objective of achieving “eco-friendliness, low carbon and
high performance”, it has been continuously developing quality
coating products suitable for the China market. In the period
under review, an F1 water-based “Water and Wood in Perfect
Harmony” wood paint was launched in response to consumer
demand for water-based coatings. This product does not have
harmful additives such as benzene, mercury and lead; does not
contain any dissociated toluene diisocyanate; and is low in volatile
organic chemical contents. As such, it is ideal for use in indoor
wood furniture, weatherboards and wood decorations.

4

TRIE smznn

Waler-Based Wood Falnl Series

BT 0 R A

In addition to water-based household paints, Bauhinia Coatings
Group also provides its industrial clients with comprehensive eco-
friendly coating solutions. In the period, an odourless PU furniture
paint was introduced to the market. By using pure and eco-
friendly raw materials and the adoption of a hi-tech coating film-
forming odour removal process, significant odourless effect is
achieved and consumers would no longer be bothered by odour
residue problems in furniture coatings. At the same time, to
meet the furniture industry’s rising environmental requirements,
Bauhinia Coatings Group actively promoted its range of water-
based furniture paints that employ high-grade imported agueous
emulsions which are free from benzene, mercury, lead as well
as low in dissociated toluene diisocyanate and in volatile organic
chemicals.
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Other green products included a nano heat-reflecting coating
and a self-cleaning protective coating. In the former, a specially
polymerised nano emulsion is used to achieve significant heat-
reflecting and insulation effects and lower energy consumption
for cooling. In the latter, the super-hydrophobic water resistant
self-cleaning coating formed after spray painting would provide
outstanding dirt-resistant properties. This reduces the maintenance
cost of outer walls and conserves resources and is a response to
the energy conservation and environmental protection trends of
industries in construction, manufacturing and logistics. In addition,
during the period, a water-based nano coating for high-definition
projection was also launched. This is an eco-friendly coating that
does not contain harmful substances such as heavy metals and
formaldehyde and can be used on screen curtains, background
walls, wood, plastics or glasses.

A3.Use of Resources

The Group is committed to raising the environmental
consciousness of its employees by encouraging them to adopt
good energy housekeeping and minimise waste systematically at
the job and personal levels.

On the heels of the success of the Group’s headquarters in Hong
Kong in further reducing power consumption by replacing some T5
fluorescent tubes with LED lights, the programme was replicated
in the coatings plant in Huizhou where half of the fluorescent
tubes were replaced by energy-saving LED tubes. Furthermore,
when outdoor temperature drops to 20°C, all air-conditioners
in the plant would be turned off. In addition, to encourage the
adoption of environmental practices by our colleagues in their
work procedures, reminders on minimising power usage and paper
consumption were posted.
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With the help of the Group Equipment Technology Department,
the Huizhou plant of Bauhinia Coatings Group implemented in
2015 a "Wake Up"” campaign to promote energy conservation
and technology upgrading. The campaign involved the upgrading
of the cooling water machine and related pipelines and resulted
in substantial reduction in energy consumption and increases in
efficiency. A number of upgrading measures to conserve energy
were also implemented at the Group’s Jiangmen solvents factory,
including the installation of a variable-frequency drive to the
stirrer, upgrading the cooling water system and addition of a heat
exchanger that together reduce energy consumption significantly.

A4. Active Support of Green Activities

Yip’s Chemical actively supports and participates in activities
organised by various environmental bodies in Hong Kong and
the mainland to raise staff awareness on low-carbon living and
environmental protection.
team organised staff in eastern China to visit Cenbu Village, a
designated national eco-village
in Shanghai. The purpose was
to raise their awareness of
natural farming and let them
have a chance of improving
the ecosystem at Shanghai’s

water source. 2015 was also mﬁﬁ]
the fourth straight year since

RESBEER
2012 that the corporate

-
volunteer team participated o
in the Earth Hour energy -

In the year, its corporate volunteer

Wl‘lrJ

conservation activity run by

World Wide Fund for Nature. 20:30-21:30)
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B. Social -
I) Employment and Labour Practices
B1. Safety First

Since its establishment in 2012, the Group Health, Safety and
Environment Committee (the “Group HSE Committee”) has been
raising the Group’s performance in health, safety and environment
("HSE") continuously while striving to safeguard the health and
safety of the staff and various stakeholders in its operations. In
the year, the Group HSE Committee convened four meetings to
discuss and review the health, safety and environmental status of
the Group and its subsidiaries in order to ensure that all relevant
safety regulations and requirements were strictly abided by all
departments. Members of the Group HSE Committee also carried
out safety inspections in three mainland plants during the year.

The Health, Safety and Environment Department (the “HSE
Department”) is mainly responsible for supervising health and
safety matters within the Group and in all subsidiaries. It carries
out factory safety inspections on a regular basis. Last year,
after carrying out 21 general inspections and 9 single-aspect
inspections, it offered suggestions to the factories concerned
and requested corrective actions as a way to improve safety
management continuously. In a bid to raise inspection standards,
the HSE Department invited a third party to carry out safety
inspection so as to assess the safety standard of the plants
objectively. The Group and its subsidiaries carried out 139,440
hours of HSE related training.

B2. Staff Development and Training

It is the conviction of Yip’s Chemical that personnel are an
important factor in maintaining the competitiveness and vitality of
a corporation. For this, it regards employees as its lifeblood and
their training and caring are of crucial importance.

For the long-term planning of the setting up of a talent bank
and the nurturing of leadership, the Group has established a
“Senior Management Career Development Committee” (the
"Committee”) which is composed of all related top management
in the Group. The Committee will continuously and regularly carry
out discussions and planning of all key posts and personnel for all
business segments and departments of the Group, and will set up
and nurture a reserve echelon of senior management.
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In response to the ever-changing market environment to enable
the sustained and steady development of the Group and to realise
the Group's corporate vision, it is necessary that all staff members
of the Group and its subsidiaries have to make relevant changes
to keep pace with market development. Last August, the Group
ran its first “Embracing Changes” workshop to explore effective
change solutions as a way to lay the foundation for the sustained
development of the Group.

“Embracing Changes” was also the theme in the annual meeting
of top management in early 2016 so as to promote the message
of “Change” continuously. In future, through a series of “Change”
related training courses, the Group will ensure that all employees
can adhere to the concept and continue innovating.

The independently run Yip's Care Extension Foundation (the
“Foundation”) was set up in 2011 by three founding shareholders
of the Group through the private donation of four million Yip's
Chemical shares. In addition to helping the descendants of needy
employees receive better and higher education, the Foundation
also offers retirement gratuities to recognise the contribution of
retiring employees.

In 2015, the Foundation approved 196 cases of regular
applications for education sponsorship. Together with 5 cases
arising from sudden changes in financial situations, the total
sponsorship amount was about HK$836,000. The number of
sponsorship cases and sponsorship amount was up 15% and 6%
from last year respectively. In the year, a total of 18 employees
from the Group and subsidiaries qualified for retirement gratuity
and a total of RMB233,000 retirement gratuity was dispensed.

Il) Operation Practices

In 2014, the Board adopted the “Group Code of Ethics and
Conducts” which, by outlining the Group’s core values and
standards of behaviour, provides guidelines for all systems,
decisions and conducts within the Group, thereby protecting the
reasonable interests of all its stakeholders including investors,
creditors, employees, customers, suppliers as well as society at
large.
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B3. Nurturing an “Ethical and Merit-based”
Corporate Culture

To support the long-term development of the Group’s businesses,
employees at all levels must be both competent and ethically
reliable. Effective team building and promotion of the Group’s
core values will be important strategies for the Group.

In 2012, 18 codes of conduct were drawn up to help employees at
all levels understand how to demonstrate responsible and ethical
behaviours towards clients, shareholders, superiors, subordinates
and other stakeholders. The Group has been organising different
types of activities and training to help employees understand and
apply these 18 codes of conduct in depth to ensure that they can
demonstrate ethical behaviours in their respective work posts.

Following the “Ethical and Merit-based Behaviour” micro-film
production competition organized in the previous year, a lyrics
competition was conducted last year. Entries were invited to
provide lyrics to promote ethical and merit-based behaviour based
on the 18 codes of conduct for an originally composed song
supplied by the Group.

lll) Community Participation

The Board adopted the “Policy on Community Investments,
Sponsorships and Donation” in 2014. Applicable to the Group
and all its subsidiaries, this policy aims at setting up consistent
guidelines and standards in the allocation of resources to
community investments, sponsorships and donation with the view
to further promoting the strategic and effective use of resources
so that, while contributing towards community development at
the localities of operation, balanced and healthy development of
businesses can also be achieved.

B4. Mobile Eye Surgery Centre Donation
Programme

Since 2010 Yip's Chemical has been running a “10-Year Mobile
Eye Surgery Centre Donation Programme” in collaboration with
Asian Foundation for the Prevention of Blindness and China
Disabled Persons’ Foundation (“CDPF”). The objective is to restore
vision for mainland cataract patients through the donation of
mobile eye surgery units equipped with advanced ophthalmological
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surgery equipment. To date, the Group has already donated
seven such mobile units respectively to lJiangsu, Shandong, Inner
Mongolia, Yunnan, Heilongjiang, Shanxi and Hunan, amounting to
some HK$18 million in total donation. Up to 31 December 2015
since the launch of the programme, the mobile eye surgery units
donated by the Group have provided cataract removal surgery for
50,597 patients.

In order that the cataract patients can live a colourful new life after
their surgery, the Group has gone a step further to help them. For
the patients receiving cataract removal surgery on the day when a
mobile eye surgery unit was donated to Shanxi, Bauhinia Coatings
Group offered to repaint the walls of their homes, including
treating problems such as the peeling off, cracking or moulding of
old paints. By improving their living environment, it is hoped that
these patients can enjoy their colourful renovated homes and start
a new life after the restoration of their vision.

In addition to donating the mobile surgery units, every year Yip's
Chemical Volunteers, the corporate volunteer team, also calls on
employees of the Group and its mainland subsidiaries to go to
the recipient provinces and pay a three-day visit to gain a better
understanding of the significance and effectiveness of the mobile
units. In the period under review, 17 members of the team
went to Shanxi to carry out cataract prevention education and
visit cataract patients and ex-patients. Last year, the team even
appealed to other stakeholders such as distributors to volunteer
for mini-visit lasting half a day to the mobile eye surgery unit in
Shandong.
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B5. Corporate Volunteer Team

Since its inception in September 2011, Yip's Chemical Volunteers
has been upholding the principle of “From the Community, For the
Community” in promoting volunteer work. They regularly organise
and participate in a range of volunteer activities and encourage
their colleagues to go into communities and help people in need.
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In 2015, Yip's Chemical joined hands with St. James’ Settlement
in a year-round volunteer activity: the “Cross-Gen Mentoring
Programme” (the “Programme”) (Z /L AERIAETE]). The theme
of this Programme is “inter-generational integration” and the
service targets are seniors and their grandchildren (primary school
pupils) living with them in Sham Shui Po district. One common
characteristic of these families is that they are living in poverty and
the parents of the children are mostly divorced or working outside
of Hong Kong. Members of the corporate volunteer team were
mentors and friends with these grandparent-grandchildren groups.
By engaging them in a series of inter-generational integration
activities, it is hoped that problems with cross-generational care
giving can be alleviated, inter-generational communication can be
facilitated and messages in filial piety can be conveyed.

Six activities were included in the Programme, namely “Mentor
Matching”, “Farm Experiencing”, “Home Visiting”, “Happy
Gathering”, “Respect for the Aged Party” and “Graduation
Ceremony”. In addition to the above activities, the corporate
volunteer team also arranged the free enrolment of participating
grandparents and grandchildren in ink-wash painting classes or
African drum classes to strengthen communication among them
and to tap the art potentials of the schoolchildren.

The Group has been striving to make use of its special know-
how to help improve communities. Last year Bauhinia Coatings
Group organised a “Charity House Painting” programme to
help Shanghai Huge Grace Disabled Children’s Welfare Centre
repaint its outer walls and replace old window and door frames.
In a three-month period, the whole of the 3,000 sq. m welfare
home was fully repainted. With the help of China Youth Daily, a
nationwide newspaper, several hundred drawings were collected
from society for decorating the welfare centre. Five of the
drawings were even used for making murals on the outer walls.
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Mainland members of the corporate volunteer team were also
active in engaging in charity work and their primary focus was
promoting green living and caring the underprivileged groups. The
community activities they organised in the year included collecting
and sorting solid wastes; visiting children’s welfare homes, senior
citizens and needy families; and sending out daily necessities and
learning aids to poor children.

In 2015, Yip’s Chemical employees in Hong Kong and the
mainland and their relatives and friends contributed a total of 1,288
hours of volunteer service involving 222 participants. Since the
establishment of Yip’s Chemical Volunteers in September 2011,
the accumulated hours of services and number of participants are
5,482 hours and 1,070 persons respectively.

B6. Student Sponsorship and Scholarship

For ten straight years since 2006 Yip's Chemical has been carrying
out a student sponsorship programme in Jiangmen, Guangdong.
In 2015, the Group donated about RMB600,000 for sponsoring
100 poor needy students who excelled in the matriculation
examination, for awarding scholarship to the top 15 students from
the arts stream and science stream in matriculation classes and for
recognising 22 outstanding teachers of graduating classes.

Yip's Chemical is also actively involved in the “Seagull Scholarship
Programme” by offering summer internship to undergraduates
sponsored by the non-profit organisation running the programme.
In 2015, the Group provided one-month internship for 22 Seagull-
sponsored undergraduates at various departments of its subsidiary.
On top of getting paid for their work, each intern was also given
free meal, room and board as well as transportation expenses.
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Mr. Yip Tsz Hin

Chairman and Non-executive Director

Mr. Ip Chi Shing, aged 68, is the Chairman and the Co-founder
of the Group and Mr. Ip was re-designated as the Chairman of
the Group and a Non-executive Director of the Company in 2012.
Mr. Ip focuses on the leading of the Board, the Group’s long-term
development strategy and the planning and inheritability of human
resources of the Group. He is the brother of Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, the
Deputy Chairman of the Group, a Co-Chief Executive Officer of
the Group, an Executive Director of the Company as well as a
member of the Senior Leadership Team and the father of Mr. Ip
Kwan, a member of the Senior Leadership Team. In 2006, Mr. Ip
established “Ip Chi Shing Charitable Foundation Limited” with the
objectives of fostering education in China and providing care for
the underprivileged groups in Hong Kong.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, aged 57, joined the Group in 1977. Mr. Yip
is the Deputy Chairman of the Group, a Co-Chief Executive
Officer of the Group, an Executive Director of the Company and
a member of Senior Leadership Team. Mr. Yip has over 30 years
of experience in the manufacture of and trading in petrochemical
products. He is the brother of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, the Chairman of
the Group and a Non-executive Director of the Company.
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Mr. Ho Sai Hou

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Wong Yuk, aged 52, joined the Group in 2015. Mr. Wong is
a Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Group, an Executive Director
of the Company and a member of the Senior Leadership Team. He
was appointed as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Group
before assuming his current positions. Mr. Wong obtained a
Bachelor of Science in Mechanical Engineering from The University
of Hong Kong and completed a Master of Business Administration
with The Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1992. Before he
joined the Group, he was the Managing Director — China Strategy
and Investment of Methanex, a global market leader in methanol.
He had also worked with Shell for over 26 years and was its
General Manager — Shell Specialities China/Hong Kong and China
Local Senior Downstream Representative. Mr. Wong has close to
30 years of extensive experience in the petrochemical industry.

Mr. Ho Sai Hou, aged 49, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Ho is
the Chief Financial Officer of the Group, an Executive Director
of the Company, a member of the Senior Leadership Team
and the Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Ho obtained
a Bachelor of Social Sciences Degree in Accounting from The
University of Hong Kong and completed his EMBA with The China
Europe International Business School in 2007. Previously, Mr. Ho
had worked for several listed companies in Hong Kong as their
chief financial officer, executive director and company secretary.
He is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 20
years of experience in accounting, finance, taxation and company
secretarial work.
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BERSEE vA

Mr. Tong Wui Tung

Mr. Wong Kong Chi

Executive Directors (continued)

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu, aged 51, joined the Group in 1987.
Mr. Kwong is an Executive Director of the Company and a member
of the Senior Management Team. Mr. Kwong was appointed as
the General Manager of the Inks Group in 2015. He obtained
a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from The Open
University of Hong Kong and has over 20 years of experience in
the field of marketing and management of petrochemical industry.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Tong Wui Tung, aged 66, was elected as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in 1993 and was
re-designated as a Non-executive Director of the Company in
2004. Mr. Tong is a partner of the law firm, Messrs. Cheung Tong
& Rosa Solicitors, legal advisers of the Group on Hong Kong Law
which receives usual professional fees in connection with services
rendered to the Group. Mr. Tong has been practising as a solicitor
in Hong Kong for over 30 years and is also an independent non-
executive director of Country Garden Holdings Company Limited,
a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kong Chi, aged 58, has been an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company since 1993. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Wong retired in 1993 after
working in the merchant banking industry for over 10 years.
Mr. Wong does not hold any directorship in other listed companies.
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Mr. Ng Siu Ping
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Independent Non-executive Directors
(Continued)

Mr. Ku Yuen Fun, aged 64, has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2008. Mr. Ku graduated from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University) and began his career at Shell Chemicals. Mr. Ku has
extensive managerial experience in the oil & petrochemical industries
in the Greater China region. He was a Director of Shell Hong Kong
Limited, a Board Director of the Business Environment Council
and the Chairman of Tianjin International Petroleum Storage
and Transportation Company Limited. Mr. Ku does not hold any
directorship in other listed companies.

Mr. Ng Siu Ping, aged 57, joined the Group in 1991 and was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 1992.
Mr. Ng retired in 2011 and was thereafter re-designated as a Non-
executive Director of the Company. He was re-designated as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in 2014. Mr. Ng
obtained a Higher Diploma in Accountancy from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic (now known as the Hong Kong Polytechnic University)
and a Master Degree of Science in Corporate Governance and
Directorship from the Hong Kong Baptist University. He is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Ng has over 30 years of experience
in the field of auditing and accounting. Mr. Ng does not hold any
directorship in other listed companies.
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Management Executives

Mr. Ip Kwan, aged 33, joined the Group as an assistant to
Director of the Group in 2007. Mr. lp is @ member of the Senior
Leadership Team and the President of the Bauhinia Coatings
Group. He has been the General Manager of the Hong Kong
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing (Greater China) Company Limited
since 2011. He is the son of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, the Chairman of
the Group and a Non-executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from the London School of Economics with a Bachelor’s
degree in Government and Economics. Before joining the Group,
he had worked in the investment banking industry for three years.

Mr. Fung Ping Kwong, aged 52, joined the Group in 2010. Mr. Fung
is the Head and Senior Leader of Group Human Resources and a
member of the Senior Leadership Team. He obtained a Bachelor’s
Degree in Science (Economics) from The University of London, a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from The University of
Warwick and a Diploma in Training Management jointly conferred by
The Chinese University of Hong Kong and The Institute of Personnel and
Development, United Kingdom. Mr. Fung has extensive experience in
different human resources areas including organisational development,
management development, talent management and employee relations.
He worked in a number of multi-national companies from insurance,
petrochemical and pharmaceutical industries. Before he joined the
Group, he was the Group HR Director of a Hong Kong listed company.

Ms. Yau Ching Man, aged 32, joined the Group as Executive
Management Trainee in 2005. Ms. Yau is the Head of Operations
and a member of the Senior Leadership Team. She was the
General Manager of Best Lubricant Blending Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. Ms. Yau holds a Bachelor Degree
in Computer Engineering from The University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Zhao Chu Bang, aged 54, is an experienced engineer.
Mr. Zhao joined the Group in 1993 and has been the Managing
Director of the Jiangmen Handsome Chemical Development
Limited since 2005. He graduated from The South China University
of Technology. Mr. Zhao has over 30 years of experience in the
chemical industry and has extensive experience in management.

Mr. Chen Zhen Xin, aged 35, joined the Group in 2015.
Mr. Chen is the General Manager of Lubricant Group.
Mr. Chen graduated from Remin University of China, School
of International Studies. Prior to joining the Group, he has
various working experience in lubricant procurement, logistics,
project management, enterprise resource planning systems,
manufacturing, business development, sales and retail gas station
networking. Mr. Chen has over 13 years of experience in oil-
chemical industry.
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Management Executives (continued)

Mr. Leung Wing Ching Isaac, aged 48, joined the Group in
1996 and is the Financial Controller of the Group. Mr. Leung is
a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He obtained a Bachelor’'s Degree in Accountancy
from The City University of Hong Kong and has over 20 years of
experience in the field of auditing, finance and management.

Ms. Tse Yik Chu, aged 39, joined the Group in 2009. Ms. Tse is
now the Investor Relations and Corporate Communications Director
of the Group. Ms. Tse obtained a Bachelor of Communication
from the Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master of Science in
Finance from the National University of Ireland. Prior to joining the
Group, Ms. Tse engaged in corporate affairs in an international
oil company. Ms. Tse also actively involves in public service and
she is now a committee member of the Advisory Committee on
Enhancing Employment of People with Disabilities, Social Welfare
Department a committee member of Rehabilitation Advisory
Committee Sub-committee on Public Education on Rehabilitation,
an executive committee member of Support the Employment of
People with Disabilities (SEPD), a non-governmental organisation.
She has more than ten years of experience in media and corporate
communications.

Dr. Chow Mai Mai, Miranda, aged 39, joined the Group as
Executive Management Trainee in 2003. Dr. Chow is the Head
of Corporate Development of the Group. Dr. Chow got her PhD
from the University of Cambridge and completed MBA program
at the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
2009. She joined the Group after completing her PhD studies
in the University of Cambridge. She was the Head of Research
& Development of the Group. Dr. Chow has nearly 13 years of
experience in chemical industry.

Dr. Kang Ning, aged 46, joined the Group in 2016. Dr. Kang
is the Chief Technology Officer of the Group. Dr. Kang got his
PhD from Institute of Chemistry, Chinese Academy of Sciences
and completed postdoctoral research at McGill University and
the University of Montreal. Before he joined the Group, he was a
manager of biomaterials division at Polymer Source Inc. (Canada),
professor (PhD supervisor) and team leader at Qingdao Institute
of Bioenergy and Bioprocess Technology at Chinese Academy
of Sciences, technical leader of Formulation Science in The
Dow Chemical Company, Asia Pacific Technical Director of PPG
Packaging Coatings, President of Jiangsu Changshun Group Co.,
Ltd. Research Institute, etc. Dr. Kang has nearly 25-year experience
in chemical area.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) present their
annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture of and trading in
solvents, coatings, inks and lubricants. There were no significant
changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year ended 31 December 2015.

Details of the activities during the year ended 31 December
2015 including, a fair review of the business of the Group with
financial performance indicators and an indication of likely future
development in the Company’s business are explained in the
Chairman’s Statement and the Report of the Co-Chief Executive
Officers from pages 8 to 17 of this annual report. Particulars of
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the financial year, if any, can be found in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements. The Group’s liquidity and
financial resources are discussed in pages 42 to 44. Furthermore,
the environmental policies and performance of the Group are
shown in pages 48 to 51 of the Corporate Social Responsibility
Report. Save as the above sections, details of the other activities
required to be disclosed are explained as follows:

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s businesses and prospects as well as financial
conditions and results of operations will be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties including business risks, operational risks
and financial risks. For business risks, all the Group’s businesses
are mainly carried out in the mainland so it will be subject to the
economic and political development and market situation of the
PRC. For operational risks, the Group is engaged in manufacturing
of chemical products and it is thus exposed to various
environmental, health and safety risks in running its operations.
For financial risks, the Group’s financial assets and liabilities will
have market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk associated therewith. Details of
the policies on how to mitigate these financial risks are set out in
note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Directors’ Report

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and
Regulations

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the year, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.

The relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on
the Company include, among others, the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622), the Cayman Islands Company Law
and the regulations in relation to its business including health,
safety and environmental protection, workplace conditions and
employment. In addition, the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited apply to
the Company.

The Company seeks to ensure compliance with these requirements
through various measures such as internal control, risk
management and trainings.

Relationship with Customers, Suppliers,
Employees and other Stakeholders

The Group maintains a large number of customers and suppliers,
which spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. The
Group has good relationship with its customers and suppliers. The
Group's relationship with its employees and with investors and
shareholders are shown in pages 52 to 53 of the Corporate Social
Responsibility Report and in pages 90 to 95 of the Corporate
Governance Report, respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY AND LONG-TERM
INCENTIVE PLAN

The general description of remuneration policy of the Group is
shown in page 45 of the section headed “Human Resources”.

Long-term incentive plan primarily consists of Share Option
Schemes. Please refer to pages 70 to 72 of this report and note
31 to the consolidated financial statements for the details of the
Share Option Schemes.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group and appropriations of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on
page 98 and note 11 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively. An interim dividend of HK10 cents per share was
paid to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
during the year. The Directors propose the distribution of a
special dividend of HK4.5 cents per share totalling not less than
HK$25,367,000 to Shareholders whose names appear on the
Register of Members at the close of business on 17 June 2016
and the retention of the remaining profit in reserves.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
page 101 of the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution of the special
dividend represent the share premium, special reserve and
retained profits. Under Chapter 22 of the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands, the share premium of the Company is
available for distribution of or paying dividends to Shareholders
subject to the provisions of its Memorandum and Articles
of Association and provided that immediately following the
distribution of dividend, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In accordance
with the Company’s articles of association, dividends can be
distributed out of the distributable profit of the Company, which
amounted to HK$665,488,000 as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
HK$634,574,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group during the year are set
out in notes 13 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2015 are set out in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and as at the date of this report
were:

Chairman & Non-executive Director:

Mr. Ip Chi Shing

Executive Directors:

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin (Deputy Chairman and Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Co-Chief Executive Officer
with effect from 1 January 2016)

Mr. Wong Kam Yim (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned with effect from 1 January 2016)

Mr. Wong Yuk (Co-Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned as Deputy Chief Executive Officer and appointed
as Co-Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
with effect from 1 January 2016)

Mr. Ho Sai Hou (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Tong Wui Tung

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Wong Kong Chi
Mr. Li Chak Man
(resigned on 30 June 2015)
Mr. Ku Yuen Fun
Mr. Ng Siu Ping

In accordance with article 95 of the Company’s Article, Mr. Wong
Yuk, the newly appointed Executive Director, shall hold office
until conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company (“AGM") and shall be eligible for re-election at that
meeting. Also, according to article 112 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Wong Kong Chi, Mr. Ku Yuen Fun and Mr. Ng
Siu Ping, being Independent Non-executive Directors, will retire by
rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election as Directors at the AGM. All remaining Directors will
continue in office. Each of the Non-executive and Independent
Non-executive Directors was appointed for a specific term until the
closing of the next annual general meeting at which he is being
re-elected by the Shareholders.
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No Director being proposed for re-election at the AGM has a
service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The fees of the Non-executive and Independent Non-executive
Directors are determined by the Board. The emolument payable
to the Directors is determined with reference to their qualification
and experience, responsibilities undertaken, contribution to the
Company and the prevailing market level of remuneration of
similar position.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, at 31 December 2015,
the interests of the Directors and their respective associates in
the shares of the Company (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) which are required
(a) to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of the Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken under
such provision of the SFO); or (b) to be recorded in the register
to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO; or (c) pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
were as follows:

5y Long positions
FEEEROR BRSNS .
Number of Ordinary Shares and Underlying Shares held +=B=+-H
RiER — RAER iy 5+ BRERR BEARBRORE
Interests in ZBA
Interests in  Interests in Interests in Share Percentage of the
Shares Shares Shares Options’ Issued Share Capital
BA Ed:3 27 A By of the Company
BEpg Name of Directors Personal Family Corporate Personal Total as at 31.12.2015
EEMmEE Mr. Ip Chi Shing 155,042,532 8,802,000 (a) 24,380,000 (b) - 188,224,532 33.39%
Erens Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 34,240,248 20,000,000 (c) - - 54,240,248 9.62%
BeERE Mr. Wong Kam Yim? 1,308,000 - - 700,000 2,008,000 0.36%
AEEEE Mr. Ho Sai Hou - - - 200,000 200,000 0.04%
BEREE Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu - - - 200,000 200,000 0.04%
EERLE Mr. Tong Wui Tung - 700,000 (d) - - 700,000 0.12%
BEERA Mr. Wong Kong Chi - 100,000 (e) - - 100,000 0.02%
hESEE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 20,680 14,000 (f) - - 34,680 0.01%
RATRAE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 2,532,000 50,000 (g) - - 2,582,000 0.46%

ERCIEEERAA - —T - HFEFR
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECUR'T'ES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(0

QOut of these shares, 6,796,000 shares are jointly held with Madam
Liang Bih Yu, the wife of Mr. Ip Chi Shing and 2,006,000 shares are
held by his wife.

These shares are held respectively by Ip Chi Shing Charitable
Foundation Limited, a charitable organisation (20,300,000 shares)
and Yip's Care Extension Foundation Limited, a limited company,
(4,080,000 shares). Mr. Ip Chi Shing controls 50% (together with his
wife control 100%) and 60% (together with his younger sister and
brother control 100%) of the voting power at the general meetings
of Ip Chi Shing Charitable Foundation Limited and Yip's Care
Extension Foundation Limited respectively. He is therefore deemed to
be interested in these shares held by these two corporations.

These shares are held by Madam Yip Tso Ka Lai, Brenda, the wife of
Mr. Yip Tsz Hin.

These shares are held by Madam Lau Mui Sum, the wife of Mr. Tong
Wui Tung.

These shares are held by Madam Jim Siu Wai, the wife of Mr. Wong
Kong Chi.

These shares are held by Madam So Yim Ha, the wife of Mr. Ku Yuen
Fun.

These shares are held by Madam Siu Oi Li, Maicy, the wife of Mr. Ng
Siu Ping.

All the share options are unlisted physically settled equity derivatives.

Mr. Wong Kam Yim resigned as Executive Director with effect from 1
January 2016.

Details of the share options held by the Directors under the

Company's share option schemes (i.e. the interests in the

underlying shares) are shown in the next section headed “Share
Options”.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECUR'T'ES (Continued)

Each of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, Mr. Yip Tsz Hin and Madam Liang Bih
Yu, the wife of Mr. Ip Chi Shing, holds one non-voting deferred
share of Yip's H.C. (Holding) Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above and certain nominee shares in
subsidiaries held by Directors in trust for the Company or its
subsidiaries, as at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors,
chief executive nor their associates held any interests or short
positions in the securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SFO.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Shareholders at the AGM held on 25 May 2012 approved the
adoption of a new share option scheme (the “New Share Option
Scheme”) and the termination of the old share option scheme
which was adopted by the Company on 3 September 2002 (the
“Old Share Option Scheme”, together with the “New Share
Option Scheme”, collectively known as “Share Option Schemes”).
The New Share Option Scheme will expire on 24 May 2022.
Options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme prior to its
termination will continue to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the rules thereof. The main purpose of the New Share Option
Scheme is to recognise and motivate the contribution of eligible
participants, to provide incentives to them, to help the Company
retain eligible participants and recruit additional employees and to
provide them with a direct economic interest in attaining the long
term business objectives of the Company. Particulars of the New
Share Option Scheme are set out in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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During the year ended 31 December 2015, movements in the number
of options which had been granted to certain Directors and employees

under the Company'’s Share Option Schemes are as follows:

BREYE
Number of Share Options
R-2-1% R-B-1f
-A-B rEE XEE +ZA=t-H
RLAH BRETES fTfE HARTE B BAR/EH# KA
Exercise period Exercise  Outstanding Exercised Lapsed/Cancelled  Outstanding
Date of grant of share options price  asat1.1.2015 during the year during the year as at 31.12.2015
B
HKS
gz
Directors
EEMEEE ZETRETACTNA ZEERETACTMAER
Mr. Wong Kam Yim' ZZ-RETAZT=H
24.10.2005 24.10.2005 to 23.10.2015 2.004 200,000 (200,000) - -
“ERLEMAZA “ERLEMAZE
“2tERAZH
3.4.2007 3.4.2007 to 2.4.2017 4.050 200,000 - - 200,000
ZER\ETAZT-B ZER\ETA=T-HE%
“E2-\E+A=TH
31.10.2008 31.10.2008 t0 30.10.2018 1.950 100,000 - - 100,000
ZZZNETARRA “ZTNETARAZ
“E2-NEtANA
5.10.2009 5.10.2009 to 4.10.2019 4536 200,000 - - 200,000
“5-=F-ft-B CZE-Rf-Af-RE
“B_=%-A1R
11.1.2013 11.1.2015 t0 10.1.2023 5.942 200,000 - - 200,000
It &EsE “F-Z5-At-B ZE-RE-Af-BEZ
Mr. Ho Sai Hou “3I=E-A1H
11.1.2013 11.1.2015 t0 10.1.2023 5.942 200,000 - - 200,000
BERSEE Z3-=f-f+-B ZT-RF-ft+-BHZ
Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu ZZ--%-A1H
11.1.2013 11.1.2015 t0 10.1.2023 5.942 200,000 - - 200,000
1,300,000 (200,000) - 1,100,000
81 ZETRETACTER ZZERETACTHER
Employees ZF-RETAZT=A
24.10.2005 24.10.2005 to 23.10.2015 2.004 376,000 (376,000) - -
“ZZHENA=A “ERHEMAZE
“2—tEMAZH
3.4.2007 3.4.2007 to 2.4.2017 4.050 478,000 (200,000) - 278,000
ZER\ETAZT-B ZEE\ETA=t-RE
“E2-\EtA=1H
31.10.2008 31.10.2008 t0 30.10.2018 1.950 440,000 (180,000) (40,000) 220,000
“ETNETARA “ERNETARAE
“E-NE+ARE
5.10.2009 5.10.2009 to 4.10.2019 4536 1,186,000 - (336,000) 850,000
“2E-At-B  “3-EE-AtRE
Z3Z-F-A1H
11.1.2013 11.1.2015 t0 10.1.2023 5.942 6,480,000 - (1,120,000) 5,360,000
8,960,000 (756,000) (1,496,000) 6,708,000
10,260,000 (956,000) (1,496,000) 7,808,000

! HERERER T RF A - BRERE !

HITES -

Mr. Wong Kam Yim resigned as Executive Director with effect from 1
January 2016.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, no option was granted
to Directors or employees. In respect of the options exercised
during the year, weighted average closing price of the shares of
the Company immediately before the dates on which the options
were exercised was HK$3.825.

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, or their
spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any
such right during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as at 31 December
2015, the following Shareholders (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company disclosed above) had interest in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positons

—E-0F
+=BA=+—~H
HAEARE BT
BEZBDL
Percentage of
the issued share

[

[ A8

FERRER R EE capital of the
Name of Substantial g4 Number of Company as at
Shareholder Capacity shares held 31.12.2015
EEBLL EnEEA 47,547,913 8.43%
Ms. Ip Fung Kuen Beneficial Owner
FMR LLC WAL (HT3T) 37,702,000 6.69%
Investment Manager (Note)
sk - Note:

REFFRAEGRN RZT—AF+=-A=
+—H ' FMR LLC# R &% 537,702,0000% 7
NEIE 2 - MEAFMR Co., InciA Lt
A& ©

ERCIEEERAA - —T - HFEFR

Under the SFO, as at 31 December 2015, FMR LLC was deemed to be
interested in 37,702,000 shares of the Company, which were held by FMR
Co., Inc.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2015, no person,
other than the interests disclosed above in the section "Directors'
and Chief Executives' Interests and Short Positions in Securities",
had notified the Company of an interest or short position in the
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2015, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the aggregate sales
attributable to the Group's five largest customers accounted for
less than 30% of the Group's total turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest
suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group's total
purchases.

As at 31 December 2015, none of the Directors, their associates
or any Shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had any
interest in the Group's five largest customers and the Group’s five
largest suppliers.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Report on the Company’s corporate governance is set out in
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 76 to 95.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, throughout the year
ended 31 December 2015 and at the date of this report, there is
sufficient public float of not less than 25% of the Company’s total
issued shares capital as required under the Listing Rules.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the New Share Option Scheme and the Old Share
Option Scheme as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group made
charitable and other donations amounting to HK$3,931,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that each
Director, auditor or other officer of the Company shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a Director,
auditor or other officer of the Company in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given
in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance to cover
Director’s and officer’s liabilities in respect of legal actions against
its Directors and officers arising out of corporate activities.

Such permitted indemnity provisions have been in force
throughout the year under review and is currently in force at the
time of approval of this report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group paid rent
of HK$960,000 and HK$600,000 to Goldex Investments Limited
and Galsheer Investments Limited respectively in which Mr. Ip
Chi Shing (the controlling shareholder of the Company and
the Director) and Mr. Yip Tsz Hin (the Director), have beneficial
interests respectively.

Other than disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director, an entity connected with a director, and a controlling
shareholder of the Company or its subsidiary companies had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONTRACTS CONCERNING
MANAGEMENT AND ADMINISTRATION

Save for employment contracts with directors and full time
employees of the Company, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any principal
business of the Company were entered into or subsisted during
the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
Articles of Association or the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 have been audited by the Company’s auditor,
Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who shall retire and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will
be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
IP CHI SHING
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 18 March 2016
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Statement of Compliance

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance so as to achieve the Group’s objectives of
maximizing values for its employees, customers, suppliers, business
partners and shareholders, and safeguarding the interests of
them. The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
“Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report”
(the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) throughout the year ended 31 December 2015 except
that the Company does not have a nomination committee on the
ground as stated below under the section headed “Composition
of the Board” (CG Code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4).

Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. After making
specific enquiries, all Directors have confirmed that they have fully
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2015.
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The Board

The Board’s principal duties are setting policies, monitoring
the execution of such policies, and providing supervision and
assistance to the overall management of the Group.

Composition of the Board

As of at the date of this annual report, the Board is chaired by
Mr. Ip Chi Shing and comprised a total of nine Directors, namely,
four Executive Directors, two Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The number of Independent
Non-executive Directors represents one-third of the Board as
required by Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Each of the Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors is
appointed for a specific term until the closing of the relevant
annual general meeting at which he is being re-elected by the
Shareholders. The list of Directors with their roles and functions
is available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. Li Chak Man retired as an Independent Non-executive Director
on 30 June 2015. With effect from 1 January 2016, Mr. Wong
Kam Yim resigned as an Executive Director of the Company and
Mr. Wong Yuk was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on the even day.

Biographic details of the Directors are set out in the section of
Directors’ and Management Executives’ Profiles on pages 58 to 63.
Mr. Ip Chi Shing who is the Chairman is the brother of Mr. Yip
Tsz Hin who is a Co-Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Save as
disclosed above, the Directors are not otherwise related to each
other.

The Company has received annual confirmations from all
three Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of their
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
still considers the Independent Non-executive Directors to be
independent. Two of the existing Independent Non-executive
Directors possess the appropriate professional accounting
qualifications and related financial management experience. In
particular, the Board considers Mr. Ng Siu Ping (re-designated
as an Independent Non-executive Director on 1 January 2014) is
independent because he does not have any relationship with any
other directors, senior management or substantial or controlling
shareholders of the Company and has not involved in the daily
operation, management and business of the Company since he
became the Non-executive Director on 1 July 2011.
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The Board (Continued)

The Board regularly reviews its composition and membership to
ensure that it has a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Group's
business and discharge its responsibilities effectively. Currently, the
Board is responsible for the nomination and appointment of new
directors. The Company considers it is more beneficial and efficient
for the full Board to perform the functions of the nomination
committee.

The Board adopted the Group’s Information Policy together with
Inside Information Policy and established an inside information
control team. Also, the Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy (the
"Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the
Board. The Policy is summarised as follows:

e The selection of candidates of the Board will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
services. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

e  The Board will report on the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives and monitor the implementation of
the Policy.

e  The Board will review the Policy on appropriate times so as
to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted procedures for the Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expenses. Mr. Wong Yuk, a newly appointed
Executive Director is offered a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction upon his appointment.

Directors and officers liability and company reimbursement
insurance coverage has also been arranged.
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The Board (Continued)
Operation of the Board

During the year ended 31 December 2015, five regular Board
meetings, twelve other Board meetings and one Non-executive
Directors meeting were held by the Board. The attendance of each
Director at these Board meetings is shown in the table below:

U

EEgEfellER EEgHMEgRHER
Regular Board Other Board
HITES Executive Directors: Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance
ErefiE Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 5/5 10/12
E el Mr. Wong Kam Yim' 4/5 2/12
At s L Mr. Ho Sai Hou 5/5 11/12
FREIRR S A Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu 5/5 2/12
EZgEfedtEE ESTHMERURESR
Regular Board Other Board
FHITES : Non-executive Directors: Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance
EENEE(ERE) Mr. Ip Chi Shing (Chairman) 5/5 0/12
BB E Mr. Tong Wui Tung 5/5 1712
ExgEfedtEEx ESTHMSRURESR
Independent Non-executive Regular Board Other Board
BYFHTES: Directors: Meetings Attendance Meetings Attendance
mEELE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 5/5 1712
FER KA Mr. Li Chak Man? 3/5 0/12
HERIEE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 5/5 1712
REBF A Mr. Ng Siu Ping 5/5 2/12

= FE Remarks:
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Mr. Wong Kam Yim resigned as an Executive Director with effect
from 1 January 2016.

Mr. Li Chak Man retired and resigned as an Independent Non-
executive Director on 30 June 2015. Two of the regular Board
meetings were held after his resignation.

Five regular Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2015, which involved the active participation, either in
person or through electronic means of communications, by all the
attending Directors. Besides these regular Board meeting, twelve
other Board meetings were convened during 2015 to approve routine
business or discuss any matters that required the Board'’s timely
attention.
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The Board (Continued)
Operation of the Board (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Chairman of
the Board held a meeting with all Non-executive Directors and
Independent Non-Executive Directors without the presence of
Executive Directors.

Ms. So Sze Wan, Lisa resigned as the Company Secretary with
effect from 1 March 2015 and Mr. Ho Sai Hou was appointed as
the Company Secretary with effect from the even day. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, the role of the company secretary
of the Company (“Company Secretary”), included amongst
others, ensuring that the Directors had access to all necessary
information and that all Board procedures were followed. The
Company Secretary was also responsible for offering opportunities
of continuing professional development to all Directors to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to help ensure that their
contribution to the Board remained informed and relevant.
Directors were also provided with monthly updates on the
Company's performance, position and prospects to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their duties. The
Company Secretary, Mr. Ho Sai Hou, is a full time employee of
the Company. Mr. Ho confirmed that he fulfilled the requirement
of taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year under review.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

The Company, from time to time, provides in-house trainings for
the Directors in the form of seminars, workshops and reading
materials on the latest development of applicable laws, rules and
regulations, management, financial and business issues to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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The Board (Continued)

BEEEIIREERRE @) Directors’ Training and Professional Development
(Continued)
B RARSHESEEXR BRI In addition, all Directors are encouraged to participate in various
T e LR RIEESTIEHMNT professional development seminars and courses. A summary of
8 BEEHE_T-RAFT-A=+—8H training received by Directors during the year ended 31 December
IFFEESHEINEENT - 2015 according to the records provided by the Directors is as
follows:
EHE R
Type of trainings
BER /HEE B EM B R
AR &/ SHHe Hrey
Seminars and/or
conferences and/ Reading and
= Directors: In-house training or forums on-line studying
HEEKELE(ERE)  Mr. Ip Chi Shing (Chairman) v
BB E Mr. Tong Wui Tung v v v
e e Mr. Yip Tsz Hin v/ v
Ec oy iyl Mr. Wong Kam Yim' v v/
A= E Mr. Ho Sai Hou v/ v/ v
FREIRR S 4 Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu v/ v
BELSEE Mr. Wong Kong Chi v/ v/ v
FER A2 Mr. Li Chak Man2 v/ v/
mRAEE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun v/ v/
REBFEAE Mr. Ng Siu Ping v/ v v
P - Remarks:
B EeHLER T —AF A A E Mr. Wong Kam Yim resigned as an Executive Director with effect
EHITES - from 1 January 2016.
2 FTERAEN_Z—AFA=Z+AHE 2 Mr. Li Chak Man retired as an Independent Non-executive Director
R BHEB L IEMITESE - on 30 June 2015.

ERCIEEERAA - —T - HFEFR
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The Board (continued)
Delegation by the Board

The Board, as the highest governing board, is collectively
responsible for leading, planning and controlling the businesses
of the Group, and also for performing the corporate governance
duties and functions as more specifically set out in the list
of matters reserved for the Board. During the year ended 31
December 2015, the position of the Chairman of the Board was
held by Mr. Ip Chi Shing while the position of the Chief Executive
Officer was held by Mr. Wong Kam Yim. With effect from 1
January 2016, Mr. Wong Kam Yim resigned as the Chief Executive
Officer and Mr. Yip Tsz Hin and Mr. Wong Yuk were appointed
as the Co-Chief Executive Officers (the “Co-CEOs") of the Group
with effect from the even day. As disclosed in the section below,
the Company established the Senior Leadership Team (“SLT")
(formerly known as “Group Executive Committee”). Mr. Yip Tsz
Hin and Mr. Wong Yuk, the Co-CEOs, currently oversee the work
of SLT. The above structure is to ensure a clear distinction between
the Chairman’s duty to manage the Board and the management’s
duty to oversee the overall internal operation of the Group.

The Board has delegated to SLT with broad management
responsibilities including, but not limited to, formulating and
implementing policies and business strategies, as well as supervising
the performance of the Group’s different business segments. SLT
currently comprises a total of seven members, four of which are
Executive Directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Yip Tsz Hin,
Mr. Wong Yuk, Mr. Ho Sai Hou and Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu.

A formal schedule of matters reserved for the Board is maintained
and is subject to regular review. The more important matters
include:

e  setting of long term objectives and strategies

. approving preliminary results announcements

e approving annual budgets

o approving major capital expenditure, acquisitions and
disposals

o establishing risk management policies

o approving connected transactions

e declaring and recommending the payment of dividends

o appointing new directors

o establishing Board committees

. reviewing and monitoring of internal control and risk
management

e reviewing and monitoring the policies and practices on
corporate governance

o approving major policies and guidelines
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The Board (Continued)
SLT members

. Mr. Yip Tsz Hin
. Mr. Wong Kam Yim
(resigned with effect from 1 January 2016)
o Mr. Wong Yuk
(appointed with effect from 8 April 2015)
. Mr. Ho Sai Hou
o Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu
. Mr. Ip Kwan
. Mr. Fung Ping Kwong
. Mr. Feng Shun Quan
(resigned with effect from 1 July 2015)

. Ms. Yau Ching Man
(appointed with effect from 1 January 2016)

Duties and responsibilities of SLT

e  Assist the Board in setting the polices and strategies
o Execute the policies and strategic plans set by the Board

. Supervise the businesses of the subsidiaries
. Assist and co-ordinate the operations of subsidiaries, and
maximize the benefits for the Group

Currently, there are three Board committees, namely the
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Health, Safety
and Environment Committee. All the Board committees are
empowered by the Board under their own terms of reference.
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FNEESREERSRE The Remuneration Committee and
BE z 5 Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management

YHEBER_TTRF AR - £H The Remuneration Committee was formed in June 2005. During

E-FT-RAFT-A=+—RHLEFEAR" the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration Committee

B IERTEER—NBILIERITES consisted of one Non-executive Director and three Independent

HR(EZE—RENA=ZTHEER L Non-executive Directors (four Independent Non-executive Directors

EBHEZ R i*@}ﬂ;;\@;tﬁm{jé%j# before the resignation of Mr. Li Chak Man on 30 June 2015).

HITEE) RBF L AETNELZES Mr. Ng Siu Ping was the chairman of the Remuneration

I3 °ﬁi}ﬁZ§E$EﬂfT—£¢—ﬂ—Et Committee. Mr. Ip Chi Shing resigned as a member of the

BIRFMEESZERK - FNEEeE: Remuneration Committee with effect from 1 January 2015. Major

ZAENKIENT : roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

o S FHRmMEERHENRRT ] &5 . establishing a formal and transparent procedure for
BN B SR developing remuneration policy

e RNEZCEZSBEMBESES e making recommendation to the Board on the Group’s policy
EIRE 2 HINBUR M AE T and structure for the remuneration of Directors and senior

management

o ErTRHTEELaREERE S o determining the remuneration packages of all individual
[ R Executive Directors and senior management

FWEZEg  BEGEEEEHNAQT The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is

RERZ RGP - IRl A A B E E sk available on the Company’s website, HKEx's website and from the

HER] o Company Secretary upon request.

HE_ZE—RF+-_A=+—"BLHFE " During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Remuneration

HFMEEeRTTRRERNEER  SKE Committee held five meetings and the attendance of each

REBEeH 2 HEREETNT member at these meetings is shown in the table below:

HE=R
24=1 Member Attendance
RIBFEE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 5/5
mEELE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 5/5
FERLAE Mr. Li Chak Man' 2/5
HERZEE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 5/5
FEMR AL Mr. Tong Wui Tung 5/5
T Remark:

I FEREAN_ZE—FRAFAAA=THEH ! Mr. Li Chak Man resigned as a member of the Remuneration
REMNEECZE8HK - HP=Agx Committee on 30 June 2015. Three of the meetings were held after
REFHER ST - his resignation.
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The Remuneration Committee and
Remuneration of Directors and Senior
Management (continued)

In these meetings, the Remuneration Committee:

o reviewed the reward schemes for the SLT and the General
Managers of the subsidiaries for the year 2015

. reviewed the principles and policies of the remuneration
structure of the Group’s Executive Directors and senior
management with reference to an external consulting report,
and submitted recommendations to SLT for further discussion

o approved the remuneration packages of the Group’s
Executive Directors and senior management effective from 1
January 2016 after considering market remuneration levels of
comparable companies in the market

Directors’ emoluments consisted of payments to Directors in
connection with the management of the affairs of the Company
and its subsidiaries. The fees paid to each Director and senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set out in
Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was formed in November 1998. During the
year ended 31 December 2015, the Audit Committee comprised
one Non-executive Director and three Independent Non-executive
Directors (four Independent Non-executive Directors before the
resignation of Mr. Li Chak Man on 30 June 2015) and was chaired
by Mr. Wong Kong Chi. Mr. Ip Chi Shing resigned as a member of
the Audit Committee with effect from 1 January 2015. Major roles
and functions of the Audit Committee include:

e reviewing financial information of the Group

e overseeing the Group’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control systems

. monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its
external auditor

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee is available on
the Company’s website, HKEx's website and from the Company
Secretary upon request.
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The Audit Committee (continued)

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year ended
31 December 2015 and the attendance of each member at these
meetings is shown in the table below:

HER
24=1 Member Attendance
RBFEE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 4/4
BEELE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 4/4
ERLAE Mr. Li Chak Man' 2/4
HIRFAE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 4/4
FEERRE £ Mr. Tong Wui Tung 4/4
st - Remark:

' FEREER-_Z-HAFANA=THE
REZZBREZERG - EhmEE:
REBHER ST -

s HAKRE-_FT-NFFEI—
£¢¢%%Z$TE*%$AHWEHI #
HETEN £ETEHNBRE
ERZBEEEINAEERA
HBEFREZEARBE ULH
B EEREREFERRZEIRE
BB TEERE

o EHAEFF M mE - EARERT
TERERNERETIR - @A
ErT N ERERS AL ARIE D)
BE 2 BRI HE /N AR AT ET 8

e REBRAZESIKEFEHEENR
BREL T R T TAR Y

o HREEZINEZEANBIZEGHE
HEITE R RERFSE M 2 BR
FEB M ETI - AR H
Frig it 2 IEZ BUR TS 0=

o HIWMAEMLEMKRIEE R
HERERNBBER] - WikHEEH
BIRNESSRLBREZZES
R ESEEENER

Mr. Li Chak Man resigned as a member of the Audit Committee on
30 June 2015. Two of the meetings were held after his resignation.

In these meetings, the Audit Committee:

reviewed the 2014 annual and 2015 interim results before
submitting to the Board for approval and in doing so, the
committee focused on material deviations of the Group's
performance from past year’s results, major areas of
judgment, selection and application of accounting policies
and compliance with regulatory requirements

received reports from the internal audit department,
discussed material findings with the head of internal audit,
reviewed the adequacy of resources of the internal audit
department and effectiveness of the internal audit function
and approved the internal audit plan

reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system
in accordance with established guidelines and procedures
discussed the audit plan with the Group’s external auditor
and assessed its independence with reference to its policies
for maintaining independence and reviewed the extent of
non-audit services provided

discussed and proposed the amendments of the Terms
of Reference for an Audit Committee to the Board in
accordance with the amendments to the risk management of
the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report of Listing Rules
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The Audit Committee (continued)

e  considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function

o approved the audit fees paid to the Group’s external auditor

An Audit Committee meeting was held on 14 March 2016 to
review the Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2015.

Health, Safety and Environment
Committee

The Health, Safety and Environment (“HSE”) Committee was
established on 1 January 2012 in order to enhance the importance
of the health, safety and environmental protection works to
the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the HSE
Committee comprised three Independent Non-executive Directors
members (four Independent Non-executive Directors before the
resignation of Mr. Li Chak Man on 30 June 2015) and was chaired
by Mr. Ku Yuen Fun. Mr. Ip Chi Shing resigned as a member of
the HSE Committee with effect from 1 January 2015. Major duties
of the HSE Committee include:

e  the adoption and renewal of the Group’s health, safety and
environment policies

e the determining of the Group’s appetite for health, safety
and environment risk

o managing the Group’s monitoring environment for health,
safety and environment matters, including organisation
structure, reward and punishment systems, resource inputs,
operation culture, etc.

The terms of reference of the HSE Committee is available on
the Company’s website and from the Company Secretary upon
request.
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Health, Safety and Environment
Committee (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the HSE Committee
held four meetings and the attendance of each member at these
meetings is shown in the table below:

HEZR
24=1 Member Attendance
HERFLE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 4/4
HEELE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 4/4
FERKAE Mr. Li Chak Man' 2/4
REBTFHHE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 4/4
et - Remark:

' FERAENR -_Z-AFA=THE
RR2RERRZESZEME - E4
M E &N BHER ST -

. BMHEEZRERRBELRY
FERE RS S

. BAETEESHOCFRERE
RiREHE)

. EERERSBREROEELL
BAENE R E

LY
EERZBMEFEARNEL

EEHRAFTRARUARBE ZMBRER
RMEREENE  YAREAEERZR
B BERARRIRLE  RBRETE BHEE
E2 Pt - ERGUTMBFERNERT
AR R R REAREE R LD
R EMARER -

RBE 2 s B ENEI6EI7TE 2 B
ZEE R & MR -

R EREE 1

EECERRETEREARRTRAITE
BRBENEY A5 AHPBREN A %
M BERAEEEE AR 2 G TIREA
EHREE o

! Mr. Li Chak Man retired as a member of the Health, Safety and
Environment Committee on 30 June 2015. Two of the meetings were
held after his resignation.

In these meetings, the HSE Committee:

e reviewed the annual inspection report on factories drafted by
the Group’s HSE Department
e reviewed the 3-year HSE reports drafted by subsidiaries

o supervised the implementation of HSE policies as well as
attended safety inspection of an operating site

Accountability and Audit
Directors’ and Auditor’s responsibilities

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Group and their announcements
to Shareholders and commit to the presentation of a balanced,
clear and comprehensive assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects. The Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Auditor’'s reporting responsibilities are stated in the
Independent Auditors’s Report on pages 96 to 97.

Internal Control

The responsibilities of designing and implementing an appropriate
system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting, effectiveness and
efficiency of operations and compliance with applicable laws and
regulations rest with the management as directed by the Board.
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Internal Control (continued)

The Company has an internal audit function. The internal audit
department was set up in 1997 to monitor independently the
implementation of the internal control procedures, compliance
with Group’s policies and to make recommendations on the
effectiveness of the internal control system. The head of internal
audit reports to Mr. Wong Yuk, a Co-Chief Executive Officer of
the Group, and to the Audit Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Board has
reviewed the internal control policy and also conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group
following the guidance note on the Group’s Internal Control
System.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the fee paid/payable to
the Group's external auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, is
set out as follows:

/NS

Fee paid/payable

FHxT

Frig it = IR Services rendered HK$'000

FEZRE Audit services 4,142
IEZARES Non-audit services

ERIR AR S Interim review 720

RER RS

ARBRE—EERINRD - IERNDE
HRNKREE M ARESEIRMRE ° I
RERGEMEBEINEINHNARFN
BYIESERRAANE7ERMA ] )R
SHERAENE -

BRERAMBRRASHER
BT

RIFESIBIZMAIFEEE  RRKREH
EARRAIMAZEA LR EEE KM A
F o BRAERAXERNRAREELLIR
EEMH(IMARRITERELATE
BEWAU - RIREMMRER) - ERHIA
AREZIEHAFBRIMBFRARE
FZEBRAREEERZ BAFBEARE
PORFT D2 —WHERARRFRRRAER
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Shareholders’ Rights

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the
same voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The
rights of the Shareholders are set out in, amongst other things,
the restated articles of association of the Company (the “restated
Articles”) and the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Rights and Procedures for Shareholders
to convene a General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 68 of the restated Articles, a general meeting
shall be convened on the written requisition of any two or more
Shareholders deposited at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases
to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying
the objects of the meeting and signed by the requisitionists,
provided that such requisitionists held as at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company which carries the rights of voting at the general
meeting.
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Rights and Procedures for Shareholders
to convene a General Meeting (continued)

A general meeting may also be convened on the written
requisition of any one Shareholder which is a recognized
clearing house (or its nominee) deposited at the principal place
of business of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionist, provided that such requisitionist held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at the
general meeting of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held
within a further 28 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may convene the general meeting in the same
manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be
convened by the Board provided that any meeting so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of three months from the
date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Pursuant to Article 116 of the restated Articles, no person other
than a retiring Director shall, unless recommended by the Board,
be eligible for election to the officer of Director at any general
meeting unless, during the period, which shall be at least 7 days,
commencing no earlier than the day after the despatch of the
notice of the meeting appointed for such election and ending
no later than 7 days prior to the date of such meeting, there
has been given to the Company Secretary notice in writing by a
member of the Company (not being the person to be proposed),
entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for which such notice
is given, of his intention to propose such person for election and
also notice in writing signed by the person to be proposed of his
willingness to be elected.

Putting Forward Proposals at
Shareholders’ Meeting

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office (at Yip's Chemical Building, 13 Yip Cheong Street, On Lok
Tsuen, Fanling, New Territories, Hong Kong) of the Company, and
may consist of several documents in like form each signed by one
or more requisitionists.
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Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their written enquiries to the Board by
post (Company’s head office and principal place of business: Yip's
Chemical Building, 13 Yip Cheong Street, On Lok Tsuen, Fanling,
New Territories, Hong Kong) or via e-mail through the Company’s
website (please refer to “Contact Us” at www.yipschemical.com).

Shareholders’ Meetings

The Board strives to maintain an on-going dialogue with the
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meeting to
communicate with Shareholders directly.

The 2015 AGM was held on 5 June 2015. The attendance of each
Director at this meeting is shown in the table below:—

AGM Attendance

BITESE Executive Directors: BAFRRAGHESR
EFeitat Mr. Yip Tsz Hin 171
BEELE Mr. Wong Kam Yim! 1/1
At = E Mr. Ho Sai Hou 1/1
BB RR S50 A Mr. Kwong Kwok Chiu 11
AGM Attendance
FHITES Non-executive Directors: BERRAEHESR
HEEREE(ER) Mr. Ip Chi Shing 11
FEERR ST AE Mr. Tong Wui Tung 11
AGM Attendance
BYFHTES: Independent Non-executive Directors: BEREAGHER
mEELE Mr. Wong Kong Chi 11
FER A Mr. Li Chak Man? 171
HERAEE Mr. Ku Yuen Fun 11
RBFEAE Mr. Ng Siu Ping 1/1
B 5 Remarks:
1 BFEEEER T —R"F—A— BRI ! Mr. Wong Kam Yim resigned as an Executive Director with effect
REAEENTES © from 1 January 2016.
2 FTERAER-ZZ—RAFAA=ZFTAHE 2 Mr. Li Chak Man retired and resigned as an Independent Non-

KA BHERAREBLIFRNITES -

ERCIEEERAA - —T - HFEFR

executive Director on 30 June 2015.



BRREZ @
BE-T-FEt-A=t+—ALEE
RARBBB B REASE - &
5148 4 T2 40 B AR B B A AR A )
B4R P9 - 3 AT A T B
pHEm .

REEBFRERRREAR

REBYNEES LBARGHETEKF
TEER BN RKREE RBRRRHER
NEBRAENEN  WREFHERFR
I B -

REE R E B MBER R E BB
ZEERMN - At AREREERERD
EEANEHEREENRRE® BB
FHEENYHE  BURANRFHER - &
SEEFEQMTHREFEEREIE
TARKREEBNENEFGH  LEE
BLTHP LSS REIAKRERENE
B BAREIINIREE R IRRAEER T
RASENEERANEANCEER -
AEETGEAMMEERIBEREER
BRZH— 8 —eHAEFAGH  AEE
BRRERRE - RROFIHARIRRERE
REZEBNTH - AREESFERRRE
FRE  BREABMARNEE - HEER
REFRFHEEEE -

EEERRE

Corporate Governance Report

Shareholders’ Meetings (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, there is no change in
the Company’s constitutional documents. The latest version of the
Restated Articles of the Company is available on the Company’s
website, Stock Exchange’s website and from the Company
Secretary upon request.

Investor Relations and Communication
with Shareholders

The Group strives to maintain a high level of corporate governance
in every facet of its business; provide investors and shareholders
with accurate, transparent and timely information; and seek good
two-way communication with stakeholders.

The Group fully understands the importance of maintaining
timely communication with investors and Shareholders. For this,
the Group’s Investor Relations and Corporate Communications
Department regularly holds meetings with investors and
shareholders so as to build a good long-term relationship through
continuing dialogues. Immediately after the announcement of
interim and annual results every year, the Group will hold an
investor briefing or audio conference. A webcast or recorded audio
conference will also be hosted subsequently so that investors and
shareholders from Hong Kong, the mainland or the overseas will
be able to learn timely of the Group’s operating performance and
major development. After the results announcements the Group
will also take the initiative to arrange meetings or teleconferences
with investors and shareholders where the management will
answer their questions to ensure that they have a thorough
understanding of the results and development. In the annual
general meeting of shareholders every year, the Group is able
to maintain good interactive communication with shareholders
through direct and open dialogues.
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Investor Relations and Communication
with Shareholders (continued)

In 2015, Investor Relations and Corporate Communications
Department arranged around 40 face-to-face meetings or
teleconferences with Shareholders, institutional investors, fund
managers and analysts from Hong Kong, the mainland and the
overseas; the department met around 80 investors from Hong
Kong, the mainland and the overseas in the year. The department
will also organize visits of the Group’s plants for investors and
shareholders on a regular basis so that they can understand the
production process of each of the business and gain a better
grasp of its operational situation.

In addition to meeting with institutional investors, the Group also
values its communication with retail investors. Therefore media
conferences in Hong Kong, Shanghai and Beijing were held in the
year to update media the Group's latest development and to raise
the Group's profile at the retail investor level. To ensure the timely
and fair announcement of important information about the Group,
the Group is extensively using its corporate website for uploading
interim and annual financial statements, announcements, press
releases and presentation materials. Investors and Shareholders can
thus quickly and easily browse or download the information they
need so that they can keep abreast of the latest development of
the Group. At the 45th anniversary of the founding of the Group,
a Yip's Chemical Facebook page and WeChat subscription page
were set up to share the latest updates on the Group. The Group
expects to enhance constructive and engaging conversations with

various stakeholders from Hong Kong, the mainland and the
overseas through these social media platforms.
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Investor Relations and Communication
with Shareholders (continued)

The Group has received widespread recognition from the
investment community for its excellent investor relations work. It
was awarded “Gold Award for Investor Relations” in The Asset
Corporate Awards 2015.

The Group shall continue to abide by a principle of timeliness,
fairness and openness in maintaining two-way communication
with investors and Shareholders through effective channels so as
to ensure a high standard of corporate governance and a high
degree of corporate transparency.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yip's
Chemical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 98
to 204, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2015, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the
Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance
with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Auditor’s Responsibility (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2015, and of its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

18 March 2016
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HE-Z—AF+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

—Z—EHF —ZT—F
2015 2014
bz FEx FAET
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
=E L Turnover 5 8,584,225 10,255,839
SHE BN Cost of sales (7.204,662) (8,747,525)
EF Gross profit 1,379,563 1,508,314
H A Other income 79,136 139,052
H AU s K B8 Other gains and losses 7 (93,281) (1,667)
HE MEHE R Selling and distribution expenses (388,624) (404,268)
— B RITHER General and administrative expenses (744,543) (808,625)
FMEER Interest expense 8 (70,217) (61,558)
R 250 Al g A Profit before taxation 9 162,034 371,248
Fi1E Taxation 10 (74,643) (100,280)
REHEF Profit for the year 87,391 270,968
HEfhzm i - Other comprehensive expense:
HETesHhnEs Item that will not be reclassified
B=mIER ¢ subsequently to profit or loss:
EiTE =2 REW Exchange differences arising on
MmESE 2 B R ZERE translation to presentation
currency (274,633) (117,124)
(274,633) (117,124)
Higrge s o ltems that may be reclassified
BmrIEE : subsequently to profit or loss:
IR MR A E R Net adjustments on cash flow
hedges (2,074) 178
EHTEmEE 2 Exchange differences arising
bE H =% on translation (19,929) (6,205)
(22,003) (6,027)
AEHMEESTH Other comprehensive expense
for the year (296,636) (123,151)
AERME(EH) W Total comprehensive (expense) income
wem for the year (209,245) 147,817
NEMFIEIEREE Profit for the year attributable to:
ZiN/NGT 32 Owners of the Company 47,847 223,182
IR R Non-controlling interests 39,544 47,786
87,391 270,968
() Wiz Total comprehensive (expense)
IHH%E : income attributable to:
ZiN/NET )32 Owners of the Company (218,037) 113,809
FEIERR R Non-controlling interests 8,792 34,008
(209,245) 147,817
BREF Earnings per share 12
—EK - Basic HK8.5 cents HK39.7 cents
—BE — Diluted HK8.5 cents HK39.6 cents

ERCIKEERAT - — T AFEFR
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

MZZ—AF+=A=1+—H At 31 December 2015

—E-RF —E—F
2015 2014
B e FET FHT
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ERBEE Non-current assets
ME - BB MRS Property, plant and equipment 13 1,723,360 1,650,410
TS Prepaid lease payments 14 225,430 244,139
REE Investment properties 15 93,200 73,800
EES Goodwiill 16 69,574 69,574
| EE Intangible assets 17 2,461 3,825
BEWME  BEMERE Deposits paid for acquisition of
R ifE AR & property, plant and equipment
and land use rights 178,131 130,666
HiIERBEE Other non-current asset 19 4,600 4,600
PTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 25 140 =
2,296,896 2,177,014
REBEE Current assets
VR Inventories 20 739,286 802,870
B SRR R EWEE Trade and bills receivables 21 2,733,113 3,527,009
H i REUBEZk R FEf 338  Other debtors and prepayments 21 288,567 401,713
FENM TS Prepaid lease payments 14 5,823 6,142
PTETmIAE Derivative financial instruments 25 1,114 =
5EEARTTIF R Short-term bank deposits 22
—R=1& A REIH — with original maturity within
three months 22,525 88,440
— R =18 A& 25 — with original maturity more than
three months 24,363 24,964
RITHEBRIIRE Bank balances and cash 22 1,327,380 1,254,283
5,142,171 6,105,421
mESE Current liabilities
R N ERTE A Creditors and accrued charges 24 1,553,870 1,693,829
TR Taxation payable 41,200 64,641
PTEEmIAE Derivative financial instruments 25 13,809 17,107
BE - —FREIH Borrowings — amount due within
one year 26 1,171,344 1,811,114
2,780,223 3,586,691
REBEEFEE Net current assets 2,361,948 2,518,730
BEERRBAER Total assets less current liabilities 4,658,844 4,695,744
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RZT—AF+=A=+—H At 31 December 2015

—E-RF —ET-F
2015 2014
MisE FExT FHIT
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
TTESMT A Derivative financial instruments 25 3,084 9,563
a8 ——F&EH Borrowings — amount due after
one year 26 1,603,819 1,272,296
FEEFIITEAE Deferred tax liabilities 27 7,742 13,189
1,614,645 1,295,048
3,044,199 3,400,696
BAR#E Capital and reserves
&N Share capital 28 56,371 56,276
B Reserves 2,538,088 2,894,732
AN T RREMER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 2,594,459 2,951,008
FEE RS Non-controlling interests 449,740 449,688
3,044,199 3,400,696

FIBAEF204A AU BREEN =
B RE=ZATN\BEESESIERXE
FizE - WARATREES :

REEHAE RYHEE
EE EE

ERCIKEERAT - — T AFEFR

The consolidated financial statements on pages 98 to 204 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 18
March 2016 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Ip Chi Shing
DIRECTOR

Mr. Yip Tsz Hin

DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HE-Z—AF+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

SENKDARR 2k

Attributable to owners of the Company

f TR )
ERERE  ANER EEGE EMRE FEhER
BE  BRfEE  She  Non  HNEE ENRER  EERE  Gptal  Popety RERR on-

Share  Share option distributable  Hedging Translation ~ Legal redemption revaluation  Retained &3t controling aif

aptel premum reserve  reseve resenve resee  reseve resene reseve  profits  Total intersts Tt

fhn TR TRm TR TRt Thn T TR TR Tt T T T

HKS'000  HKS000  HKFOOD  HK§'000  HKS'O00  HKS000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HK§O0D  HKFOO0  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000

WB-ME-A-B At January 2014 %208 628447 538 61715 (4057) 548187 48989 5416 B3 1578414 297304 435310 3408412

R Profit for the year - - - - - - - - - I3 W 4786 27098
RFERELz  Bichange diferences arsing on
EpzEre | transaton that wil not be

B reclassfied to proft or loss - - - - - (103.34) - - - - (10338 (3778 (11714)
Tébﬁﬁzﬁ”ﬁﬂﬂ Bxchange difference that may be
} £ redlssified to proft o loss - - - - - (6209 - - - - (6209) - (6209
Net adjustments on cash flow hedges - - - - 178 - - - - - 178 - 178
Total comprehensive income for
the year = = = = 178 (109,551) - - - I3IR 113809 34008 147817
It Subvtotal %08 68447 538 615 (3819 4% 48989 SH6 B3 18015% 308851 469378 355629
TLRBZERER  Recogniion of equity-seted
KRG share-tased payments - - - - - - - - -3 -8
REREEAEAES  Sharesissued &t premium upon
RizaB eterise o share options 18 919 (55) - - - - - - - m - m
W‘ﬂﬁxh MEE2  Expenses incured in comnecton vith
iU of shares - () - - - - - - - - ] - ()
ﬁﬂﬁh%‘}(@ﬁﬁ Share options canceled and transfer
REH to retaned profts - - (39) - - - - - - 369 - - -
HENBLFRR,  Resees released upon deregistration
[ of subsidiaries - - - (49) - (35639 - - - b6 - - -
:1 Transfer - - - - - - 8058 - - (805 - - -
EFRAFRE  Diidends pad to owners
& of the Company - (62439 - - - - - - - (18253 (140,688) - (1ogeg)
EFHEATEER  Diidends pad to non<ontrollng
ks sharefolder of a subsidary - - - - - - - - - - - (1969 (19,69
S {31 December 2014
T2 56,216 566,986 8836  GT666 (3819 40098 51047 5416 383 4751341 2951008 449688 3,400,696

Proftfor the year - - - - - - - - - s a8 s g
Bxchange differences arising on
transltion that wil ot be

recasified o proft o loss - - - - - (388) - - - - (3R (0752) (4633)
Bxchange diference that may be
Tn/ERER reclassfied to proft or loss - - - - - (1999 - - - - (1999 - (1999
FRTELaALRE  Netadjustments on cash flow hedges - - - - - - - - - () - (aom
KERARIEE  Total comprehensive expense for
the year - - - - 0m (263810) - - - g (803 819 (209.245)
It Subvtotal 56,276 566,386 883 67666  (598) 139188 57,047 546 38321 1799188 2732911 458480 3191451
7 Sharesissued at premium upon
erercse of share options % M3 3 - - - - - - -3 -3
Bxpenses incured in connection with
G s of hares - U] - - - - - - - - 0] 5 [
DEEREREEE  Share optons canceled and tranfer
R to refaned profis - - (130 - S s - - -1 s 5 -
{3 Transfer - - - - - - %9 - - (26993) - - -
EHARTRE Diidends paid o owners of the
RE Company - (64876) - - - - - - - () (140803) - (140803)
EFHEATEER  Diidends pad to on<ontoling
fizke sharefolder of  subsidary - - - - - - - - - - - BM0) 60
AE-BE {31 December 2015
“Azt-A 56311 504539 133 6666 (595) 139188 84040 56 38321 1697638 2504459 449740  3,044199
a] IR TS =00 B B K e O B B A The non-distributable reserve represents capitalisation of retained
57H%f%‘é’a’%*‘Jﬁﬁﬁéﬁzﬁﬁ&é&l%"lt%lﬁ profits of certain subsidiaries established in Mainland China for
ZES (VAMUFEEBEEK()VBEALE capital re-investment in these subsidiaries and funds shall be
EEE- used to (i) make up prior year losses or (i) expand production
operations.
PR IR 2% TE e AT S AN B /A 7] The legal reserve is non-distributable and represents the transfer
RIEA M2 25 FEREA 2R of profits of a subsidiary outside Hong Kong pursuant to the legal
A o requirements in the relevant place of registration.
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FERERE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

HE-Z—AF+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

—B-IF —T-mF
2015 2014
FET FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
R 7SR Cash flows from operating activities
BREE A A Profit before taxation 162,034 371,248
REATHHEE - Adjustments for:
BB ER Amortisation of intangible assets 1,260 2,194
Ta L3 A & B Release of prepaid lease payments 6,053 6,361
LARR D R HE B R Equity-settled share-based payments
P& A7 S A5 - 3,878
ME  BERRBZITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 133,353 129,967
REWMER R ELLM Increase in fair value of investment
properties (19,400) (7,500)
M - WE REEZ Impairment loss of property, plant
WEEE and equipment = 13,863
WRTFEEERFE Written down of inventories to net
realisable value - 28,814
TTESRMIAARE Fair value change on derivative
24 financial instruments (13,105) (3,568)
HEHRHEREZ Gain on disposal of
Y gs available-for-sale investment - (63,487)
FEBR Interest expense 70,217 61,558
FLEMWA Interest income (32,593) (29,863)
AHHEREZRE Dividend income from
A available-for-sale investment - (66,252)
HeE/FHEDE  BE Net loss on disposals/written-off
NaERE R E e of property, plant and equipment
o it Veik and land use rights 13,423 11,889
HERENEEEN Gain on disposal of asset held
Yias for sale - (11,214)
RIBRAER Allowance for bad and doubtful
debts 50,062 38,306
WEIEEREER L Amount recovered from doubtful
R debts (539) (6,543)
TEARDERP Effect of foreign exchange rate
ERVIEH =5 changes on intra-group balances (20,370) 26,874
KRt EBESEFA 2 Operating cash flows before movements
KEEBIREN in working capital 350,395 506,525
FERD Decrease in inventories 20,942 124,677
B S RMER T R B E & Decrease (increase) in trade and bills
() receivables 574,234 (317,980)
H e R M FE A Decrease (increase) in other debtors and
HFIERA L) prepayments 112,827 (93,255)
FERTBR N K B+ B R > Decrease in creditors and accrued
charges (75,153) (119,729)
BEMEECRE Cash generated from operations 983,245 100,238
XREBEERGEH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid = 3)
SR BIRRE 2 (% Enterprise Income Tax in Mainland
PSR China paid (103,497) (90,546)
REEISELZFHS Net cash from operating activities 879,748 9,689

REMCTEMERAT - —2

—hFEFER
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—E-Tf —ME
2015 2014
THET TAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
REEKZRER Cash flows from investing activities
[REERSE Interest received 32,593 29,863
RBER={E A% Withdrawal of short-term bank deposits
B H 2 5 HRERTT with original maturity more than
T3 three months 24,964 53,452
HEWE « BE R Proceeds from disposal of property,
BB L {5 FAE plant and equipment and land
P2 $RIE use rights 910 22,200
HERHHEREMG Proceeds from disposal of
B available-for-sale investment - 87,372
BRI HERE RS Dividend received from available-for-sale
investment - 66,252
HEIABELEZEE Proceeds from disposal of asset classified
FTS3E as held for sale - 7,859
FAZR={ERE Placement of short-term bank deposits
B H 2 5 B ERTT with original maturity more than
X three months (24,363) (27,164)
RANEG: 2 E T Deposits paid for acquisition of property,
HE= plant and equipment (120,741) (130,666)
BENE BERSZE Purchase of property, plant and
equipment (231,245) (174,460)
BREXBERFRE Net cash used in investing activities (317,882) (65,292)
BMEXB RSN Cash flows from financing activities
EHEERN Borrowings raised 2,906,875 3,019,376
BRI RIE Proceeds from issue of shares 2,315 972
BORNER Share issue expenses @ (5)
S INGE 2 Dividends paid to non-controlling
RETIE shareholder of subsidiary (8,740) (19,690)
TRFE Interest paid (70,217) (61,558)
SR E Dividends paid (140,823) (140,688)
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (3,215,122) (2,694,314)
BMEXBM(FR)EE Net cash (used in) from financing activities
ZERE (525,716) 104,093
R LR eERFEM Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 36,150 48,490
FEYR R RE® Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
=55 of the year 1,342,723 1,317,882
EREHMELZFE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (28,968) (23,649)
RERREZRE IS Cash and cash equivalents at end of
E5 the year 1,349,905 1,342,723
Be RIReFHEER Analysis of balances of cash and
vl cash equivalents
RITHER RS Bank balances and cash 1,327,380 1,254,283
R=18AREIH 2 % 5 Short-term bank deposits with original
RITER maturity within three months 22,525 88,440
1,349,905 1,342,723
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z—AF+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015
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General

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars while the functional currency of the Company
is Renminbi (“RMB”). The reason for selecting Hong Kong
dollars as its presentation currency is because the Company
is a public company with the shares listed on the Stock
Exchange, where most of its investors are located in Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its principal
subsidiaries are engaged in the manufacture of and trading
in solvents, coatings, inks and lubricants.

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs")

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA™).

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: Employee
contributions

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2010 - 2012 cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs

2011 - 2013 cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current or prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new or revised

standards that have been issued but are not yet effective.

ERUBREENSE LRI HKFRS 9 Financial instruments?

EAUBREENE S EEREER HKFRS 14 Regulatory deferral accounts?

ERUBREENES BRANLE HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers?

EAUBREENENTS WEARLEERNETE Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for acquisitions of interests
3] in joint operations’

BEGHEARIRIET RERR Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure initiative'

BAGHENEIGRR  BEMERBHEZIRAA Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable methods of
EREENE38 T and HKAS 38 depreciation and amortisation'

5
BRUBRERA BT BEUBREEN-D--F Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs
EIT-MEEHIER 2012-2014 cycle!
B!

BAGHENEIGRR  RE: EEMED Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer plants’
BRGIERRAL and HKAS 41
5]

BREENETY  BUMBREZERE HKAS 27 Equity method in separate financial

statements’
EANBHREENSI08 REFHARERARLEY Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets between
REAGHEAZ8E  ROAELELTE and HKAS 28 an investor and its associate or joint
b 5| venture?
BAUBREEAE10% - REER  GARGHER Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities: Applying the
BREBREENS 125 HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28 consolidation exception'
REREEAZ8%
{ R-ZZE—RNFE— A —Hskz2%H® ! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
ZEEHRER - 2016.

2 RZT—N\F—A—Hzz2®&MK 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
ZEEIRAR - 2018.

3 R-ZE—RFE—A— A z%MAA 2 Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning

2 BEFEE BB REER TG
S LR o

on or after 1 January 2016.

& RFEE Bk 2 &Rz FEH ¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
FIER - determined.
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2.

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for
the classification and measurement of financial assets.
HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
the requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities for derecognition, and in 2013 to include
the new requirements for hedge accounting. Another revised
version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include
a) impairment requirements for financial assets and b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement
requirements by introducing a ‘fair value through other
comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for
certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

e all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement” are subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All other
debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make
an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not
held for trading) in other comprehensive income, with
only dividend income generally recognised in profit or
loss.
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BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

2. Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSS") (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), HKFRS 9 requires that the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability
is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the
recognition of the effects of changes in the liability's
credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently reclassified
to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount
of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as FVTPL is presented in profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS
9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed
to an incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The
expected credit loss model requires an entity to account
for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is
no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

the new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9,
greater flexibility has been introduced to the types
of transactions eligible for hedge accounting,
specifically broadening the types of instruments that
qualify for hedging instruments and the types of risk
components of non-financial items that are eligible
for hedge accounting. In addition, the retrospective
guantitative effectiveness test has been removed.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity's risk
management activities have also been introduced.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2.

Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial instruments (continued)

The directors of the Company are in the process of assessing
the impact on the application of HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue", HKAS 11 “Construction contracts” and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically,
the standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue
recognition:

e Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: lIdentify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity

satisfies a performance obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal
with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are
required by HKFRS 15.
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Application of New and Revised
Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs") (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

The directors of the Company will assess the impact of the
application of HKFRS 15. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until
the Group performs a detailed review.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the results and the financial position of the Group.

Significant Accounting Policies

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”)
and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The provisions of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622) regarding preparation of accounts and directors’
reports and audits became effective for the Company for
the financial year ended 31 December 2015. Further, the
disclosure requirements set out in the Listing Rules regarding
annual accounts have been amended with reference to
the new CO and to streamline with HKFRSs. Accordingly
the presentation and disclosure of information in the
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended
31 December 2015 have been changed to comply with these
new requirements. Comparative information in respect of
the financial year ended 31 December 2014 are presented
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements based
on the new requirements. Information previously required
to be disclosed under the predecessor CO or Listing Rules
but not under the new CO or amended Listing Rules are not
disclosed in these consolidated financial statements.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments
and investment properties that are measured at fair values, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as
net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

3 has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses

and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in
profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

e liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that standard.
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BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity's net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.

Goodwiill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of business (see
the accounting policy above) less accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units (or groups of
cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.
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HE-Z—AF+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

3. TEEFTER @) 3. Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

[5E0) Goodwill (continued)

BEWOERECReEELENETEF A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
— RN A H BRI E TR A is tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
ETRERNR - R EERE AR there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For
WEMEEZHE  wORBEZ goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the
REEEBNNZMEHTERE cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
TREANR EREEEBMLZA is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
e & OREEEE - BIIREAR period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
BEELXBEAFERDREEZEMN A unit is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
2 AR EERBENL G allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
BZBEMANEMEE - BB ZEM allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the
WEEBBDEZERERAER - & unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
B REBENEZBETTHED - each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill

is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent

periods.

EHECREEFBUKEER - On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
Hifr e HeRiclEeaEBe attributable amount of goodwill is included in the
BEHDAIENR o determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
Yz - BMERRE Property, plant and equipment

ME - HERBREEREEEK Property, plant and equipment including buildings, leasehold
REBYIBRBIIEAETHRAZRRN land (classified as finance leases) and freehold land held
TE T ROk AZERETH (D AR for use in the production or supply of goods or services,
BEMHE) REF(TAMERTZRIN or for administrative purposes (other than properties
RERE MR R KRB ANEINRE under construction as described below) are stated in the
BIRFTIMERRIIBRERKX(BE) consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
BB o subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent

accumulated impairment losses, if any.

FEREENHAE - REXTEHA Properties in the course of construction for production,
BHME - BE KEE - B supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
FAEERABEEESE - KA any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
PREEXEERAREEEREEM fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
T RBAEESHBRERER in accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such
BB EA - BEAWER T &A] properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
HARBERAEREN>BRER property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
HANME  BEREE  ILEE for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
E2HEELERAMYEELEEM basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
[ - ThRE 2 Al AR E s are ready for their intended use.

FHETEE °

14 ERCIKEERAT - — T AFEFR
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BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than properties under construction less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed as
evidenced by end of owner-occupation, any difference
between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in property revaluation reserve. On
the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset, the relevant
revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained
profits.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Buildings under development for future
owner-occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation
of prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at
cost, less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of
buildings commences when they are available for use (i.e.
when they are in the location and condition necessary for
them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management).
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3. FESTHBE® 3. Significant Accounting Policies
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(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation. Investment properties include land
held for undetermined future use, which is regarded as held
for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their
fair values. All of the Group's property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are accounted for as investment properties and are
measured using the fair value model. Gains or losses arising
from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that acquired
separately are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
losses on tangible and intangible assets other than goodwiill
below).
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
economic benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains
or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset
are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are
recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Impairment losses on tangible and
intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in
order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if
any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL
are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are mainly classified into one
of the two categories: loans and receivables and available-
for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the
nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined
at the time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life
of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and bills receivables, other
debtors, short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash)
are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment (see accounting policy on
impairment of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

e  breach of contracts, such as default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

3 it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 119 ’



120

Bt#$R 4 Financial Statements

HE—ZT—

ER{CIKEARAR - —F

FESHBEX®

ERMIT A

EMEEE)
cREERE(E)
mETHINEREE(NE FERK
BEFOME @ I EBIEL AR
MEES —HIEESRENG -’
WERRAE BB RENREEER
EAEEBAERGKES HE A8
HBBTHEEH30KE0RME
HEE LA - BxRet @& B
HIRRR R S S E R E U BR R BE(E
E °

RIREHERAAENSREEM
5 OREBREBEAEENREE
HEFERRBEEREBNREASE
BEMNRIGERNEFR)HNZHE
HERR o

IR AT EN S RE E (BIA
ERE)ME - MEBBENSENE
ENREEEGITRRAESREN
REMNBUEREENE TS E
BEFR)FENZEAE - ZFRE
BERTENER IR E -

S REEREBNREBES
EERSREEMNREERELN
W B S EWBRKERIN - HERE
EeHARGRELTR - BEK
NHEEAEZS R BEPHER -
B X — 8 5 FE R R K E e K
HWR AN U E B - H iGN
BR IS o 7O 1R FE T LA B
SHFRIERT ATE LR ©

—hFEFER

AF+=A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
debtors that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective
basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period
ranging from 30 to 90 days, observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
assets’ original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost (i.e. available-for-sale
investment), the amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade debtors, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade or other debtor is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will
not be reversed through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debts and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of
its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction
costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)
Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis

other than those financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, of
which the interest expense is included in net gains or losses.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL of the Group are mainly derivative
financial instruments.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near future; or

e  on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of an
identified financial instrument that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with
any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in
profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities (including creditors and borrowings)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.



FESHE K=

E@MIT B

TTESRmIT A
STETANTETRAANETBY
DR AE TR HER B £ 15 LA 3R 2% B
Ry DREEHHE - FIEEMIK
HREBENERBRRNER B
IS HTE T A RIS MA K B
TAE ERERT  RESHER
HOBS RIB R R e R (R B B -

TRHEHPEAZITETARKR
REBEEEZEREEXFFREER
ZEBAafE -

bk 7
AREBIETE R LDTET A (BRI =i
Het) AEZBRITEERSRE

ZH o

RE PR 2RI - ARBECERY
T AMEE IR E M RIER - N
TEBEUNRZZEAREEBRER
HEHE o poh - REH B MET
HifE - NEBREBEBENEhER
ZEMTARBREEARBEE
HHRAMRERELD o

RERBHH
BENTRRSREL M2 ITET
ARArEES HAXRBOHREMD
2HKREARBRRE P EEAR
ate HEME D < Wam sk E1E - A
B 48 R AR S a T A Bt s %
&8 155108 -

BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedging relationship.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
deemed as financial assets held for trading or financial
liabilities held for trading.

Hedge accounting

The Group designates certain derivatives as hedges of the
cash flow of floating-rate bank borrowings (i.e. interest rate
swap contracts).

At the inception of the hedging relationship, the Group
documents the relationship between the hedging instrument
and hedged item, along with its risk management objectives
and its strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions.
Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an
ongoing basis, the Group documents whether the hedging
instrument is highly effective in offsetting changes in cash
flows of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk.

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of hedging reserve. The
gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised
immediately in profit or loss and is included in the “other
gains and losses” line item.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Cash flow hedges (Continued)

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit
or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised
in profit or loss, in the same line as the recognised hedged
item. However, when the hedged forecast transaction results
in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial
liability, the gains and losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the cash flow
hedging reserve are transferred from the cash flow hedging
reserve and included in the initial measurement of the cost
of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability.

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes
the hedging relationship, the hedging instrument expires or
is sold, terminated, exercised, or when it no longer qualifies
for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity at that
time remains in equity and is recognised when the forecast
transaction is ultimately recognised in profit or loss. When a
forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain
or loss accumulated in equity is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for the amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
arising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the inception of
the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is released over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all
the following conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

. the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the amount of revenue can be
measured reliably).

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not re-translated.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

e exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future
productive use, which are included in the cost of those
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to
interest costs on those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in
order to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see the
accounting policies below); and

e exchange differences on monetary items receivable from
or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement
is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming
part of the net investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
repayment of the monetary items.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of the
translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling interests as
appropriate).
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss. In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of
a subsidiary that does not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 April 2005 are treated as assets and liabilities of
that foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on acquisition of foreign operations before
1 April 2005 are treated as non-monetary foreign currency
items of the acquirer and reported using the historical cost
prevailing at the date of the acquisition.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before tax” as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of items of income
and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and items that are never taxable and deductible. The Group's
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill.
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Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets for investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property is
depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale.
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(Continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

Share options granted and vested before 1 April 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the consolidated financial statements until such time as
the options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in the
profit or loss in respect of the value of options granted. Upon
the exercise of the share options, the resulting shares issued
are recorded as additional share capital at the nominal value
of the shares, and the excess of the exercise price per share
over the nominal value of the shares is recorded as share
premium. Options which lapse or are cancelled prior to their
exercise date are deleted from the register of outstanding
options.

Share options granted and vested on or after 1 April
2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to
the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in the share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will
be transferred to retained profits.
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BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

4. Key Sources of Estimation

Uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make various estimates based on past experience,
expectations of the future and other information. The key
assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.

Estimated impairment of goodwiill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units
to which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the future cash
flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
As at 31 December 2015, the carrying amount of goodwill
was HK$69,574,000 (2014: HK$69,574,000). Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 16.

Estimated impairment of trade
receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future
cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset's original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2015, the
carrying amount of trade receivables is HK$1,566,326,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$110,716,000) (2014:
carrying amount of HK$2,075,262,000 (net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$88,269,000)).

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. The management
of the Group is responsible to determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.
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4.

Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty (continued)

Fair value measurements and valuation
processes (Continued)

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The management of the Group works closely with
the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model, and will
report the valuation findings to the board of directors of
the Company to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair
value of the assets and liabilities.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that
are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair
value of certain types of financial instruments. Notes 15 and
30 provide detail information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the
fair value of various assets and liabilities.

Turnover and Segment Information

Turnover

Turnover represents the amount received and receivable for
goods sold to customers during the year, net of discounts
and sales related taxes.

Segment information

For management purposes, the Group's reportable operating
segments under HKFRS 8 for the year ended 31 December
2014 included four business divisions, namely (i) solvents, (ii)
coatings, (i) lubricants and (iv) others. During the current
year, for the purposes of assessment of segment performance
of each operation, the Group has separated inks division
from coatings division, and the reportable segment has been
revised to the following four segments, namely (i) solvents,
(i) coatings, (iii) inks, and (iv) lubricants. Comparative figures
have been restated to conform with the current year's
presentation.
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Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)

Segment information (continued)

Principal activities of the Group's reportable segments are as

follows:

Solvents - manufacture of and trading in raw solvents
and related products

Coatings - manufacture of and trading in coatings and
related products

Inks — manufacture of and trading in inks and
related products

Lubricants — manufacture of and trading in lubricants

products

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group's accounting policies described in note
3. Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of interest income, dividend
income, fair value change on derivative financial instruments,
fair value change of investment properties, gain or loss on
disposal of corporate assets, central administration costs and
interest expense. This is the information reported to the Co-
Chief Executive Officers of the Company, the Group's chief
operating decision makers, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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EEENTEER®

EXo¥E

Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)

Segment information (continued)

() P HEXBER¥ERE (a) Segment revenue and results
AEEREBFAEZEEE An analysis of the Group's turnover and results by
PRZEFEREBESTN reportable and operating segments for the year under
T review is as follows:

SRABM
Reportable
58 2 ik BEE segment  RHEH &a
Solvents Coatings Inks  Lubricants total  Elimination  Consolidated
TR TR TR T TR TR TR
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
BE-3-TE  Yearended 31 December 2015
tzp=t-A
12355
HEERE Segment revenue
e External sales 488309 1876316 1477148 37,665 8,584,225 - 858425
HEREE Inter-segment sales 123,69 14,673 15,486 m 154,578 (154,578) -
L] Total 5,006,792 1,890,989 1,492,634 348,388 8,738,803 (154578) 8,584,225
25 Results
L Segment results 135,59 60,922 68,857 (25,519) 239,856 353 240,209
GNESTEHES L, bchange loss arising from a foreign currency
EREE(HET)  bank loan (note 7) (11,632)
%}EE@EMEM Fair value change on derivative finandial
21t MTU) instruments (note 7) 13,105
REMENRBER(  Gain on fair value change of investment
i (i) properties note 7) 19,400
FARMA Unallocated income 37,29
FORER Unallocated expenses (66,123)
-G Interest expense (10,217)
B aiak Profit before taxation 162,034

ER{CIKEARAR - —F

—hFEFER
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EXERIEER® 5. Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)
ESV S k16D Segment information (continueq)
() P EEXBR¥E W) (a) Segment revenue and results (Continued)
SRABET
- Reportable
AY B e BEh sqment XA &4
Solvents Coatings ks~ Lubricants total  Elimination ~ Consolidated

TAL AT TA TR TR T TR
HKSO00  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSOO0  HKS'000

BE-Z-BE  Yearended 31 December 2014

tZA=1-H

i2:3:4
AREEE Segment revenue

HiNE External sales 6,037,374 2,122,121 1,664,148 43159% 10,255,839 - 10255839

HEREE Inter-segment sales 166,300 17671 2,035 U 186,747 (186,747) -
g Total 6,204,174 2,140,392 1,666,183 431837 10,442,586 (186,747) 10,255,839
35 Results

HELE Seqment e BBAS 405 558 03 33830 80 33850
NERFESESR,  Exchange loss arising from a foreign currency

EXERMET)  bank loan note 7) (23%)
TESBTARLE  Fair value change on derivative financial

22 (KiEET) instruments (note 7) 3,568
REMERRERL  Gain on fair value change of investment

i (fET) properties (note 7) 7500
HEMHHERE  Gain on disposal of available-for-sale

WA(RETR18)  investment (note 7 and 18) 6347
FARMA Unallocated income 99,384
AHRER Unallocated expenses (77,309
-G Interest expense (61,558)
B#aRe Profit before taxation 371,48

S HAR $HE BT HMEE R RTAR - Inter-segment sales are charged at the similar terms as

external sales.
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5. E¥HEREER @

¥ Sk 10 )
(b) EfER

REEDBEBREXDBEER

Turnover and Segment Information

(Continued)

Segment information (continued)

(b) Other information

Amounts included in the measurement of segment

BRETIIEHE profit or loss or segment assets:
ELpE )
Reportable LEEE
| B it o) g segment  Corporate &4
Solvents Coatings Inks ~ Lubricants total level  Consolidated
Tn TR Tén Tn Tén Tin Tén
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK§'000
BE-E-1E Year ended 31 December 2015
t-Azt-R
LEE
FEHEERE (I Additions to non-current assets (note) 147,857 75,603 36,406 4499 264,365 87,621 351,986
VR TG Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
g 39,140 41,476 36,434 1,980 125,030 8323 133353
B titsEs Release of prepaid lease payments 153 333 91 167 6,03 - 6,03
BYEE B Amartisation of intangible assets 936 - % - 135 5 1,260
HE /M FRE  Loss on dlsposaliwritien-off of propert,
RRERLAERE  plantand equipment and land use rights
i3 4 4,003 6,401 20 13,563 (140) 1343
REMEDLERIZ  Gain on fair velue change of investment
& propertes - - - - - (19,400) (19.400)
BEE-pE Year ended 31 December 2014
+2Az1-R
LEE
FRIAEFE(VE)  Addtons to non-curent assets rote 164369 854 0408 65 1998 B0 305106
W BRRREZ  Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
fig 46,706 37,145 344719 468 123,016 6,951 129967
lphmar a5 Release of prepaid lease payments 2105 3097 1159 _ 6361 h 6361
BYEE B Amortisation of intangible assets 1018 B 1151 _ 2169 % 219
e /EEng Loss on disposalfwritten-off of property, plant
BRRER and equipment and land use rights
HhRREBR 4252 2415 4,390 830 11,887 2 11,889
HAE BRREE  Impaimentloss inrespect of property,
LhEEE plant and equipment - 9,746 417 - 13,863 - 13863
RENZALES (Gain on fair value change of investment
g properties = = = = = (7.500) (7.500)
HETEHERE 20 Gain on disposal of avalable-for-sale investment ) _ I - - (63.487) (63487)
HEREREEENE  Gain on disposel of asset hld for sele - (11,214) i = (11214 - (11,214)
BEMBZAZAZE  Written down of inventories to net realisable
value 28814 - - - 28814 - 28814

Hix: ERBDEETRESRMIA -

ERCIKEERAT - — T AFEFR

Note: Non-current assets excluded financial instruments.
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Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)
Segment information (continued)

(c) An analysis of the Group's segment assets
and segment liabilities by reportable and

i operating segments is as follows:
AHE 2R e pabEp: e
Solvents Coatings Inks Lubricants  Consolidated
FEL FHT FEL FEL T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZE-FEE+-A=1+-H At 31 December 2015
BE Assets
2IAHFEE Reportable segment assets 2,494,300 1,472,570 1,571,345 309,143 5,847,358
Ht kD BEE Other unallocated assets 1,591,709
BABEE Consolidated total assets 7,439,067
B Liabilities
By N Reportable segment
liabilities 673,895 410,457 440,939 57,590 1,582,881
B Taxation payable 41,200
EERERE Deferred tax liabilities 7742
ERAEERE Other unallocated liabilities 2,763,045
DARBEE Consolidated total liabilities 4,394,868
R=Z-ME+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2014
BE Assets
2N EEE Reportable segment assets 3,395,839 1,422,871 1,674,046 262,981 6,755,737
H R DEEE Other unallocated assets 1,526,698
GROEE Consolidated total assets 8,282,435
B Liabilities
ELpaEey N Reportable segment
liabilities 813,602 449 854 356,278 51,735 1,671,469
BT Taxation payable 64,641
ELHEBAR Deferred tax liabilities 13,189
Hin ko ERAaR Other unallocated liabilities 3,132,440
HABAR Consolidated total liabilities 4,881,739
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Turnover and Segment Information
(Continued)

Segment information (continued)

(d) For the purposes of monitoring segment
performances and allocating resources
between segments:

e  all assets are allocated to operating segments other
than short-term bank deposits, bank balances and
cash, investment properties, other non-current
asset, derivative financial instruments and the
unallocated assets; and

e all liabilities are allocated to operating segments
other than taxation payable, deferred tax liabilities,
derivative financial instruments, borrowings and
the unallocated liabilities.

Geographical information

The Group's revenue from external customers for the year
ended 31 December 2015 was substantially generated from
customers located in the Mainland China (place of domicile
of the group entities that derives turnover) amounting to
HK$8,353,246,000 (2014: HK$9,985,049,000). Substantially
all of the Group's non-current assets excluding derivative
financial instruments were also located in the Mainland
China (place of domicile of the group entities that holds
such assets) amounting to HK$2,170,088,000 (2014:
HK$2,075,174,000).

Major customers

No individual customer of the Group has contributed over
10% of the turnover of the Group for both reporting
periods.
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6. EEMEeREEME 6. Directors’ Remuneration and
Employees’ Emoluments

BN EMNTI02(ZZF—M: 11 The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2014:

BI)EFZMEMT 11) directors were as follows:

#iEs FnEes BiunEs
Executive Directors Non-Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive Directors

78 e ity BER 5] EER A7 e 2ER .22 at BHEER
Yip Wong Ho Kwong Ip Tong Ng Wong li Ku Management

TszHin -~ KamYm@  SaiHou KwokChiu#  ChiShing ~ WuiTung  SiuPing  KongChi Chak Man* ~ YuenFun Total  executives
Tén  TEn  fEr TR TEn TR TER TEr TR TR TR Tin
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00D  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00  HKS'000 HK§'000

HECE-1F Year ended 31 December 2015
t2AZ+-ALEE
g‘@ﬁ Fees 400 400 400 400 - 30 200 500 100 300 3,020 -
Eie Other emoluments
EERAMER Saares and oter benefs 30 205 4B 1480 130 . . - : B T I 1
FAHIEERAAML  Disoetonay bonus
?E?I (82) 65 (60) 855 - - - - - - m 1,069
RARRAGEIS Retirerent benefit scheme
contributions M 176 106 134 - - - - - - 629 662
Mﬁﬁ,@%ﬁ Total emoluments 3630 2,686 2176 2839 1369 30 200 500 100 300 14120 127%

EHEE FHES BUAHES
Executive Directors Non-Executive Directors Independent Non-Executive Directors
£ Ethe  WHR  BERM  E BER 0 AT ERe EBER R EER At AREEE
Au-Yeung
Yip Wong Ho Kwong Ip Tong Ng Wong Tsan Pong, l Ku Management

Tzt Kam Yim@ SaiHou KwokChivt  ChiShing  WaiTung — SiuPing  Kong Chi Davied  Chak Man*  Yuen Fun Totdl  executives
fir THr T TR TR fEr TAar TR TR TEm TR TiR Tin
HKS'000  HKFO0D  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKFOOO  HKS'O00  HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$1000

HEZE-ME  Yeurended 31 December
TZRET-A
LER
Ezjg Fess 10 10 0 10 . 0 0 50 0 0 W3 =
Efthte \_ Other emoluments
ZORAMER  lresadoterbels 300 199 166 148 149 - - = = - BT 8350
SRR Discretionary bonus
P £ 1ol 183 16 - - - - - - -
Hﬂm‘_ﬁl Share-based payments - 13 13 13 - - - - - - - 369 -
BIREHETEIES  Retrement benfi scheme
contributions 205 176 i 135 - - - - - - - 593 365
g2 Tota emoluments 39 M6 4B 1M 0 0 50 0 0 W Ml 16l
A iTES 2 50 = 24t % The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
BEHAATERAEEFBETEETRKIE mainly for their services in connection with the management
MR - A EFMEIERTEER of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
BYEHITES M EES S emoluments of the non-executive directors and independent
EERBADTIEE R © non-executive directors shown above were mainly for their

services as directors of the Company.
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6. EEMEREEME )

MEE

(@) EHEZZ—RF+-—A=+—H8HIE
FE - LMEEZHSREMBEF
BIELEHEM£1,560,0007 T
—Z—[04 : 1,560,000/87T) °

(b) ZERBIMEIRAFIDEZEANZE
FEZREEE  BARARBY
RT5 2 et BURTDRE °

(0 ZEFHELERBARFRZEEHRTE
BEIFE  NLAEEMSEREH
HEERITRABERPTIRE Z RS

# R-Z—NF—A—HEZTAR
RNRIITES ©

A RIZ-ME=FFRNBET -

REBSU S Hm ABF3IMAR
ARBE(ZZT—WF : 407) - HEN
SHBERLEMEE - Hff2fu (=%
—HEF D) EEZMESHT ¢

Directors’ Remuneration and
Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(@) The directors’ salaries and other benefits above included
operating leases rentals of HK$1,560,000 (2014: HK$1,560,000)
for the year ended 31 December 2015.

(b)  The discretionary bonus is determined with reference to the
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics during the year.

() Mr. Yip Tsz Hin was the Chairman of Group Executive
Committee of the Company, and his emoluments disclosed
above included those for services rendered by him as the Chief
Executive.

# Appointed as an executive director of the Company on 1
January 2014.

A Passed away on 16 March 2014.

* Retired and resigned as an independent non-executive director
of the Company on 30 June 2015.

@ Retired and resigned as executive director of the Company on 1
January 2016.

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, three (2014: four) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are disclosed above. The emoluments of
the remaining two (2014: one) individual(s) were as follows:

—Z—EHF —ZT—F

2015 2014

FERT FHIT

HK$'000 HK$'000

He REAMET Salaries and other benefits 4,902 3,287
BINERETEIER Retirement benefit scheme contribution 138 =
5,040 3,287

LA MRS HIRE - AEBS&
BEZAB(BEES) WEHHK
i'JﬁﬁM”&%\EjJD)\YEE,JJW\KE
ErF 2 TS sk BER A& o boh - 3R

ﬁi%ﬁ?ﬁfliﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&%&'ﬁ

ERCIKEERAT - — T AFEFR

During both reporting periods, no emoluments were paid
by the Group to the five highest paid individuals, including
directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. In addition, no director
waived any emoluments during both reporting periods.
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6. EEMEREEME )

6. Directors’ Remuneration and
Employees’ Emoluments (continued)

Efpu /(ZZE—0F  1U)EES The emoluments of the remaining two (2014: one)

ZMeEEMT individual(s) were within the following bands:
—E-HF —T-F
2015 2014
EEAY EE A
No. of No. of
employees employees
2,000,00187c£2,500,0007% 7T HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 1 -
2,500,001 70£3,500,0007% 7  HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000 1 1
2 1

FHRREREZMSEEMT :

The emoluments of the management executives were within

the following bands:

—E-AF —E—mE

2015 2014

EEAY BB AR

No. of No. of

employees employees

T T £ 1,000,000 7T HK$0 to HK$1,000,000 2 =
1,000,001 5% 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 3 2
1,500,001/87C%£2,000,000% 7  HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 2
2,000,001 7c£2,500,0007%7c  HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2 1
2,500,001& 7c 23,500,000 7T HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,500,000 - 1
9 6
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7. Httlsm REE

AEEE H A s (B1R) 845

7. Other Gains and Losses

The Group's other gains (losses) comprise of:

—E-RF —F—F
2015 2014
FHERT THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
GNESSRITE N EA ZEH,  Exchange loss arising from a foreign currency
&5 18 (PR=E () B T E5) bank loan (Note (i) and note 5) (11,632) (2,396)
BRI HI A 4 RN H ¥ Fair value gain on derivative financial
REAG AN ZITES R instruments of a cross currency swap
TEZARnEkKS contract and foreign exchange forward
(MIEG) R HT5E5) contracts (Note (i) and note 5) 13,105 3,568
Nat Sub-total 1,473 1,172

H oM aep 2 5L Net exchange loss arising from other foreign
2 OFRIE N S currency balances and transactions (51,208) (41,388)
RIBAREEEZE(Mi3E(i)  Allowance for bad and doubtful debts, net

(Note (ii)) (49,523) (31,763)
HE FTiEmE - RE & Net loss on disposal/written off of property,
BRI E R EEE  plant and equipment and land use rights (13,423) (11,889)
KEMEANREZLZ Gain on fair value change of investment
Weas (BREES) properties (note 5) 19,400 7,500
HEFEHEEEKZ Gain on disposal of asset held for sale
(PisE23) (note 23) - 11,214
HeErHHEmEkzs Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
(FFzES) investment (note 5) - 63,487
(93,281) (1,667)
ek - Notes:

() R-ZZE—=FMA A&EEE
SE—2xRra(RzT] RIT
B 7X24,800,0002 7T( # & »
198,648,000/ 7T ) ° A% INE E R
BRERK  ANEEFZEEEREHS
HILAKE 78 E SR Z NS ERITE K ©
EHEEEREHZ R ERINEG
BITERZ FHIEE D BIEFI R K &
25126 °

(i) ARARERTEHFIGESEWKIA
Z BN - W2 RERR KRB
R B M B R IE R At IR RIE
BRZE -

ERCIKEERAT - — T AFEFR

@)

(ii)

In April 2013, the Group raised a new bank loan in
Australian dollar (“AUD") of AUD24,800,000 (equivalent to
HK$198,648,000). In order to minimise the exposure to foreign
currency risk, the Group entered into a cross currency swap
contract to hedge economically against the foreign currency
bank loan. Details of the fair value of the cross currency swap
contract and the foreign currency bank loan are set out in
notes 25 and 26 respectively.

The directors of the Company assess the recoverability of
the trade receivables on a regular basis and determine the
allowance for bad and doubtful debts after taking into
accounts of the repayment history and settlement situation of
the relevant debts.
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BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

8. Interest Expense

—B-AF —E-mE
2015 2014
FERT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITEENFE Interest on bank borrowings 56,715 52,695
TR He 7 A2 8B5S Net loss arising on interest rate swaps
ZREREHAMES designated as cash flow hedges of
ZFEE floating rate debts 13,502 8,863
70,217 61,558
BB FS A 9. Profit Before Taxation
—E-hfF —Z—mE
2015 2014
FERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BF AN D IR 538 Profit before taxation has been arrived at
after charging:
A B Amortisation of intangible assets 1,260 2,194
ZEEIN S Auditor's remuneration 4,142 4,360
W - MENEREZITE  Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 133,353 129,967
M - BERBEZHME  Impairment loss of property, plant and
718 equipment = 13,863
FEMRZ I #5RFE Written down of inventories to net realisable
value - 28,814
TREME L KETAER[  Operating lease payments in respect of rented
IR premises 22,136 20,365
FE{S £ b FH 5 5 Release of prepaid lease payments 6,053 6,361
BETIRA - BIEEEMS  Staff costs, including directors’ remuneration
(PBtaE6) (note 6) 683,557 704,628
BRARIZ L 2 FERA Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 7,204,662 8,747,525
WaEE s A G AEA and after crediting (included in other income):
L ONE
FLEWA Interest income 32,593 29,863
ERERZBN /S Government grants recognised 15,861 11,522
HEWACREES H Rental income (excluding direct outgoings of
445,000/ 7T HK$445,000 (2014: HK$489,000))
(ZZ—mF :
489,000/87T)) 3,557 3,143
AEHER ARSI A Dividend income from available-for-sale
investment - 66,252
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10. %18 10.Taxation
—E—AEF —ZT-F
2015 2014
FHET FH&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
IR1THRIIE — P B KR Current tax — Mainland China
NG Current year 80,090 107,741
B FEEARE Overprovision in previous years = (8,536)
80,090 99,205
EIEFETE (F5E27) Deferred taxation (note 27)
s> Hong Kong (238) 66
e N7 Mainland China (5.,209) 1,009
(5,447) 1,075
74,643 100,280

&8 NS B 4% P A il 5t B AR 004 7

16.5%5M & ° estimated assessable profit for both years.

REBEPEARAMBEEMAEIE
(TREMBHZED REEMBHA
BRG] - P EIRENEB AR ZH
EE_ZEN\F—A—HER25% °

AEBETRHBEARERLE 2B
REATEERIERBHRMEE
BREZBIS%ZAGHE - hEIKR
ELEMBHRENRTFAZERNKE

ERCIKEERAT - — T AFEFR

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the

Under the Law of the People's Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Certain of the Group's subsidiaries operating in Mainland
China are eligible as High and New Technology Enterprise,
and are entitled to an income tax rate of 15%. EIT of
Mainland China has been provided for after taking these tax
BRI - incentives into account.
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10.&1,5(/@) 10.Taxation (continued)
HEfh e AR 2 BIB T IRE @ alE Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
Rz BRKERGTE - prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.
BIE 2 HERERAT ¢ A statement of reconciliation of taxation is as follows:
—E-AF —T—OF
2015 2014
FHERT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000
s 55 AL E ) Profit before taxation 162,034 371,248
R I P15 Fi B 2R 25 % Tax charge at the domestic income tax rate

STE IR of 25% (2014: 25%)

(ZZ—M4F : 25%) 40,509 92,812
FFEEBEEE Overprovision in previous years = (8,536)
AR B ERAE 2 Tax effect of expenses not deductible for

=24 tax purposes 36,331 46,431
ERAFHOWAEFE 2 Tax effect of income not taxable for

2 tax purposes (9,104) (18,157)
AP UAREROTIEEEBY  Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Mz 8 35,409 33,023
B Z BIARFER R FL IR Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses

EREREzE previously not recognised (10,387) (5,700)
OB AR ZBEFEK  Effect of income tax on concessionary

HEEH &8 rates for certain subsidiaries (28,904) (44,358)
HRDELHFFEIRT 2 522 Effect of withholding tax on undistributed

profits 10,033 3,940
Hfth Others 756 825
REFEFIA Taxation for the year 74,643 100,280
R M BT 15 B B 2R T (56 B AN & B K BB The domestic income tax rate is a tax rate in the jurisdiction
DEBFERERER ZFIR - where the operation of the Group is substantially based.
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11.8E 11.Dividends
—E-HF —ET—mE
2015 2014
FERT FAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
RERNER AR ZME © Dividends recognised as distribution
during the year:
“E-REFRHRE Interim dividend for 2015 of HK10.0 cents
FRZ10.071L (2014: HK10.0 cents) per share
—T—MOF:
Fh%10.07540) 56,330 56,275
—EFERRKE Final dividend for 2014 of HK15.0 cents
FP%15.058(0 (2014: final dividend for 2013 of
—ZE—PO4F : HK15.0 cents) per share
—E-=FHRRE
Bi%15.0/81L) 84,493 84,413
140,823 140,688
EERRREAAEBEE=_F 1 A special dividend equivalent to HK4.5 cents per share
FT-_A=T - HLEFEHK totalling not less than HK$25,367,000, in respect of the
EBRASEWN BB AR year ended 31 December 2015 has been proposed by the
25,367,000/ 7T I 1 A R4 B directors and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the
BOZBRRBFARE LRRAES - forthcoming annual general meeting.

ERCIKEERAT - — T AFEFR
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12.8REF 12.Earnings Per Share
RABRREETRERREFE The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
BATIRBE T IERETE - attributable to owners of the Company is based on the

following data:

—F-H%F Tl
2015 2014
FET FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
RERNBIRREFEF]  Profit for the year attributable to owners
FEtESBRELRK of the Company and earnings for the
HHBR BN 2 BT purposes of calculating basic and diluted
earnings per share 47,847 223,182
REE
Number of shares
T T
‘000 ‘000
TEERERZRNZ Weighted average number of shares for
DREFE A% 2 the purpose of calculating basic earnings
per share 563,320 562,620
Alge I EBRHEE L Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
BExE
B S A Share options 378 1,211
TEEREEERRRN Weighted average number of shares for
- ESlibe the purpose of calculating diluted earnings
per share 563,698 563,831
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13.9% - BERRXE 13.Property, Plant and Equipment

B #8
HELH RBAERE
REF  Furniture,

ERIR  Leasehold fixtures RE  HERHS
Construction land and  and office Motor Plant and &%
in progress buildings  equipment vehicles  machinery Total

T FET FET T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BAE AT COST
RZZE—MF—F—H At1January 2014 34,360 847,443 167,354 53,884 1,123,006 2,226,047
NELE =R Currency realignment (642) (21,878) (3,660) (1,025) (31,245) (58,450)
EX bl Reclassifications (11,685) 1,111 = = 10,574 -
ME Additions 90,995 4,030 17,981 4,326 113,859 231,191
HE /i Disposals/written off (11,886) (224) (6,684) (9,831) (30,698) (59,323)
RZE—MF At 31 December 2014
T-A=1-~H 101,142 830,482 174,991 47354 1,185,496 2,339,465
HNE ,\uﬁ§§5 Currency realignment (5,612) (47,054) (4,975) (2,197) (68,580) (128,418)
EEiva Reclassifications (98,055) 89,000 5,462 = 3,593 =
NE Additions 79,427 6,845 13,539 2,025 202,685 304,521
&/ Disposals/written off (1,593) (2,732) (23,619) (4,910) (51,139) (83,993)
N_E—0%F At 31 December 2015
+-A=+—H 75,309 876,541 165,398 42,272 1,272,055 2,431,575
WERARBEESE DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
—ME—A—B At1 January 2014 = 153,912 88,033 35,451 322,693 600,089
[EfkE=% Currency realignment - (4,494) (1,247) (1,272) (11,316) (18,329)
Em%ﬁ% i Depreciation for the year - 29,230 19,296 4,661 76,780 129,967
i@‘)ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂé Impairment loss in the year - 1,363 2,932 - 9,568 13,863
HE /R B Eliminated on disposal/written off = (48) (6,244) (8,059) (22,184) (36,535)
R-Z—MmE At 31 December 2014
+-A=1+—"H - 179,963 102,770 30,781 375,541 689,055
7\\11,%%:%%5 Currency realignment = (12,678) (3,096) (1,520) (27,239) (44,533)
Depreciation for the year - 31,135 19,570 4,424 78,224 133,353
:./ T SHE S Eliminated on disposal/written off = (3,200) (20,117) (4,229) (42,114) (69,660)
RZZ—R%F At 31 December 2015
+-A=1+—"H - 195,220 99,127 29,456 384,412 708,215
RHE CARRYING VALUES
R-ZT—hF At 31 December 2015
+-RA=+-H 75,309 681,321 66,271 12,816 887,643 1,723,360
R-T—MmF At 31 December 2014
+=-A=+—H 101,142 650,519 72,221 16,573 809,955 1,650,410
EXFit 2z - BRE KFEIEE The above items of property, plant and equipment are
THABEFIRA T ERGTE - depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates per
annum:
HETH AT A) 2 R F B3 Leasehold land Over the shorter of the remaining
2% ' WERRERTE term of the lease or 2%
BF PATE &) 2 18 85 F H ok Buildings Over the shorter of the remaining
25% MEREETE term of the lease or 2.5%
R £EER  45%%25% Furniture, fixtures and office  4.5% to 25%
MAERAME equipment
RE 9%%25% Motor vehicles 9% to 25%
i[5 N zs 6%Z%20% Plant and machinery 6% to 20%
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13.9% - RERZE@ 13.Property, Plant and Equipment
(Continued)
HE-_Z—NO&F+=-RA=+—80" During the year ended 31 December 2014, an impairment
HRREERK D MBEBES TR loss of HK$13,863,000 was recognised in respect of property,
WEREZERE  BWE - BER plant and equipment as a result of the relocation of plant
BB EETR13,863,000/8 7T ° and equipment due to the Group's business integration in

coatings segment.

14.78{+ T8 & 14.Prepaid Lease Payments
—E-HF —FF
2015 2014
FHRT T
HK$'000 HK$'000

AREEFENMN LIS BIE © The Group's prepaid lease payments comprise:

BEAIMDRIFH Leasehold land outside Hong Kong
ZHEE T 231,253 250,281
DITERSE R - Analysed for reporting purposes as:
MENEE Current assets 5,823 6,142
EmEEE Non-current assets 225,430 244,139
231,253 250,281
15. REW 15.Investment Properties
FIT
HK$'000
DRE FAIR VALUE
R-ZZE—MF—H—H At 1 January 2014 66,300
AR EE Increase in fair value 7,500
RZT—OF At 31 December 2014
+=A=+—~H T
N ER Increase in fair value 19,400
R-ZE—HF At 31 December 2015
T=E=—E 93,200
REEREWME 2 AR ETHRER The fair values of the Group's investment properties have
SEVEREBILAEREEM been arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out at the
BR - ZHRERFEERAF - R end of the reporting period by an independent qualified
WERETZHEETE ° professional valuer, Roma Appraisals Limited, not connected

with the Group.
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ﬁfﬁfﬂiﬁﬂﬁ?ﬁtt@?ﬁ#i C R

RELEYERRDKE2REETIS
FAIEEBHEERSERER LT
RELE - EELBREREENE
LU 2 S DA BE 2 3 B T 35 AT 8
BRX5 - WhstWEZ AR ER -
ME 2 Rm RRERSRABAAR -

AEEURBENRENENORAR
BEPRRAREE=R -

—hAF+=A=+—HI%E For the year ended 31 December 2015

15.Investment Properties (continued)

The valuation was arrived at by using direct comparison
approach assuming sale of the properties in their existing
states with the benefit of vacant possession and by making
reference to comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market. The direct comparison approach is based on
market observable recent transactions of similar properties in
similar location. In estimating the fair value of the properties,
the highest and best use of the properties is their current
use.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties situated
in Hong Kong is classified as Level 3 of the fair value

hierarchy.
TRV -_ZE—RHFE+-_A=+ The following table gives information about how the fair
—BER=ZE—Mm&E+=-A=+—H value of these investment properties as at 31 December

FRNMEEZEAABLEEM
B A S E R R B A SR AR A

2015 and 31 December 2014 are determined (in particular,
the valuation techniques and inputs used), as well as the fair

AEFEZERAABTENE AR
BENAEBREEHETOENAAE
BRIHEFS o

value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
categorised based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements is observable.

RESUBRARAEN

FERENECRER ELABRGA\BER
Carrying value of investment ~ AABER MBEZBE
properties held by the Group 7 REFEREEGARE Relationship of

in the consolidated statement  Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) and key EXELEERANE unobservable inputs to
of financial position hierarchy  input(s) Significant unobservable input(s) fair value
BWZE-EF+ZA=1-H

At 31 December 2015

BAERMIAE 2R38 =0 ERUBARRERA THERLSZ  BYARERNTLI08TE29008  BTARERIIHEA

REWHS LAHEH TELR T RETEERANERE Uitk BREARE
HERS im%&%flﬂ@%(%ﬁﬂﬂ BT
Rt BE  BRE)
Price per square feet, using market direct
comparables and taking into account

93,200,000/

1st, 2nd and 3rd Floor of Yip's Level 3
Chemical Building in Hong

A slight increase in
the price per square

Direct comparison method assuming
sale in their existing states and

Kong HK$93,200,000 by reference to comparable sales of location and other individual factors ~ feet will increase
transactions as available in the such as size, building facilities, levels, significantly the fair
relevant market. age of building, etc., which is ranging value.

from HK$2,700/sq.ft to HK$2,900/
sq.ft.

RZE-MET-A=T-H
At 31 December 2014

ERERILIAR 2R3 F=h
73,800,007

EEHEEAEANT HERES
RABE LT AL
HER -

STARERNT2087E25008  STARBRAARA
T RAMGERILRYE Uitk  BRRLOA
R RAMERIRE (FIOA) 85
Fit - BE - BERS)

Price per square feet, using market direct
comparables and taking into account
of location and other individual factors feet will increase
such as size, building facilities, levels, significantly the fair
age of building, etc., which is ranging value.
from HK$2,200/sq.ft to HK$2,500/
sq.ft.

1st, 2nd and 3rd Floor of Yip's Level 3
Chemical Building in Hong
Kong HK$73,800,000

Direct comparison method assuming
sale in their existing states and
by reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the
relevant market.

A slight increase in
the price per square
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BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

15.Investment Properties (continued)

All the Group's property interests held under operating
leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties.

16. ;& 16.Goodwill
FAEx
HK$'000
BAE AT COST
N-T—m&E—F—Q - At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015
—E-MEFZA=1—H
R=—ZE-AF+-A=+—H 71,462
g IMPAIRMENT
N-F—mME—F—Q - At 1 January 2014, 31 December 2014 and 31 December 2015
—E-MEFZA=+—H
k=F-RFE+=A=+—H 1,888
BREE CARRYING VALUES
W-ZT—REF+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2015 69,574
RZT—WE+=A=+—H At 31 December 2014 69,574

REBEHNE 2 BETRNKER
PEEBHBRZRFTAHFTR
BRReELABN(REELE
fiil) - BEZEEECHENT

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the cash-generating units (“CGU"s) that are
expected to benefit from that business combination. The
carrying amount of goodwill had been allocated as follows:

—E-HF —E—mEF

2015 2014

FBx FHET

HK$°000 HK$'000

BUEREERH Manufacture of and trading in solvents 59,479 59,479
BUEREERK Manufacture of and trading in coatings 10,095 10,095
69,574 69,574

ReEABMZ AW ESEIRE
FEREEMERE - AEEREER
RAZETERRDBEFAZHE
T BRRXPEHHEERERK
RZBEMERT - EEE AR RBR
BRmSTHEERERZESE
A BE A P TED 49 5 E JRL B 2 A5 R L SR
HEREE - ERRTDERHER
ZIERBAMESL - HEBRER
AR 2 B 8 R AR 158 118 Il & FB 1

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
from value in use calculations. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculations are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and expected changes to selling prices
and direct costs during the year. Management estimates
discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the CGUs. The growth rates are based on industry growth
forecasts. Changes in selling prices and direct costs are based
on past practices and expectations of future changes in the
market.
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16%%(%) 16. Goodwill (Continued)
REENEZBR  AEERRE For impairment assessment purpose, the Group performed
%E@?ﬁt}ﬁleﬁfﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁz impairment review for goodwill based on cash flow forecasts
RO BBESEZARKRAF(= derived from the most recent financial budgets for the next
—WO4F - AF)BLRER - EE@EFH five years (2014: five years) for each CGUs approved by
f B T 35 35 B 0 5 B IR (B A0 ST A % management using a discount rate which reflects current
IR & B A B AT 360 5 5 L B 2 B market assessments of the time value of money and the
RE -HE_T-—HAF+_A=+ risks specific to the CGUs. No impairment loss has been
—BIEFE  AEBEYWEREREM recognised by the Group for the year ended 31 December
MEREE - 2015.
oA .
17.8F&EE 17.Intangible Assets
THREHE HRR M
B AE Non- ZFB@%  Trademarks
Technical competition Customer and patent &t
knowhow covenants relationship brands Total
TAL TARL TR Tir TiEx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ﬁSZZFE AT COST
T-EFE-A—H At 1 January 2014 13,248 19,634 9,573 4,146 46,601
9\‘[.:#%%5 Currency realignment (34) (457) - S (491)
Eiﬁ Written off (2,633) - (9,573) (2,194) (14,400)
RZZF-—ME+=A=F—H At 31 December 2014 10,581 19,177 - 1,952 31,710
7\\ HEZR Currency realignment (83) (916) = = (999)
B Written off (5,000) - - - (5,000)
RZE-RFF+-FA=+—H At31 December 2015 5,498 18,261 - 1,952 25,711
BHRAE AMORTISATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
—mE—A-H At 1 January 2014 11,885 16,155 9,573 2,877 40,490
7\\[?“" & Currency realignment (23) (376) = = (399)
FREE Provided for the year 1,045 954 - 195 2,194
s Written off (2,633) - (9,573) (2,194) (14,400)
ZT-WE+ZA=+—F At31 December 2014 10,274 16,733 - 878 27,885
INELEEZEE Currency realignment (72) (823) - - (895)
FREE Provided for the year 129 936 - 195 1,260
3 Written off (5,000) - - = (5,000)
WZZE-RFF-A=1+—H At31 December 2015 5,331 16,846 - 1,073 23,250
REE CARRYING VALUES
RZE-RF+-F=+—H At31 December 2015 167 1,415 - 879 2,461
ZZ-MEFZA=1+—H At 31 December 2014 307 2,444 - 1,074 3,825

ER{CIKEARAR - —F

—hFEFER
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BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

Intang ible Assets (Continued)

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives. Such
intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over
the following periods:

Technical knowhow 4.5 - 10 years
Non-competition covenants 3 — 10 years
Customer relationship 6 years
Trademarks and patent brands 10 years

Technical knowhow represents technical knowledge and
techniques acquired from independent third parties to
manufacture certain insulating varnish, ink and screening
products.

Non-competition covenants represent the right to restrict
the vendors of assets or acquirees, after acquisition of the
entities, to carry on the same business for specific periods
ranging from 3 to 10 years.

Customer relationship represents the customers, which
are buying specialised types of paint and thinner used in
audio visual equipment, cosmetics, mobile phone and other
electronic products.

Trademarks and patent brands represent the brand names
acquired which have high recognition and awareness in the
market.

Available-for-Sale Investment

In the prior year, the Group disposed of its entire available-
for-sale investment, which had been carried at cost less
impairment before disposal, to a shareholder of this investee
at a consideration of HK$87,372,000. A gain on disposal of
HK$63,487,000 has been recognised in profit or loss in the
prior year.

Other Non-Current Asset

The amount represents the cost of club debenture held
by the Group and is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, if any, at the end of the reporting period.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED



’ Bt#& %R Financial Statements

FEMBHREMEE
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z—AF+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

20.7E 20.Inventories
—E-HEF —E—UF
2015 2014
FExT FET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Ex Raw materials 403,394 453,370
ERH Work in progress 24,659 40,376
RURK i Finished goods 311,233 309,124
739,286 802,870

1. EZEWNFEREKRE 21.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

B HttEWRRKRTE Debtors and Prepayments
NRIE

—E-—FF —T-F
2015 2014
FET FH&T
HK$°000 HK$'000
= el Trade receivables 1,677,042 2,163,531
W RARER Less: Allowance for doubtful debts (110,716) (88,269)
1,566,326 2,075,262
FEUT =1 Bills receivables 1,166,787 1,451,747
2,733,113 3,527,009
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21.E5RUNREREWE
% HtEWRR K E

WEIRE)

B 7 BRI

RBEHRREZAH 2 EH RN
RERRE O

21.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other
Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Trade receivables

An aged analysis of trade receivables presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

—Z—EHF —ZT—F

2015 2014

FHBT T

HK$’000 HK$'000

TZE=AA 0 - 3 months 1,222,008 1,664,668
MZE @A 4 — 6 months 235,534 340,345
~MEA M E Over 6 months 108,784 70,249
1,566,326 2,075,262

AEBERFRERBEEFPRMH30K
EIORTNEZEEH - AEEKE
ANRREERF2ERAZRAER
FPHRTIERNEEH

FEEMTAFELA - NEEANZD
SERNRAGeIHEERRZE
B ZEE2EtnERBEREAR
FETEEREREEEN BP
ZBREEE FHIER] c REI70% (=F
—PO%F : 65%) 2 B 5 EWFIEARE
KM ERE  HREAREAR
SEMRABZEEENRS  ZF
B O RWRIBETARITEE -

AEBBEHERKERBED BN
FEURBR SR - ABBRTE{E A471,399,000
B (ZZ — M4 : 735,789,000/
T o ZEE M2 EUAR K E W R
PERTREBTERARKEEE
2 BRE B - AN BN R
EHEELREEBRE A5F
HZEERTBSEEMEARR -

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days
to its trade customers. A longer credit period may be granted
to large or long established customers with good payment
history.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group has
an internal credit control system to assess the potential
customers’ credit quality and the board of directors
has delegated the management to be responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals for
customers. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed
periodically. Approximately 70% (2014: 65%) of the trade
receivables are neither past due nor impaired as they were
assessed to be of good credit rating attributable under the
credit control system used by the Group.

Included in the Group's trade receivables are past due
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$471,399,000
(2014: HK$735,789,000). These past due debtors are all
closely monitored and by past experience, they will eventually
settle their debts, so the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.
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1. EF5RRRERERE 21.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

B HttEEWERRRTE Debtors and Prepayments (continued)
=,
NRE @
ESEWRE @) Trade receivables (continued)
RBEHREAHERBECZES The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, which
FEWBE R IZ R A B Z BRI AT 10 are past due but not impaired at the end of the reporting
1 period based on the invoice date:
—E-1F e bpricfes
2015 2014
FET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
T ={@H 0 — 3 months 223,138 379,364
OZE 75 &8 A 4 — 6 months 139,477 286,176
7@ A A Over 6 months 108,784 70,249
471,399 735,789
T E 5 MW R 2 A e % In determining the recoverability of the trade debtors, the
K- BERARHEERERSEAR Group monitors any change in the credit quality of the trade
H AEEERESERKERER debtors since the credit was granted and up to the reporting
EEz2EMESH - RRARIEER date. The directors of the Company considered that the
R AEETESEXNEERRNE Group has no significant concentration of credit risk, with
FEERRBRBAERSGHFREP exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and
538 o customers.
RERAES Allowance for doubtful debts:
—E-EF e Sbpricfs
2015 2014
FTExT FHIT
HK$°000 HK$'000
==)| At beginning of the year 88,269 65,340
INEEE =58 Currency realignment (6,090) (1,666)
R Y SREE 1B Impairment losses recognised 50,062 38,306
RAFEEWE 2 5KIE Amounts recovered during the year (539) (6,543)
SEEE AT O] 2 ZROE Amounts written off as uncollectible (20,986) (7,168)
FR At end of the year 110,716 88,269
HRERERXEAMBRE 2 E Impairment is made for trade debtors that have been placed
Z W ERRIE L RE - NEE R Z under liquidation or in severe financial difficulties. The Group
SRR A A E RS o does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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% HtEWRR K E

WEIRE)

RRRE

JE SR A5 A B A SR 1T o, I R AR AN
RZBHARER - AEBEIZE 5
BEREXEPABNRITARL 2R
TTRREREER SRR -

HRETHEE T AEBARITA
AERBERETHRRTBEN
BEAREH - RITEAHLERFER
P EBEARITHREERITNZLE
RITALERZ A AT -

RZE—RF+=_A=+—8"
AEBHRERAEEZESE A
415,688,000 jo( — T — M 4 :
557,922,000/ 7T ) K iR 17 & A (&
= ULEENRSENESRER -
Hitt r AEEREBESEZBT
AHEZ2RETARKEE - Wi
REMEEAZHBRE HEY
ERITRGER ZHHA -

BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

21.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Bills receivables

Bills receivables represent $R7 77 5, [EZ (“banker's acceptances”),
i.e. time drafts accepted and guaranteed for payment by PRC
banks. The Group accepts the settlement of trade receivables
by customers using banker's acceptances accepted by PRC
banks on a case by case basis.

These banker's acceptances are issued to or endorsed to the
Group and with maturity date in general not longer than six
months from the date of issuance. The banker's acceptances
will be settled by the banks, which are state-owned banks or
commercial banks in the PRC, on the maturity date of such
banker's acceptances.

At 31 December 2015, the Group endorsed certain banker's
acceptances with an amount of HK$415,688,000 (2014:
HK$557,922,000) to creditors to settle the trade payables to
them. Accordingly, the Group continued to include the full
amount of these endorsed banker's acceptances under bills
receivables and recognised the relevant payable to creditors
until the maturity date of the endorsed banker's acceptances.
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21.ES5RUREREWRE

B HMEWRRKE
FFRIE )
EESRMEE

AR SR ) P T E R A R
B S BRI T 4R 1T A Tt
7 o B SR B O S S A
ERMEARR LR EHEE
BREREKE L EEE - AEE
RENI RIS T BT R E I
HeAEEMEE - XEEKER
e SR A B A S e A BT
RE -

HE-Z—AF+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

21.Trade and Bills Receivables, Other

Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Transfer of financial assets

The following were the Group's bills receivables that were
either discounted to banks or endorsed to suppliers with full
recourse. As the Group has not transferred the significant
risks and rewards relating to these receivables, it continues
to recognise the full carrying amount of the receivables.
The Group has recognised the cash received on the bills
receivables discounted to banks as a secured borrowing.
These receivables are carried at amortised cost in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position.

A2EBREN A2EEREEE
RFRTHERTE EITHEBNEKES
Bills receivables Bills receivables
discounted to banks endorsed to suppliers @t
with full recourse with full recourse Total
ZB-1f —ZT-WF =ZB-1f _T-NE Z=B-IF _—T-NF
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
THT T THT T TEx T

HK$'000 HK$'000

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

PEZ&EEEE Carrying amount of

transferred assets 2,359 16,277
ERMaGE2EEE  Carrying amount of
associated liabilities (2,359) (16,277)

415,688 557,922 418,047 574,199

(415,688)  (557,922)  (418,047) (574,199

ERCIKEERAT - — T AFEFR
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BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

Trade and Bills Receivables, Other
Debtors and Prepayments (continued)

Other debtors and prepayments

Other debtors and prepayments mainly consist of payments
in advance to suppliers, commission receivable from suppliers
and value-added tax recoverable.

Included in trade receivables and bill receivables and other
debtors are the following amounts denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the group entities to
which they relate:

—F-1F =S

2015 2014

FET FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT Hong Kong dollars 3,462 5,711
ESAE D) United States dollars (“USD") 28,048 28,035
HE(TBEE]) Japanese Yen (“YEN") = 219

TERITIF R ~ |ITH 22.

BRAS

BRARTERRBITERLRESE
ETONYFEABREEE QR ZEE
B EE A

Short-Term Bank Deposits, Bank
Balances and Cash

Included in short-term bank deposits and bank balances and
cash are the following amounts denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the group entities to
which they relate:

—Z—EHF —ZT—F

2015 2014

Fax FAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

=TT usD 147,767 25,352
BIT Hong Kong dollars 15,270 2,564
AR EE RMB 48,282 114,965

BRZR=ZEABISH 2 BHETHE
RILFEFR330% (- — P04 :
3.23%)EF 25N - AR T ERITIEK
REFZK0.001 % E5% NEFE(Z
ZT—JU4F : 0.001%Z4.45%) °

Other than short-term bank deposits with original maturity
more than three months carrying interest at 3.30% (2014:
3.23%) per annum, all remaining bank deposits carrying
interest ranging from 0.001% to 5% (2014: 0.001% to
4.45%) per annum.
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235 ABELENEE

R-ZE—=FALA-1+HH &&
BE - 2BIYFE A LEEWH
& ERESREARK17,000,000
Jo( 18 & W 4921,782,0005 7T ) #5
AEBETURBEARINEEER
10,259,0007% T #) & #b & 18 F [}
E-RZTENFEREBELER
#211,214,0007 T 25 o

BNRRKRETER

e I N R D S
BERAABBEREIENER
1,161,050,000% o ( =& — MU 4 :
1,253,480,000/ ) - $AEEE B
RHWEFEBENH  BENEIH:
RER - ERNHEERS BN AR
MEBBE o

24

RBEHRLEZAM 2 E S RN
FIARRE DOMTIAT -

23.Asset Classified as Held for Sale

On 25 September 2013, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of the Group's certain land and buildings outside
Hong Kong with a carrying amount of HK$10,259,000
at a cash consideration of RMB17,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$21,782,000). Such disposal was completed
in 2014 and a gain of HK$11,214,000 was recognised.

24.Creditors and Accrued Charges

At the end of the reporting period, the balance of
creditors and accrued charges included trade creditors of
HK$1,161,050,000 (2014: HK$1,253,480,000). Remaining
balances mainly consist of receipts in advance from

customers, payable of staff salaries and benefits, sales

commission, storage and transportation, etc.

An aged analysis of trade creditors at the end of the
reporting period based on the invoice date is as follows:

—Z—EHF —ZT—F

2015 2014

FE&x T

HK$’000 HK$'000

EE={AA 0 - 3 months 982,601 1,037,240
MZEXNEA 4 - 6 months 169,161 203,909
NMEA M E Over 6 months 9,288 12,331
1,161,050 1,253,480

ENEREETILIEAFRHEEE
RAZNEEER EE A

Included in creditors are the following amounts denominated
in currency other than the functional currency of the group

entities to which they relate:

—E-RF —F—OF

2015 2014

FET FHBT

HK$'000 HK$'000

ET usD 199,855 154,220

ERCIKEERAT - — T AFEFR




BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

25.5TE&mIT A 25.Derivative Financial Instruments
TE FRE
Current Non-current
s i SR T S S
2015 2014 2015 2014
TR FET FET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TESREE Derivatives financial assets
DL Es Derivatives under hedge
BEZfTETH  accounting
FEEEBHER Interest rate swap contract 110 = 140 =

Ht 574 T A (kL Other derivatives (not under
e EEE)  hedge accounting)

REIAH Forward contracts 1,004 = = -
1,114 - 140 =
fTEcmEas Derivatives financial liabilities
A& EEE  Derivatives under hedge
ZITET R accounting
FEIBEE 4 Interest rate swap contracts 3,119 2,354 3,084 1,525

B T4 T E(FELL Other derivatives (not under
YihaikE®E) hedge accounting)

BEHEiEEA 1 Cross currency swap contract 10,661 14,753 = 8,038
BHEH Forward contracts 29 = - -
13,809 17,107 3,084 9,563
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25. 0T €T Hoe 25.Derivative Financial Instruments

164

LR EREH P2 FRE
HEH

AEBMEZEERRITAILZ AT
RRHEH  BAKFBMNEER
REENE  FRIT2ETHEITE
BRITEBEZRESRBAREESR
K- ZERMNZHRERERREAY
HIRITIE B 2 iR — SR (B E (B4R
TEEZAESRE  BERMNEER
HR) - EER/FERHEOES
MEHTE - WREH P EHEE
ERETARRESRELHTA -

o

FE R R B) 2SR ERK M
T OHAPAREAR - BE_ZT—
AF+-A=+—HLEEFE " Re
MEE AR FEE 2,074,000/ 7T
— T — P04 : 178,000/ 7T ) E R
Hiv 2 E WS N ER LR ERS N R
& o EETRHI R AT AT S R 3R AP
% ARREBHEENTE A R IE
mAIALR ©
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(Continued)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash
flow hedges

The Group entered into a number of interest rate swap
contracts with the commercial banks to minimise its exposure
to cash flow changes of its floating-rate Hong Kong dollars
bank loans from banks by swapping floating interest rates
to fixed interest rates. The terms of these contracts were
negotiated to match with those of the hedged bank loans
with the same notional amounts to principal amounts of
bank loans, currency and interest rate index. The directors
consider that the interest rate swap contracts are highly
effective hedging instruments and have designated them
as cash flow hedging instruments for hedge accounting
purpose.

The hedges were highly effective in hedging cash flow
exposure to interest rate movements. Net adjustments on
cash flow hedges of HK$2,074,000 for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2014: HK$178,000) have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity. The
directors expected the accumulated sum is to be released to
profit or loss at various dates in the coming maturity periods
after the reporting period.



25. 0T €/m T Hoe

Wﬁ%umiﬁ\mﬂ Z MR

REN =)

REREHR - M FE26FTH B 2 R1T
EERERERELHFEZ TR
B 3X1,739,583,000/8 (=T — M
£ 1 1,444,584,0007% 7T )
LReREH R ZARIFPELH 2
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i ZE-T—AF+=A=1—HLEFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

25.Derivative Financial Instruments
(Continued)

flow hedges (Continued)

Interest rate swap contracts under cash

Included in borrowings as disclosed in note 26 were bank
loans of HK$1,739,583,000 (2014: HK$1,444,584,000) which
were under cash flow hedges and the major terms of the
interest rate swap contracts under cash flow hedges at the
end of the reporting period are as follows:

FEBERAT -

HE BB WEGE S HER
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
R-B-2F+=-A=+—H

At 31 December 2015

135,000,000/ 7T —~FNA=ZTH BLT=@AZRITRAERE 1.83E
HK$135,000,000 30 9.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR* 1.83%
15,000,000/ 7T —E—RFNA=TH BIL=EA 2 RITRERS 1.95/2
HK$15,000,000 30.9.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 1.95%
8,333,000 7T —E—R"F-A=ZTNH BIT=EA 2 RITAERE 2778
HK$8,333,000 29.1.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.77%
20,000,000/ 7T —Z—RF=A-t=H BLT=EAZRITRAERS 2.702
HK$20,000,000 23.3.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.70%
15,750,000 7T —E—RFMA+=H BIT=EA ZRITRZRE 2,74
HK$15,750,000 12.4.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.74%
10,500,000/ 7T —E—RFMA+=H BLT=EAZRITFRERFE 2222
HK$10,500,000 12.4.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.22%
70,000,000787C “T—+FN\AT+HEA BL=EAZRITRAERE 261E
HK$70,000,000 14.8.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.61%
32,083,000/8 7T —t&ENA=+—H BLT=EAZRTRERE 2.62FE
HK$32,083,000 21.8.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.62%
26,250,00078 7T Z—+FNA+=H BT ={E A ZRITRERE 2.622
HK$26,250,000 13.9.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.62%
46,667,000/8 7T —2—+F+HA+NAH BL=EAZRITRERE 267
HK$46,667,000 19.10.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.67%
40,000,000/ 7T —E—+F+A=1+—H BL=EAZRITRERE 2.682
HK$40,000,000 31, 10 2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.68%
6,000,000 7T TR ERA+LA BITAEA ZRITRERE 2262
HK$6,000,000 17.52016 HK$6-month HIBOR 2.26%
14,000,0007 7T —Z—RFRA+LH BLAEARZRITRERE 1.698
HK$ 14,000,000 17.5.2016 HK$6-month HIBOR 1.69%
300,000,000 7T E—NWERA=TH BT @A ZRITRAERE 3.052
HK$300,000,000 30.5.2019 HK$3-month HIBOR 3.05%
100,000,000/ 7T - \FRA-+=H BL—EAZRITRERE 2548
HK$100,000,000 23.5.2018 HK$ 1-month HIBOR 2.54%
150,000,00078 7T —Z-N\FXAt=H BT —EA 2 RITAERFE 3.2E
HK$150,000,000 13.6.2018 HK$ 1-month HIBOR 3.22%
100,000,000787T —Z-NFE=A=1t—H BT —EAZRITRAERE 222
HK$100,000,000 31.3.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.22%
100,000,0007& 7T —WF+A=+hA Br—EAZETRERS 3.20E
HK$100,000,000 29.10.2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 3.20%
150,000,000/ 7T “T-n&—HR=H Br—EA 2 RITRERS 2.852
HK$150,000,000 2. 1 2019 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.85%
400,000,000 7T —ZE-ZFMA—H Br—EAZRITAERE 2.822
HK$400,000,000 1.4.2020 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.82%
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5.4/ TR

25.Derivative Financial Instruments
(Continued)

U\iﬁ,ﬁuméﬁ‘}ﬁlﬂ Z MR

Interest rate swap contracts under cash

Ha I%’J (&) flow hedges (Continued)

D ZH#A WEEE THRHER
Notional amount Maturity Receive floating Pay fixed
R-Z-m&E+=-A=1+-A

At 31 December 2014

261,000,000 7T ZT-R"EAAR=1H BIL=EA 2 RITRZERFE 1.83E
HK$261,000,000 30.9.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 1.83%
29,000,000 7T —T-X"FNA=1H BIL=EA 2 RITRERES 1.958
HK$29,000,000 30.9.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 1.95%
41,667,000/ 7T —E—R"F-RA=thAH BIT=EA 2 RITAEFE 2.77E
HK$41,667,000 29.1.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.77%
80,000,000/ 7T —~F=ZA=1+=H BIL=EA 2 RITRZERFE 2.70E
HK$80,000,000 23.3.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.70%
42,750,000 7T —T—X"FMA+=AH BIL=EA 2 RITRERS 2748
HK$42,750,000 12.4.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.74%
28,500,000/ 7T —E—FMA+=H BIL=EA 2 BITRERS 222
HK$28,500,000 12.4.2016 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.22%
110,000,000/ 7T —tEN\A+HmA BIL=EA 2 RITRAEFE 2.61E
HK$110,000,000 14.8.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.61%
50,417,000787C —tFNA=t—H BL=EAZRITRERS 2.62[E
HK$50,417,000 21.8.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.62%
41,250,000/ 7T —t&NA+=H BIL=EAZRITRAERFE 2.62E
HK$41,250,000 13.9.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.62%
70,000,000/ 7T —Z—+F+A+hA BILT=EA 2 RITRAFERFE 2.67E
HK$70,000,000 19.10.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.67%
60,000,000 7T —tE+A=+—8 BL=EAZRITRERS 2.68E
HK$60,000,000 31.10.2017 HK$3-month HIBOR 2.68%
24,000,000/&7C T "FRA+tH BILAER 2 RITRERS 2262
HK$24,000,000 17.5.2016 HK$6-month HIBOR 2.26%
56,000,000 7T —Z—R"FRATEH ABILAER 2 RITRZERE 1.69/E
HK$56,000,000 17.5.2016 HK$6-month HIBOR 1.69%
300,000,000/ 7T —NWERA=+H BIL=EA 2 RITRAZERFE 3.05E
HK$300,000,000 30.5.2019 HK$3-month HIBOR 3.05%
100,000,000 7T —NERA-+=R AL —E Az RITRERFE 2542
HK$100,000,000 23.5.2018 HK$1-month HIBOR 2.54%
150,000,000/ 7T —NEXAT=H BT —EAZRITRZERFE 3.22
HK$150,000,000 13.6.2018 HK$1-month HIBOR 3.22%

ERCIKERRARA - —

Z-RFEFH

HIBOR represents Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate.
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25.Derivative Financial Instruments

(Continued)

Foreign exchange forward contracts

The Group entered into a number of foreign exchange
forward contracts. As at 31 December 2015, the change in
fair value of these contracts recorded a gain of HK$976,000
(2014: HKS$Nil) and was recognised in profit or loss. The
majority of these contracts are deliverable forward contracts.
Such contracts were entered into as part of the Group's
treasury operation for the purpose of capturing the price
differential between the spot and forward foreign currency
exchange markets by entering into purchase contracts
that were denominated in USD with the similar amounts
and maturity dates on a one by one basis. Each of these
arrangements, when contracted by the Group, will lock in a
pre-determined return. Accordingly, although the valuation
of each of these foreign exchange forward contracts may
give rise to a gain or loss at a particular date within the term
of the respective contract, such gain or loss will eventually be
substantially offset by each of these arrangements.
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25.Derivative Financial Instruments
(Continued)

Foreign exchange forward contracts
(Continued)

The ranges of the notional amounts of the major outstanding
foreign exchange forward contracts to which the Group is
committed at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

HE A fE =R
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates
R=-ZF-—ARF+=-A=+—8H

At 31 December 2015

Z766,000E T —T—XRF—A+=H x5,/ AR#6.500
Buy USD766,000 12.1.2016 USD/RMB6.500
&5,737,000% 7T —E—XE—A=+H x5,/ AR#6.457
Buy USD5,737,000 20.1.2016 USD/RMB6.457
E731,000E T —T—R"F¥—-A=+HA x5,/ ANR#6.506
Buy USD731,000 25.1.2016 USD/RMB6.506
F702,000FE T —ZE—XE-A—H Ern/ ANR#6.614
Buy USD702,000 1.2.2016 USD/RMB6.614
Z841,000FE T —ZE—RE-A-H x5,/ AE#6.523
Buy USD841,000 2.2.2016 USD/RMB6.523
B 342,000E T —T—XRF-HAAA x5,/ AR¥6.531
Buy USD342,000 5.2.2016 USD/RMB6.531
Z702,000E T —E—XE-AFH x5,/ ANR#6.530
Buy USD702,000 5.2.2016 USD/RMB6.530
E701,0003 7T —T—XFE_A+AH En/ AR¥6.534
Buy USD701,000 15.2.2016 USD/RMB6.534

ERCIKEERAT - — T AFEFR
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BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

25.Derivative Financial Instruments

(Continued)

Cross currency swap contract

Cross Currency Swap

The Group entered into a cross currency swap contract as
part of the Group's treasury operation for the purpose of
minimising the exposure to foreign currency risk and to
hedge economically against the foreign currency bank loan.
As at 31 December 2015, the change in fair value of the
contract recorded a gain of HK$12,130,000 (2014: gain of
HK$3,568,000) which was recognised in profit or loss. The
agreement, when contracted by the Group, was locked in a
pre-determined return. Accordingly, although the valuation
of the cross currency swap contract may give rise to a gain
or loss at a particular date within the term of the contract,
the management of the Group expected that such gain or
loss will eventually be substantially offset with the exchange
gain or loss arising from the foreign currency bank loan at
the end of the contract.

The notional amount of the outstanding cross currency swap
contract to which the Group is committed at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

HfE ZEA 1303\ XAER Ex
Notional amount Maturity Receiving floating Pay floating Exchange rates
R-E-EF+=-A=+—H

At 31 December 2015

§4,509,00027T “Z-REMAZTAIB Rr=AA Br=MEABEHT R, #718.01

Buy AUD4,509,000 29.04.2016

R-Z-OF+=-A=+-H
At 31 December 2014

BBR - BBSW + 1.25% FZFE+ 1.80%
AUD 3-month HK$3-month  AUD/HK$8.01
BBR - BBSW + 1.25% HIBOR + 1.80%

£13,527,00087T —E-"FMA=-t+ANA BT=@A Br=FERzEERET Bt/ B8l
BBR - BBSW + 1.25% RS+ 1.80%
Buy AUD13,527,000 29.04.2016 AUD 3-month HK$3-month  AUD/HK$8.01

BBR - BBSW + 1.25% HIBOR + 1.80%
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25.0TE€m I AEw 25.Derivative Financial Instruments
(Continued)
B BEN @) Cross currency swap contract (Continued)
FEH A () Cross Currency Swap (Continued)
AEEB AW ERE P SHERBE The Group does not currently designate any hedging
HHRE #IEE SRR - relationship on the cross currency swap contract for the

purpose of hedge accounting.

LMPTETATRARERE - R The above derivatives are measured at fair value. The
ARELHN RZZE—AF+-A= classification of the measurement of the above derivatives
+—HLEAERTAZFAENEAS at 31 December 2015 is Level 2 under the fair value
— R (GFIBBEL2HEME30) - hierarchy (see note 30 for details).
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26. 68 26.Borrowings
—Z—EF —ZT—F
2015 2014
FET FAT
HK$°000 HK$'000
EEBERITEX Borrowings included bank loans:
WITER Bank loans 2,772,804 3,067,133
HEZREZANIRERE Discounted bills with recourse 2,359 16,277
2,775,163 3,083,410
Eag i Unsecured 2,775,163 3,083,410
RITERERATEE The bank loans are repayable as follows*:
THE*:
—FR Within one year 1,168,985 1,794,837
—FREMER More than one year but not exceeding
two years 659,848 612,977
MEBRERFNR More than two years but not more than
five years 943,971 659,319
2,772,804 3,067,133
ALIR R R KA T+ The discounted bills are repayable as
follows*:
—F R Within one year 2,359 16,277
2,775,163 3,083,410
B AR —ERNFEIEM Less: Borrowings due within one year
ARBAGEZEE shown under current liabilities (1,171,344) (1,811,114)
SRMAIEREABZEE  Borrowings shown under non-current
liabilities 1,603,819 1,272,296
o B BRER B HERPHI BB *  The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates set

8 B 356 -

AEBRTERZFNRROEE

out in the borrowing agreements.

The Group's bank loans carry annual interests at the range of

IRITRIZERBIN09%EEFHBIRITR
EREN2.05% (ZE—HF: &
BIRTRIZEFREN0.9%EERBRIT
[F 2 #7 B 102.05%); X (ii)}® JT-BBR-
BBSWHN1.25% %] & — & 1A & W [
Z6EA(ZZE—HF : FMAEN
BA)EFE—RK - R=—ZT—WF+
—A=+—8 " RITERZFHE
AT h0 3% 2R 77 Rl ZE 97 2 01.25%
RG)mBERITRZEFRENT.4% °

(i) HIBOR plus 0.9% to HIBOR plus 2.05% (2014: HIBOR plus
0.9% to HIBOR plus 2.05%); and (ii) AUD-BBR-BBSW plus
1.25%. Interest is repriced in the period from two weeks up
to six months (2014: two weeks up to six months). As at 31
December 2014, there were bank loan which carried annual
interest at the range of (i) Singapore Interbank Money Market
Offer Rate (“SIBOR”) plus 1.25% and (ii) London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR") plus 1.4%.

2015 ANNUAL REPORT - YIP'S CHEMICAL HOLDINGS LIMITED 171 ’



172

Bt#& %R Financial Statements

HE-Z—AF+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

26. 68 =) 26.Borrowings (continued)
—E-hHEF —E—UF
2015 2014

BRI Effective interest rates

1.14% £3.75% 1.16%22.79%
EBEE Fixed-rate borrowings 1.14% to 3.75% 1.16% t0 2.79%
1.12% £2.27% 1.28%%22.37%
FEEE Variable-rate borrowings 1.12% to 2.27% 1.28% to0 2.37%

& & 8 $5476,045,000% T( — & —
£ 1 1,248,688,000/ 7T ) i B &
B BRAYHBER—FRIE -

EERRE TNIIAIFNEREE AR

Included in borrowings are HK$476,045,000 (2014:
HK$1,248,688,000) at fixed-rate borrowings with the

contractual maturity dates within 1 year.

Included in borrowings are the following amounts

T IEL M (E Y 2RI denominated in currency other than the functional currency
of the group entities to which they relate:

—B-HF =g

2015 2014

TR TET

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT HKD 240,000 140,000

Ev usD 18,686 112,412

JBIT AUD 25,535 86,139

ERCIKEERAT - — T AFEFR
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27.Deferred Tax Liabilities

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the
current and prior years:

AP ERA
2R
MERERE Withholding
Accelerated tax on
tax BEEE undistributed Hith @t
depreciation Tax losses profits Others Total
FERL TERT TEL THT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Ff&E)
(Note)
RZZE—NE—HF—H At1lanuary 2014 2,220 (164) 7,422 2,636 12,114
RO REEETERS  Reversal of withholding tax
upon distribution - - (2,954) - (2,954)
(GUNEICESES (Credit) charge to profit or
loss 958 (264) 3,940 (605) 4,029
R-Z—mEF At 31 December 2014
+-A=+—"H 3,178 (428) 8,408 2,031 13,189
RAREREERS  Reversal of withholding tax
upon distribution - - (15,435) - (15,435)
GUNEICES (Credit) charge to profit or
loss (43) (195) 10,033 193 9,988
RZE—hF At 31 December 2015
+-A=+—-H 3,135 (623) 3,006 2,224 1,742

e EAEE2RRNKEBHIE QR
BARERERE S EE(BE
WEE BANLES kY-
RS R AR M) T B A 2 IR FE TR IR
afE-

Note: Others mainly represent deferred tax liabilities arising from fair
value adjustments on assets acquired (i.e. intangible assets,
prepaid lease payments and property, plant and equipment) on
acquisition of subsidiaries.
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27.Deferred Tax Liabilities (continued)

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position, certain deferred taxation assets and
liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of
the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes:

= —FmF

2015 2014

FHET FHETT

HK$'000 HK$'000

EETHTERE Deferred tax liabilities 7,742 13,189

R—E—RF+_A=+—8"
AEBBARFERARBEBELY
894,545,000/ jo( = & — M 4 :
793,274,0007% 7T ) A] 4 K 85 K %K
B M—TB—RE+-A=+—
H - B RN %E 183,777,000/
7T( = — g4 : 2,593,000 7T )
REEFIREE - ARKERIR
RKEEFRE  WABERHKT
890,768,000/ jT( = & — M 4 :
790,681,000/ 7T ) IR AE TR IA & £ ©
RIER TS E B 813,543,000/ 7T
T[4 : 701,267,000/ 7T ) A
ERAIELE  REHR T —NF
Kk 2 RIEIER -

AR B B AR IR R B 3T R A AR AT R A
HPEWHBRARIA T /\F— A
—Hﬂaﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂmiﬁéfrl@“iﬁamﬂﬁﬁ
B TR B A B R 2 B ik B FE RRE
FiIE o %ﬁ%ﬁéiﬁ%ﬁmﬁf‘%ﬁx%mﬂ“
K BIE5% = 10% 8 Bt R 4 41 78 1=
o ARNEEZRBANE B A% 5 #
CEREEMNER MEKEER
AERAGRATET SRR - AL
EYERPEHRBEARE-ZZTN
F-—A—HBEERINETALS
IR 1% B8 % #2,032,623,0007 7T =
T — P4 : 2,154,060,0005% 7T ) fE
RIEERIA ©

—hFEFER

At 31 December 2015, the Group had unused tax losses of
approximately HK$894,545,000 (2014: HK$793,274,000)
available to offset against future profits. As at 31 December
2015, a deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of such losses amounted to HK$3,777,000 (2014:
HK$2,593,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in respect of the remaining HK$890,768,000 (2014:
HK$790,681,000) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. Included in the unrecognised tax losses,
HK$813,543,000 (2014: HK$701,267,000) may be carried
forward indefinitely and the remaining balance will expire at
various dates up to and including 2019.

Deferred taxation on undistributed profits of subsidiaries
has been recognised taking into accounts the dividends to
be distributed from profits earned by certain subsidiaries
in Mainland China starting from 1 January 2008 under
the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law of Mainland
China that requires withholding tax with tax rate ranging
from 5% to 10% upon the distribution of such profits to
the shareholders. Deferred taxation has not been recognised
in respect of certain undistributed retained profits earned
by the subsidiaries in the Mainland China starting from
1 January 2008 amounting to HK$2,032,623,000 (2014:
HK$2,154,060,000) as the directors are of the opinion that
the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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28.Share Capital

EE ERTRAE
Authorised Issued and fully paid
—F-hF

R=—F—NF S T
2015 & 2014 2015 2014
THETT THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HRRMEE.10%8 T 2% {n Shares of HK$0.10 each 80,000 56,371 56,276

ERNAAT L BBFTRAG LTS

Movements in the issued share capital of the Company

£ during the year are as follows:
BB E ot |
Number
of shares Amount
TFh% T
‘000 HK$'000
RZZE—MF—A—H At 1 January 2014 562,281 56,228
TR (Mo sEa) Exercise of share options (Note a) 474 48
R-E—mNFE+—_A=+—H At 31 December 2014 562,755 56,276
1T BERRAE (M sEDb) Exercise of share options (Note b) 956 95
MN-E—hFE+_-_H=+—8H At 31 December 2015 563,711 56,371
st - Notes:

(a)

(b)

A ETRNBERBHHEE

REE=—_ZT—NF + ﬂ =
AIEF E [ES NN Il I
400,0000% K74, oooﬁﬁ 5B EE
0108 L2 &RGm - BRIEE D A
A1.590% T 45368 T £ E
474,00017 R AR IEMET T 156 o

REZE= £¢+ ﬂ F—
AitFE l NN B [
576,0000% - 200,000% 180,000
EEFR0.108 T 2 B85 + TFARERE

Bl £2.004% 7T+ 4.0507% 7T K&
1.950/8 7T » #£5956,00019 B A4
BT ©

D

K2R ARNZE RS °

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2014, 474,000 share
options were exercised, resulting in the issue of 400,000 shares
and 74,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at a price
of HK$1.590 and HK$4.536 per share respectively.

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2015, 956,000 share
options were exercised, resulting in the issue of 576,000 shares,
200,000 shares and 180,000 shares of HK$0.10 each in the
Company at a price of HK$2.004, HK$4.050 and HK$1.950 per
share, respectively.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares
in issue in all respects.
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29.Capital Risk Management Objectives

29. EN B fe ETE B AZ B
& and Policies
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The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to owners through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
mainly include the borrowings disclosed in note 26, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital and reserves including retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on
a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider
the cost of capital and the risks associated with capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends and new share issues as well as the issue of new
debts or the redemption of existing debts.
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30.2@T A 30.Financial Instruments
SRIAFH Categories of financial instruments
—EB-AF =t s
2015 2014
TR FHET
HK$°000 HK$'000
EREE Financial assets
ERRERER(BRERS Loans and receivables (including cash
FIR&ESEER) and cash equivalents) 4,185,665 4,987,193
PTHESRMT A : Derivative financial instruments:
—EEAEPIA — designated as hedging instruments 250 =
—ERE AT - not under hedge accounting 1,004 =
SHEAE Financial liabilities
- 3i-[p%N Amortised cost 4,057,254 4,476,495
TESMT A : Derivative financial instruments:
—IEERHHIA — designated as hedging instruments 6,203 3,879
— ISR E A — not under hedge accounting 10,690 22,791
Bk E IR B R E R Financial risk management objectives
and policies
AEESRTABEE S ERRR The Group's financial instruments include trade and bills
NEWER  HEMmEWERR T4 receivables, other debtors, derivative financial instruments,
eRT A BHRTER  RITE short-term bank deposits, bank balances and cash, creditors
BEkAe EBNERREE - ZF and borrowings. Details of the financial instruments are
ERTAHBRSMERE - %% disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
TR TEMEBEARSED SRR financial instruments include market risk (currency risk,
(HNE [V B ~ 1) 2 ol e B L A (B A% interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity
) EERBEESDHESER - risk. The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
THIE 2 51| 40 1a] B K 7% & &L b 2 TR out below. The management manages and monitors these
R-EEBEENEEZERR exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
VAR % S5 75 R0h R ER G & 15 e o on a timely and effective manner. There has been no
AEEFMES SRR HERE significant change to the Group's exposure to market risk or
NMEtEzRER 2z A EEREE - the manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
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30.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

Several subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. Approximately 4% (2014: 4%) of the Group's
sales are denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the relevant group entities making the sale, whilst
almost 75% (2014: 85%) of purchases are denominated in
the relevant group entities’ functional currency.

The carrying amount of the Group's foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are disclosed in respective notes. As at
31 December 2015 and December 2014, the Group mainly
had a cross currency swap contract to reduce its exposure
to potential variability of foreign currency risk arising from
changes in foreign exchange exposure in AUD denominated
bank borrowings. The management continuously monitors
the foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency risk should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of AUD, USD,
RMB and Hong Kong dollars. The following table details the
Group's sensitivity to a 5% (2014: 5%) increase and decrease
in functional currency of respective group entities against the
relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2014: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used which represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation
at the period end for a 5% (2014: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. The sensitivity analysis includes trade and bills
receivables, bank balances, creditors as well as borrowings
(except for those AUD denominated bank loans hedged
economically with the cross currency swap contract). A
positive number below indicates an increase in profit after
taxation where functional currency strengthens 5% (2014:
5%) against the relevant foreign currency for net liability
position and vice versa. For a 5% (2014: 5%) weakening of
functional currency against the relevant foreign currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
after taxation.
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30.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

INER R (4F) Currency risk (Continued)

BRBESH(E) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
= —FNF
2015 2014
FHERT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
ETT usD 1,713 8,447
AR RMB (2,016) 4,795
BIT Hong Kong dollars 9,319 5,533

o EW,EANEERARFIBUIE
HESEEQRINEERTIE A&
EEmMBELINERR - ZARE
HBBE® A% (- T —PO4F :
5%) B+ A B KR 1% 5 ) A5 35
hN35,411,0007% jo( = F — M0 4F ¢
57,363,000 7T) + R BB REMR

By 488
FE o

AEBBEERMEOZIBRED
TR AP R 2 EAf B AR E R 4 R

EEERS BRFREARIL TR
BREFE R - MERE DAL TR
RAESNERR

The Group is also exposed to currency risk concerning the
amounts due from/to group entities, which are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities. When RMB strengthens 5% (2014:
5%) against the relevant foreign currency, profit after
taxation of the Group will increase by HK$35,411,000 (2014:
HK$57,363,000) and vice versa.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group's exposure on the cross
currency swap contract is disclosed in other price risk of this
note.

In management's opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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30.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to fixed-rate bank deposits and bank loans (see note
26 for details of these borrowings). However, since the bank
deposits and the majority of the fixed-rate bank loans will
mature within one year, the management considers the risk
is insignificant to the Group.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to bank deposits carried interest at prevailing market
deposit rate and floating-rate bank loans (see notes 22 and
26 for details). In order to keep the Group's bank loans at
fixed rates, the Group entered into interest rate swaps to
hedge against its exposures to changes in cash flows of
certain bank loans. The critical terms of these interest rate
swaps are the same to those of hedged bank loans. Interest
rate swaps are designated as effective hedging instruments
and hedge accounting is used (see note 25 for details).

The Group's bank balances have exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The directors consider
the Group's exposure of the short-term bank deposits
with original maturity of less than three months and bank
balances to interest rate risk is not significant as interest
bearing bank balances are within short maturity period and
thus it is not included in sensitivity analysis.
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30.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For interest
bearing bank deposits with original maturity of more than
three months and borrowings, the analysis is prepared
assuming the amount of assets and liabilities outstanding
at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for
the whole period. A 50 basis points (2014: 50 basis points)
increase or decrease is used which represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates.

If interest rates on interest bearing borrowings (excluding
bank loans under cash flow hedges of HK$1,739,583,000
(2014: HK$1,444,583,000)) and short-term bank deposits
with original maturity of more than three months had been
50 basis points (2014: 50 basis points) higher/lower and all of
other variables were held constant, the profit after taxation
for the year ended 31 December 2015 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$1,454,000 (2014: decrease/increase by
approximately HK$1,443,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group's exposure to interest rates on its interest bearing
short-term bank deposits and variable-rate borrowings which
are not hedged against their exposures to cash flow interest
rate risk at the end of the reporting period.
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30.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Other price risk

The Group is exposed to other price risk through its derivative
financial instruments. The Group's other price risk is mainly
concentrated on the interest rate swaps, foreign exchange
forward contracts and cross currency swap contract.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses have been determined based on the
exposure to other price risks for derivatives at the end of the
reporting period:

. if (i) the forward exchange rate of the cross currency
swap contract had been 5% higher; (ii) the forward
exchange rate of the cross currency swap contract
had been 5% lower; and (iii) the interest rate of the
cross currency swap contract had been 50 basis points
higher, and all other variables were held constant, the
profit after taxation for the year ended 31 December
2015 would (i) increase by HK$1,818,000 (2014:
HK$5,625,000), (ii) decrease by HK$1,818,000 (2014:
HK$5,426,000) and (iii) decrease by HK$17,000 (2014:
HK$208,000), respectively.

o if the forward interest rate of interest rate swap
contracts had been 50 basis points (2014: 50 basis
points) higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the debit side of hedging reserve
would decrease/increase by HK$14,719,000 (2014:
HK$12,703,000) as a result of fair value change on
interest rate swap contracts.

e if the forward exchange rate of forward exchange
forward contracts had been 5% higher/lower and all
other variables were hold constant, the profit after
taxation for the year end 31 December 2015 would
increase/decrease by HK$3,244,000.
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30.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2015, the Group's maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to failure to perform an obligation by the counterparties are
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated the responsible personnel for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade debt
and other debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly reduced.

In respect of bills receivables, the credit risk is limited as the
Group has procedures and policies in place to ensure they
are from banks or rural cooperative banks with acceptable
credit quality.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are mainly banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid funds
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings and bills receivables mainly from banks with good
reputation in Mainland China, the Group does not have any
other significant concentration of credit risk on trade and
other debtors. Trade receivables consist of a large number
of customers, which spread across diverse industries and
geographical areas.
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30.£R T B 30.Financial Instruments (continved)
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Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensure compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2015, the Group had available
unutilised bank facilities of approximately HK$2,508,312,000
(2014: HK$1,801,845,000).

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its financial liabilities. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.
The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. For
derivative instruments settled on a net basis, undiscounted
net cash outflows are presented.
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30.Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives
and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

—-EHE MERL  ANEER
BFgsmE (ETERLE RENBEE
METHFIE —fBAML  Morethan  More than Total
Weighted —-BAR {BTEB-F  1yearbut 2yearshut  contractual KEE
average Less than 1 month less than less than  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 month to 1 year 2 years Syears  cash flows amount
% TR AR Thn TR AR Thn
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i At 31.12.2015
tZA=1-H
FTESREE Non-derivative financial liabilities
Rt R EfERE  Creditors and other payables = 657,199 624,892 = - 128091 1,282,091
EE Borrowings
28 - at variable rate 1.89 49,512 607,297 604,668 927,865 2,189,342 2,117,118
-%E8 - at fived rate 1.1 456,699 65,602 73,909 67,960 664,170 658,045
1,163,410 1,297,191 678,577 995,825 4,135,603 4,057,254
ETE-B4E Derivatives - net settlement
ety Cross currency swap contract 5,282 5,379 = = 10,661 10,661
SNEREAL Foreign exchange forward contracts = 29 > = 29 2
5,282 5,408 - - 10,690 10,690
fi4TE-#E4LE  Derivatives - gross settlement
flEEmAh Interest rate swap contracts
—HA ~ inflow (3,345) (31,247) (21,493) (14,082) (70,167) (68,273)
— it - outflow 315 34241 2410 15,099 76,525 14476
370 2,9% 1911 1,017 6,358 6,203
R-B-ME At 31.12.2014
tZA=1-H
FTESREE Non-derivative financial liabilities
EREREMEME  Creditors and other payables 2 706,413 686,672 - - 1393085 1,393,085
&8 Borrowings
-28 - at variable rate 1.88 44,843 626,825 582,080 638,901 1,892,649 1,834,722
-E8 - at fixed rate 1.59 1,073,833 75,004 57,328 48,019 1,254,184 1,248 688
1,825,089 1,388,501 639,408 686920 4539918 4,476,495
ETE-BLE Derivatives - net settlement
EtEBad Cross currency swap contract 3,489 11,382 8147 - 23,018 2,191
fETE-fEes  Derivatives - gross settlement
HEERAL Interest rate swap contracts
— A - inflow (2,752) (26,733) (20,100) (14,630) (64,215) (62,484)
il - outflow 308 29024 20886 15,223 68,176 66,363
291 2,291 786 593 3,961 3879
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30.Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

The Group's derivative financial instruments are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The following
table gives information about how the fair values of these
financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation

URARBEFEERBAAENEN techniques and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
BABBNIBREEETHEN value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are
PRBEENE—ZE=ZF)NER - categorised (levels 1 to 3) based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements is observable.
y ARERETEREEHARE
LtREE ARE DAEHZR  Fair value valuation
Financial liabilities Fair value as at Hierarchy techniques and key input(s)
\:S:ﬁﬂi R-ZT—F
T=HA=+-8 TZA= -l- =
31.12.2015 31.12.2014
RS BRI BE(RBEWETHE) AERBYWENE) F-8 HERGRE - KAFRERE KRS
SBAERR  -250000%7 —Sit FRAEE Y EEER (fhER)EER
TAMAIEEH N 2 BRI (1 9 5 MR A B AR I R o
B4 SEBEEMEHE)  BEREBIhEE) BEL)REOFE(RERRREXHR)
6,203,000/ T -3,879,000/% T tact
Interest rate Assets (under hedge  Assets (under hedge Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows
swap contracts accounting) accountmg) are estimated based on forward interest
classified as - HK$250,000 - HKSNil rates (from observable yield curves at
derivative the end of the reporting period) and
financial Liabilities (under Liabilities (under contracted interest rates, discounted at
instruments in hedge accounting) hedge accounting) an applicable discount rate taking into
the consolidated - HK$6,203,000 - HK$3,879,000 account the credit risk of the counter-
statement of parties and of the Group as appropriate.
financial position
NEABBHAE A L. af L BTBR BEESE ATHARETNERSH
/ﬁiﬁmiﬁg - 10,661,000/ 7T — 22,791,000 T RALE 2 EERR (AR R ERE
TAmMESE SRR ({3 & SRR o] B M an R g iR
AR ﬁ)&é%@?\\%lﬁ‘%&m%ﬂ%@ﬁ i
o PR KAL) At
Cross currency Liabilities Liabilities Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash
swap contract - HK$10,661,000 - HK$22,791,000 flows are estimated based on forward
classified as currency exchange rate and market
derivative interest rate (from observable yield
financial curves at the end of the reporting
instruments in period) and contracted foreign currency
the consolidated exchange rate and market interest rate,
statement discounted at an applicable discount
of financial rate taking into account the credit
position# risk of the counter- parties and of the
Group as appropriate.
WEAMBIAE  HE. BE 28 WIRSE. AABARERNEL S,
NRRITEZR —#71,004,000 —TRL ZL%KZXE Bl (i@ )% # iR
TAMSEE ) RIS Es ROy Pie T
af AR _ BfE_ 5ih) R I EE X K minil X (7@
— 729,000 —THT FIARER R AT ) M fat o
Foreign exchange Assets Assets Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Future cash
forward contracts - HK$1,004,000 — HK$Nil flows are estimated based on forward
classified as o currency exchange rate and market
derivative Liabilities Liabilities interest rate (from observable yield
financial - HK$29,000 - HK$Nil curves at the end of the reporting

instruments in
the consolidated
statement of
financial position

ER{CIKEARAR - —F

—hFEFER

period) and contracted foreign currency
exchange rate and market interest rate,
discounted at an applicable discount
rate taking into account the credit

risk of the counter- parties and of the
Group as appropriate.
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30.Financial Instruments (continued)

Fair value measurements of financial
instruments (continued)

# Swapping AUD notional amount with an interest at AUD 3-month
BBR-BBSW plus 1.25% to HK$ notional amount with an interest
at HK$3-month HIBOR plus 1.80% at a fixed foreign exchange
rate for the principal notional amount.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of other financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated financial
statements approximate their fair values.

Financial assets and liabilities subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements

The Group entered into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association (“ISDA") Master Agreements for its derivatives
financial instruments. The amounts recognised for the
derivatives financial instruments do not meet the criteria for
offsetting in the Group's consolidated statement of financial
position since there is no cash collateral pledged in respect of
the Group's derivative transactions.
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31.5RAETEl 31.Share Option Scheme
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On 25 May 2012, the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting approved the adoption of a new
share option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) and
the termination of the old share option scheme (the “Old
Share Option Scheme”, together with the “New Share Option
Scheme”, collectively known as “Share Option Scheme”)
which was adopted by the Company on 3 September 2002.
Options granted under the Old Share Option Scheme prior to
such termination will continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the rules of the Old Share Option Scheme.
The New Share Option Scheme will expire on 24 May 2022
in order to comply with the terms of Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules. The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme
is to recognise and motivate the participants and to provide
incentives and a direct economic interest in attaining the
long term business objectives of the Company. The principal
terms of the New Share Option Scheme are similar to those
of the Old Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant
options to any eligible employees of the Group, including
directors of the Company or its subsidiaries, legal, financial,
management and technical advisers and consultants, major
customers and raw material and machinery suppliers of the
Group, to subscribe for shares of the Company. The exercise
period of options granted shall not be more than ten years
from the date of grant and the Board may impose restrictions
on the exercise of options during the period options may
be exercised. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable
on acceptance of the grant of options. The subscription
price of the option share is not less than the higher of (i)
the closing price of the shares on the date of grant; (ii)
the average closing prices of the shares on the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares. The maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted may not exceed
in nominal amount of 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of approval of the New Share Option
Scheme. However, the total maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding shares
options must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital
from time to time. The number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any individual in any one year is
not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the Company
in issue from time to time, without prior approval from the
Company's shareholders.
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31.Share Option Scheme (continued)

The share options granted before under the Old Share Option
Scheme vest immediately and will continue to be valid and
exercisable in accordance with the rules of the Old Share
Option Scheme.

A summary of the movements of the outstanding options
and their related weighted average exercise prices during
each of the reporting periods under the Company's share
option scheme is as follows:

ERERE

Number of share options
R=%-1% R=%-1%
== tZA=t-H
WATE  ERERE  EREOE  EAEGH R
i/ Outstanding Granted  Exercised  Cancelled  Outstanding

REiAH Exercise at during during during at
Date of grant price 1.1.2015 the year the year the year 31.12.2015
BT
HKS
EBMIEE 0ld Share Option Scheme  —FERE+A=1MA 2004 576,000 - (576,000) - -
24.10.2005
“ERHEMA=A 4.050 678,000 - (200,000) - 478,000
3.4.2007
ZEE\ETA=T-H 1.950 540,000 = (180,000) (40,000) 320,000
31.10.2008
ZZZNETARA 4536 1,386,000 = = (336,000) 1,050,000
5.10.2009
3,180,000 - (956,000 (376,000) 1,848,000
R New Share Option Scheme —Z—=%F—F+—H
11.1.2013 5942 7,080,000 - - (1,120,000) 5,960,000
BT BT B BT BT
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
mEFH Weighted average exercise
BRFEE  price per share 5.196 - 242 5.519 5473
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31&%&%%'_%“(@) 31.Share Optlon Scheme (Continued)

BE-2-NF+-A=t—HILFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014

BREHE
Number of share options
RZE-B RZF-BF
-A-H t=B=+-H
WATE FRERE FAETE  FROE# HRATE
i Outstanding  Granted  Exercised  Cancelled  Outstanding

RhAS Exercise at during during during at
Date of grant price 1.1.2014 the year the year the year 31.12.2014
BT
HK§
EBRETE Old Share Option Scheme  —EZMEHA++H 1.590 400,000 - (400,000) - -
17.5.2004
“FERFTA-TEA 2004 576,000 - - - 576,000
24.10.2005
ZZTLENA=A 4,050 678,000 = = - 678,000
3.4.2007
ZZE\ETA=T-H 1.950 540,000 - - - 540,000
31.10.2008
ZZZNETARA 4536 1,480,000 - (74,000) (20,000) 1,386,000
5.10.2009
3,674,000 - (474,000) (20,000) 3,180,000
$BMRIEE New Share Option Scheme —F—=£—F+—H
11.1.2013 5942 7,430,000 = = (350,000 7,080,000
BT BT BT BT BT
HKS HKS HKS HKS HK$
IEFS Weighted average exercise
SREE  price per share 5.084 - 2.050 5.866 5.196
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31.Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details of the options held by the directors included in the
above table are as follows:

BE-Z-AF+-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2015

BREHE
Number of share options
RZE-F R=F-mf
—A-H B .. T=R=1-H
i MRGE FACHEE SREGE  BAGE
I8 Outstanding Granted  Exercised  Outstanding
RHAH Exercise at during during at
Date of grant price 1.1.2015 the year the year 31.12.2015
BT
HKS
ERRiEHS 0ld Share Option Scheme “EERETACTN 2.004 200,000 - (200,000) =
24.10.2005
ZZTLENA=A 4,050 200,000 - - 200,000
3.4.2007
“ZE\ETA=T-H 1.950 100,000 - - 100,000
31.10.2008
“ETNETATA 453 200,000 - - 200,000
5.10.2009
700,000 - (200,000) 500,000
HRRER 2 New Share Option Scheme “Z-=F-A1-H
11.1.2013 5942 600,000 - = 600,000
BE-Z-—NE+-A=+—HLFE
For the year ended 31 December 2014
BREYE
Number of share options
R=2-0 RZZ-BE
—A-H B .. T=A=1-H
~ MRGE FACHEE EREGE  BAGE
fif® Outstanding  Granted  Exercised  Outstanding
RHAH Exercise at during during at
Date of grant price 1.1.2014 the year the year 31.12.2014
BT
HKS
ERRiEHS 0ld Share Option Scheme “EEMERA+HA 1.590 300,000 - (300,000) S
17.5.2004
“ERRETAZTHEA 2.004 200,000 - - 200,000
24.10.2005
“TTHENA=R 4.050 200,000 - - 200,000
2007
“2T\E+A=+-H 1.950 100,000 - - 100,000
31.10.2008
“ERNETARA 4536 200,000 - - 200,000
5.10.2009
1,000,000 - (300,000) 700,000
iR 2l New Share Option Scheme —E-=5-A1-H
11.1.2013 5.942 600,000 = = 600,000
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31. Eﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ(@) 31.Share Optlon Scheme (Continued)
1T BE AR 4 B B AT &Y N4 R The weighted average closing price of the shares of the
E/73.825% 0 (= —P04 : 5.529 Company immediately before the dates on which the share
BIT) c REE B MARITEEREZ options were exercised was HK$3.825 (2014: HK$5.529). The
FHFBRENFER6.07TF(ZF— options outstanding at the end of the year have a weighted
P4 : 6.58%F) ° average remaining contract life of 6.07 years (2014: 6.58
years).
BIEERRE SR LN EER All share options granted under the Old Share Option
BRI EBHENGE - T e Scheme vested immediately at the dates of grant with the
B B RS 4 o PRI B A exercisable period of ten years from the dates of grant. The
MERGEBRZEEREE -2 — share options granted under the New Share Option Scheme
AE—A+—HARBRE-ZT=_=F— were vested over two years from the dates of grant and they
A+BIEA] P76 - are exercisable commencing from 11 January 2015 to 10

January 2023.

AEERBE_T—RE+_-_A= The Group recognised the total expenses of HK$Nil for the
T-REFERARTRLE ZER year ended 31 December 2015 (2014: HK$3,878,000) in
ERERAEFALREBT(ZE—N relation to share options granted by the Company.

% : 3,878,000/ 7T) ©

32. 7% 32.Commitments
—E-RF —ZT—F
2015 2014
FET FA&T
HK$’000 HK$'000
AW - BE K& Capital expenditure in respect of the
BAE R A2 acquisition of property, plant and equipment
BEARFZEETAES  and land use rights contracted for but
BB GEREFR AR not provided in the consolidated financial
F B statements 43,900 225,765
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AEBEER/EBEA

RB|EIR - NREBEFR T 5 FH
ﬁZﬁE%¥ZTT@%%%ﬁ
WM AAESN R RKEREREA

BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

33.0perating Lease Commitments

The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
outstanding commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect
of rented properties which fall due as follows:

—E-EEF —T-F

2015 2014

FHERT FAT

HK$'000 HK$’000

—FER Within one year 14,331 15,528
F_EFERF In the second to fifth year inclusive

(EEMFREEA) 51,554 25,652

& After five years 38,842 28,204

104,727 69,384

RERARET T 2 A - AEH
HRBEB—EEHERE -
REBEREBEA

RBERR > AEERBSH T
ARRFERERHEITLEA

Under the leases entered into by the Group, the lease terms
and rentals are fixed from one year to twenty years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with a tenant for the following future minimum lease
payments:

—F-IF —FHEE

2015 2014

FHERT FHET

HK$'000 HK$'000

—FR Within one year 4,960 1,380
EFE_EZFERF In the second to fifth year inclusive

(EEMFBIFEN) 17,179 =

22,139 1,380

RRREE  RANNLEEEOE
HRRSS o

The properties held have a committed tenant for the next
five years.
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34.

35.

BEALRS

FRN - AEE 5 R 960,000
7t( —Z — U4 : 960,000/ 7t ) &
600,000 7T (=ZF —M4F : 600,000
BIL)Z2HE TAEEREBRAA
([BE)REEREFBRARA(E
Bl ARARZEEEEREER
BEFFEEDFIREBRERERE
RS o

IZEBAEBRARFBZEERA
RAZBRERE - REFMFE
KT EG

RGBT

6 B 2 EAR IR B SR IR ET & 5B
B AL E B KET 81 ([ B R RIKET
g DRBERESKRIN_FZTE
FtH ARz REEFEI([8E
B8] c RFRTBICEERAE
BrBEENHARKE BXRATER
ZERESHTA - £REEE
FXIZZ B - RARBERKETEIKE
Z R B EEREES ME R RN
B REEFE  FAR-F
ZEF+ - A BRI AR
KEZEEF2ERERS -

ARBRPEAEZHBEARES
Tyl BT EE 2 Bl BB R AIK
BAFEZKE - HEHBARZ
HRAREEHFEZETENEL  F
RZBRENFEZES - AEHE
ZWE—BERMZENRENE SR

HEFERHK -

T A 2 B A A48,283,00078 7T
(Z2Z — 1 4 : 41,067,000/ 7T )
REREBIZFTERAFTA 2 L=
RAEF EEERZFTEELD X
MM ZER R=ZF—RF+
—A=Z+—8B - BHEHEEMZ
£ 3%530,000% ;o( =& — IO F -
530,000 ) AR Tz L5t &l
ZEFHEERNREAREST »

ERCIKEERAT - — T AFEFR

34.Related Party Transactions

35.

During the year, the Group paid rent of HK$960,000
(2014: HK$960,000) and HK$600,000 (2014: HK$600,000)
to Goldex Investments Limited (“Goldex”) and Galsheer
Investments Limited (“Galsheer”) respectively in which Mr.
Ip Chi Shing and Mr. Yip Tsz Hin, directors of the Company,
have controlling interests over Goldex and Galsheer
respectively.

The key management personnel are the directors of the
Company and the management executives of the Company.
The details of the remuneration paid to them are set out in
note 6.

Retirement Benefit Plan

The Group participates in both a defined contribution scheme
which is registered under the Occupational Retirement
Schemes Ordinance (the “ORSO Scheme”) and a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) established
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from
those of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees.
Employees who were members of the ORSO Scheme prior to
the establishment of the MPF Scheme were offered a choice
of staying within the ORSO Scheme or switching to the MPF
Scheme, whereas all new employees joining the Group on or
after 1 December 2000 are required to join the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries in Mainland
China are members of a state-managed retirement benefit
plan operated by the government of Mainland China. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a specified percentage
of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit plan is to make the specified
contributions.

The costs charged to profit or loss of HK$48,283,000 (2014:
HK$41,067,000) represent contributions paid or payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of
the plans in respect of the current accounting period. As at
31 December 2015, contributions of HK$530,000 (2014:
HK$530,000) due in respect of the reporting period had not
been paid over to the plans. The amounts were paid over
subsequent to the end of the reporting period.
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ARBZEEMER

ke

Name of company

AZEENT:

AL/
Place of incorporation/
registration

BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

36.Principal Subsidiaries

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as follows:

BRfTRA/ HRERZEE
Nominal value of issued
share capital/ registered
capital

AREERES
BRIRE/GRERZENL TERH

Proportion of nominal value of Principal activities

issued share capital/ registered

capital held by the Group

Zg-1fF ZE-mE
2015 2014
[ERERARLT Bk Lk- 208 100% 100% ¥5RE
Base Rich Development Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$2 100% 100%  Property investment
Limited
RAERI(ER)RRAR  mEAR-BENELE BAER - ARE2,000,0007 100% 100% EE2H
Bauhinia Chemical (Shanghai)  Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Trading in coatings
Company Liited owned foreign enterprise RMB2,000,000
L AHEERRAR 30 EER- 18T 100% 100% REZR
Bauhinia Coatings Group Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$ 1 100% 100% - Investment holding
Limited
RHEER(LR)BRAR  hEAR-BENELE ERER - 40,800,000%T 100% 100% BHEREEZH
Bauhinia Coatings Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% - Manufacturing of and trading in coatings
Manufacturing (Shanghai) owned foreign enterprise ~ USD40,800,000
Co., Limited
Bauhinia Paints Limited ZERNES LRk 100057 100% 100% RERR
British Virgin Islands Ordinary-HK$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
RHEBAREBRAT  hEAR-BENELE ERER- AR%280000007 100% 100% BEREEZH
Bauninia Paints Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% - Manufacture of and trading in coatings
Manufacturing (Chengdu)  owned foreign enterprise RMB28,000,000
Company Limited
AR RERRAR B EER- 2057 100% 100% ALK
EIER— 600,007 (i iz
Bauhinia Paints Manufacturing  Hong Kong Ordinary-HK$20 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited Deferred - HK$600,000 Note Note
SRR LE)BRAR  wEAR-BANELE EXER - 6,100000%7 100% 100% WERE
Bauhinia Paints Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100%  Property investment

Manufacturing (Shanghai)
Company Limited

owned foreign enterprise

USD6, 100,000
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36. T EM B ATl

Pk

Name of company

RY/HMS
Place of incorporation/
registration

36.Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

BRIRA/ARERCERE
Nominal value of issued
share capital/ registered
capital

ARBEREY
BRARE/GREAZESL TEEH

Proportion of nominal value of Principal activities

issued share capital/ registered

capital held by the Group

ZE-nf  —E-Mf
2015 2014
RAESACRIARAR  mEAR-BENELE EAEE - 28,800,007 100% 100% BE#H
Bauhinia Paints Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Trading in coatings
Manufacturing (Shenzhen)  owned foreign enterprise HK$28,800,000
Company Limited
ARMBR(TERAR  pEAR-BENELE E4EH- 100% 10% HEREEARE
AR 88,000,0007
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% - Manufacture of and trading in inks
Chemicals (Hebei) Limited  owned foreign enterprise RMB88,000,000
RRABRONTERAR  EAR-BENELE ERER - 4000000057 100% 100% ZEREEHE
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% - Manufacture of and trading in inks
Chemicals (Zhefiang) owned foreign enterprise USD40,000,000
Limited
FRAAR(TLRRAR  mEAR-BENELE ERER - 18000000047 100% 100% FEREEAS
Bauhinia Variegata Ink & Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% - Manufacture of and trading in inks
Chemicals (Zhongshan) owned foreign enterprise HK$180,000,000
Limited
AEHRAERAT B ERR- 28T 100% 100% &R
Best Lubricant Blending Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited
RBREBRAR & Lk - 10,0007 100% 100% #gRE
Big Youth Investments Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$10,000 100% 100% Property investment
Limited
B TRRARAT & EAR- 16000037 75% Ioh REZRREERH
Concord Chemical Storaging  Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$160,000 75% 75%  Investment holding and trading in
Limited solvents
REBE(BMVEROT  REAE-BENALE  EREE- 4500087 100% 100% BEREREH
Da Chang Polymers (Huizhou)  Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% - Manufacture of and trading in coatings

Limited

owned foreign enterprise

ERCIKEERAT - — T AFEFR

HK$24,500,000
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PEE

Name of company

RY/HMS
Place of incorporation/
registration

BE-—T-RF+-B=+—HILFJE For the year ended 31 December 2015

36.Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

AEENEELR
BRfTRA/AMERZAS TTEE
Proportion of nominal value of Principal activities
issued share capital/ registered

BRTRA/ARERCERE
Nominal value of issued
share capital/ registered

capital capital held by the Group
“g-1fF  ZE-ME
2015 2014
BECKERFARB(M)  hEAR-BENELE EAEH - 23,000,007 100% 100% MEEERAHRE
BRAF
Dao Ming Business Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100%  Corporate management and consultation
Management Consultancy  owned foreign enterprise HK$23,000,000 services
Service (Shenzhen)
Company Limited
REATHERERRARD  REAR-BENELE EAEH - 500000007 100% 100% BEREEERE
il
Dongguan Pacoil Lubricant  Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% - Manufacture of and trading in lubricants
Company Limited owned foreign enterprise HK$50,000,000
SRERAA B LRR- 281 100% 100% HEER
Goldchain Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEERAA EED LEk- 131 100% 100% &R
Great Success Limited Samoa Ordinary-USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
AN TERARA & EER- 60000037 100% 100% REZRREERH
Handsome Chemical Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$600,000 100% 100%  [nvestment holding and trading in
Development Limited solvents
A IREARAA (3 ERR- 60000 100% 100% REAERHE
Handsome Chemical Services  Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$60,000 100% 100%  Provision of treasury services
Limited
B22H(E5)BRAR REAE-BANELE EAEH - 20,000,000%7 100% 100% SHEREEANRER
Hang Cheung Coatings (Hui ~ Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% - Manufacture of and trading in solvents
Yang) Limited owned foreign enterprise U$D20,000,000 and coatings
Hang Cheung Petrochemical  RER%HS LaR- 1351 100% 100% REEK
(International) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary-USD1 100% 100%  [nvestment holding
EE AL TERAR 3 £k 800000 100% 100% EE2H
Hang Cheung Petrochemical  Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$800,000 100% 100%  Trading in coatings
Limited
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36. T EM B ATl

Pk

Name of company

RY/HMS
Place of incorporation/
registration

36.Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

BRIRA/ARERCERE
Nominal value of issued
share capital/ registered
capital

ARBEREY
BRARE/GREAZESL TEEH

Proportion of nominal value of Principal activities

issued share capital/ registered

capital held by the Group

ZE-nf  —E-Mf
2015 2014
Hang Cheung (W.S) Limited ~ BEZ LAk 1% 100% 100% RERR
Samoa Ordinary-USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
BEZREHR(KTE)ER B LRR- 14966557 100% 100% REZR
27 B - 33587 i3 iz
Hong Kong Bauhinia Paints ~ Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$149,665 100% 100%  Investment holding
Manufacturing (Greater Deferred-HK$335 Note Note
China) Company Limited
MBI TARAA hEAE-BRNELE BAER - ARH15,000,000 75% Ioh ZEREERH
T
Huizhou Shengda Chemical ~ Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 5% 75%  Manufacture of and trading in solvents
Company Limited owned foreign enterprise RMB15,000,000
IFRECIERARAR  MEAE-2EREL% BREH - 149,800,007 75% 5% BEREERE
Jiangmen Handsome Mainland China - equity joint  Capital contribution - 5% 75% - Manufacture of and trading in solvents
Chemical Development venture HK$149,800,000
Limited
IRRARHERERAR  DEAR-BENELE EAEH - 53,000,000 75% 5% HEREERH
Jiangmen Thansome Solvents ~ Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 5% 75%  Manufacture of and trading in solvents
Production Limited owned foreign enterprise HK$53,000,000
AFRREERARAT Bk k- 1000037 100% 100% EEESH
Pacific Special-Lube Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$10,000 100% 100% Trading in lubricants
Primer Limited EED ERR- 13T 100% 100% REHK
Samoa Ordinary-USD1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Prophet Investments Limited ~ RER%EE Lk 1% 100% 100% RERK
British Virgin Islands Ordinary-USD1 100% 100%  [nvestment holding
SRERA(LE)ERAR  PEAR-BENMELE EAEH- 250000%T 100% 100% EEFEA
Mainland China — wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Trading in lubricants

ER(CIKERERAR - —F—

owned foreign enterprise

hFEFR

UsD250,000
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36.Principal Subsidiaries (continued)

BRTRA/ARERCERE
Nominal value of issued
share capital/ registered
capital

ARBERRS
BRAKRE/GRERZESL TERH

Proportion of nominal value of Principal activities

issued share capital/ registered

capital held by the Group

“g-1f  CE-[OF
2015 2014
RECTHETXARAR  PEAE-BENERX EARERT - 489,900,000/ 75% 5% BEREERE
Taixing Jinjiang Chemical Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 75% 75% - Manufacture of and trading in solvents
Industry Company Limited owned foreign enterprise HK$489,900,000
REATERBERAR hEAR-BENELE BAER - 8,400,00087 100% 100% EEEEH
Tianjin Best Lubricant Blending ~ Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100% Trading in lubricants
Co., Limited owned foreign enterprise HK$8,400,000
TM Holding (Hong Kong) B LER-2ET 100% 100% HEHE
Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HKS2 100% 100%  Holding of trade mark
TM Holding Limited ABRUES LEk- 1AL 100% 100% HAHE
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - HK$1 100% 100%  Holding of trade mark
Yip's Chemical (BV) Limited ~ EBRAES LER- S00AT 100% 100% REZHK
British Virgin Islands Ordinary-HK$500 100% 100%  Investment holding
SRECIHE(LE)BRAR  hEAR-BENELE EAFH - 17,000,007 100% 100% HEREZ
Yip's Chemical Research & Mainland China - wholly Capital contribution - 100% 100%  Research and development
Development (Shanghai) owned foreign enterprise UsD17,000,000
Company Limited
RRES(ER)BRAR &8 ERR- 99950087 100% 100% REFRREERS
BIER- 500ET (i3 it
Yip's H.C. (Holding) Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$999,500 100% 100%  Investment holding and provision of
Deferred-HK$500 Note Note  services
FRIZERARAA & LR 1000087 75% 5% REZRREERH
Yip's Industrial Holdings Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$10,000 75% 75%  Investment holding and trading in
Limited solvents
ERhE(£E)ARAR Bk R 28T 100% 100% REGRREEEH
Yip's Ink & Chemicals (Group)  Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$2 100% 100%  Investment holding and trading in
Limited coatings
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venture

MisE : FERAKERB ZEERD EE
B AR B S E % A R R R A e
ZRERHFEEZARREA
CRES LEE - EEBRE
LERFEACIEAEE)EES
HEREMRZEROINZEARK
$£100,000,000,0007% 7T @ R iE
ERD A AT BRENZDAF
BHEETRREFRERZEELT

36. T EMB AR @) 36.Principal Subsidiaries (continued)
AEEREER
ARER RY/HMS BRfRA/AMERZERE  ERORA/IMERZAMM ITER
Name of company Place of incorporation/ Nominal value of issued Proportion of nominal value of Principal activities
registration share capital/ registered issued share capital/ registered
capital capital held by the Group
“E-3f  CE-[OF
2015 2014
FRERA(RE)ERAR  BE ERR- 29000037 100% 100% EEFHR
Yip's Lubricant Limited Hong Kong Ordinary - HK$290,000 100% 100% Trading in lubricants
Yip's Pacific Limited RERAHEE TRR- 36,251,00057 100% 100% RERR
British Virgin Islands Ordinary - HK$36,251,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
EREVARHEERAR  MEAR-GERENE £k - 9300,000%7T 60% 60% BEREEHMKE
Mainland China - equity joint  Ordinary - USD9,300,000 60% 60% Manufacture and trading in resins

Note: The deferred shares, which are not held by the Group, carry
no right to dividend or to receive notice of or to attend or
vote at any general meeting of the company. On a winding-
up, the holders of the deferred shares are entitled out of the
surplus assets of the company to a return of capital paid up
on the non-voting deferred shares but only when holders of
ordinary shares, namely, the Group, have received in full the
return of capital paid on them and, in aggregate, a total sum
of HK$100,000,000,000.

B 2B

BrYip's Chemical (BVI) Limited/4s Except for Yip's Chemical (BVI) Limited which is held directly
AEEEFRBN FIEEHEWBEA by the Company, all other subsidiaries are indirectly held.
R ARERE - REARBEEN Except for the investment holding companies which have
I BERARIN - FrA L no specific place of operation, all the above subsidiaries
BARlzEELE MM RERF operate principally in their respective place of incorporation/
BRSZ 2 HhfE o registration.

ERAMIAEBZMBARNES The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
REBHEAREBXEELEEXEA the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
B2 EZHMBAA - EFRABIE or assets or liabilities of the Group. To give details of other
EMHBARIZHBEBEBNIER subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
- particulars of excessive length.
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36. T EMB AR @) 36.Principal Subsidiaries (continved
EMBARIR=ZE—RFT=_A= None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at
+— B Sk R AE A B A AR A AT £ 31 December 2015 or at any time during the year.
TRETEEEAFERERZAE The table below shown details of non-wholly owned
SEFEEWMBRR 25 subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling

interests:

AL HR FEREREAL

WEBLATER TEREHY FRERERRAFELS ARFHEZREZE RN itk ERES
Name of subsidiary Place of Proportion of ownership  Profits allocated to Accumulated
incorporation and  interests and voting  non-controlling interests non-controlling
principal place of rights held by interests
business non-controlling interests
ZE2-nf “Z-mE ZB-Rf _—T-IF ZB-1Ff —T-MF
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

TiEn TAL T TAL
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

IHRECIERERARRENBLR mEAE 25% 25% 15,394 19939 186,877 190346
(DIPmfEEE])
Jiangmen Handsome Chemical Mainland China

Development Limited and its subsidiary
(the "Jiangmen Handsome Group”)

Bt IERAERARRANBEAR A 25% 25% 21,947 29943 246439 252,769
(IpfEE])

Concord Chemical Storaging Limited and Hong Kong
its subsidiaries (the “Concord Group”)

A EEHEENEERERSZ Summarised financial information, which is prepared
M@ ATz BB ER (RIBRE BB in accordance with HKFRSs, in respect of the Group's
WELEARSDBEERHIIAT o AT subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests
MBEEHBEREKEEBMBRZ A is set out below. The summarised financial information
pa ¢ below represents amounts before elimination of intragroup

transactions.
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36. T EMB AR @) 36.Principal Subsidiaries (continved
—®-1% —T-AF
2015 2014
FTERT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
SIFEEE Jiangmen Handsome Group
E 3] Turnover 2,928,431 3,627,215
S Expenses (2,866,855) (3,547,461)
RELLF Profit for the year 61,576 79,754
AEPHB=EE Total comprehensive income for the year 21,082 60,136
EREBEE Non-current assets 274,911 307,894
MENEE Current assets 1,087,003 1,309,594
mENAE Current liabilities (613,501) (855,274)
ERBAE Non-current liability (905) (830)
B Total equity 747,508 761,384
REEB RS FR Net cash inflow (outflow) from operating
AR activities 394,064 (37,437)
KBEEEZRSEEN Net cash outflow from investing activities (5,571) (40,169)
MEXB R SR Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing
(RE)RA activities (292,192) 74,373
BEEBERACRL) Net cash inflow (outflow) 96,301 (3,233)
A IEE R RS AR B Dividends paid to non-controlling interests (8,740) (19,690)
—F-1% —T-mF
2015 2014
B T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HHER Concord Group
—E Turnover 2,247,772 2,767,870
X Expenses (2,159,983) (2,648,098)
ANELEF Profit for the year 87,789 119,772
NEREIKES4EEE Total comprehensive income for the year 7,128 85,060
JERBEE Non-current assets 415,153 301,594
mBEE Current assets 1,029,551 1,307,308
nBRE Current liabilities (454,623) (620,664)
EREBAaE Non-current liabilities (4,325) (9,610)
Pyt Total equity 985,756 978,628
fRAs TR 7 30 S IH AR Net cash inflow from operating activities
A 292,373 19,154
R 2N E5En Net cash outflow from investing activities (142,228) (107,345)
BB X R R Net cash (outflow) inflow from financing
Ot ) mA activities (107,027) 70,779
BE&FEREAGREL) Net cash inflow (outflow) 43,118 (17,412)
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37. A QR M FBAR R &R

37.Statement of Financial Position of
the Company

—E-1f —E-lE
2015 2014
THERT FHIT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FnEE Non-current assets
RHTB AR ZALETRE Unlisted investment in subsidiaries 434,115 322,395
FEW — R B A EFIE Amount due from a subsidiary 776,153 924,681
1,210,268 1,247,076
MENEE Current assets
Ho A FE U R TR R T FRIE Other receivables and prepayments 145 145
RITEB RIS Bank balances and cash 799 575
944 720
mEBE Current liabilities
HENRR M ETER Other creditors and accrued charges 3,549 3,602
e — B A R ZUA Amount due to a subsidiary 234,533 241,725
SRITET A Derivative financial instruments 16,941 23,518
255,023 268,845
FnEaE Net current liabilities (254,079) (268,125)
FEE Net assets 956,189 978,951
IRA Rk it Capital and reserves
A% 7N Share capital 56,371 56,276
FHAGES) Reserves (Note) 899,818 922,675
R Total equity 956,189 978,951
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HE-Z—AF+-A=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2015

37. R AR MBI TR =) 37.Statement of Financial Position of
the Company (continued)
MHsE Note:
BRE g%
1 Bk {3
R EE Share  EHftf#fs ERREE Capital  REEF
Share options Other Translation redemption  Retained A5t
premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  earning Total

TRET TAT TET TR TER TAT TAT
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

W=Z2-mE-A—-A At 1 January 2014 628,447 5,382 77,700 221,764 5,416 27,917 966,626
AEMF Profit for the year = = = = = 117,555 117,555

RfrEmEL ERER Exchange difference arising on
translation to presentation

currency - - - (25,615) - - (25,615)
AEZENRAE Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - (25,615) - 117,555 91,940
BRARMDEH AETL Recognition of equity-settled
RS share-based payments - 3,878 = = = = 3,878
RERETEMEIRAZ  Share issued at premium upon
iE exercise of share option 979 (55) = = = = 924
RETROTEEZER Expense incurred in connection
with issue of shares (5) - - = = - )
EUEERIERERZREBER  Share options cancelled and
transfer to retained profits - (369) - - - 369 -
BRKE Dividend paid (62,435) - - - - (78,253)  (140,688)
RZZ-NFE+=-A=+—H At 31 December 2014 566,986 8,836 717,700 196,149 5,416 67,588 922,675
LA Profit for the year - - - - - 167918 167918
AfEZ 2 REEmES Exchange difference arising on
ZEREH translation to presentation
currency - - - (52,168) - - (52,168)
TEXENRLE Total comprehensive income for
the year - - - (52,168) - 167,918 115,750
AR RIETE MR ZIEE Share issued at premium upon
exercise of share option 2,433 (213) - - - - 2,220
RRIROMEEZER Expense incurred in connection
with issue of shares (@) - - - = - @
EUEERERERZREBEF  Share options cancelled and
transfer to retained profits - (1,390) - - - 1,390 -
ERBRE Dividend paid (64,876) - - - - (75,947)  (140,823)
RZZ-RF+-A=F+—H At 31 December 2015 504,539 7,233 77,700 143,981 5416 160,949 899,818
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